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OUR VISION
BMHER

The Group strives to fortify its business portfolio by leveraging
on the experience in entertainment and tourist-related industries
and strengthening its competitiveness by exploring new
opportunities in property investment business. We endeavor to
create long-term value for all of our stakeholders through the
balanced and diversified business portfolio, while adhering to a
high standard of corporate governance.

AEEB ) BREIRE N IERBITRERIBREEGHES - W6
FAYERERBOMEBUARTHE S - HAIBERTE NS
THEZEBHEE  RIMBRNEGREREEBE  RFETEHKFELN

P AT EIIN
DEEE o
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Group Structure
£E%RE
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Business Highlights
FBHME

Revenue from continuing operations was
approximately HK$1,120.3 million and gross profit
was approximately HK$34.4 million for 2018

Profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$54.5 million

Revenue of the travel business was substantially
increased by approximately 87% to approximately
HK$1,090.2 million; while segment profit amounted
to approximately HK$2.0 million

Revenue of the property investment business was
approximately HK$30.1 million, while segment profit
was approximately HK$37.7 million

The Adjusted EBITDA* of Ponte 16, the Group’s
flagship investment project, increased by approximately
58% to approximately HK$356.7 million. The Group'’s
shared profit of the associates relating to Ponte 16 was
approximately HK$68.1 million

Adjusted EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from the pledged
bank deposit)

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

TE - N\FREFELEEBHK
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RESULTS

Financial Highlights

ES

MBHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t—BLEE

2018 2017 2016
—B-N\F ST LF SR
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT T BT I BT I
CONTINUING OPERATIONS: FHBAR SRR
Revenue g
Travel iiigica 1,090,196 583,425 562,676
Property investment MERE 30,082 6,510 2,172
1,120,278 589,935 564,848
Share of results of associates iR/
E 68,110 (9,879) 17,513
Profit/(loss) for the year from  REFELLERE 2
continuing operations REERF,
(E18) 54,213 4,369 (16,299)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION: — [FAR AR & 2%
Loss for the year from KB BRI E
discontinued operation: ZANEEEE
Lottery TR - (37,825) (20,766)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR,(FHE) 54,213 (33,456) (37,065)
Profit/(loss) attributable to 2~ TR R FE(L
owners of the Company =R (E5E) 54,464 (29,810) (30,977)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF mE BRI R
FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 December
R+=—RA=+—H
2018 2017 2016
—B-N\F T £F T AF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT T BT T BT I
Total assets BERE 1,382,749 1,046,047 1,188,434
Total liabilities BERE 314,628 48,191 182,077
Net assets EEZFE 1,068,121 997,856 1,006,357
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EEJ #&d:

The global economy generally performed well in 2018, our business
segments made remarkable progress and delivered fruitful results. The
balanced and well-diversified business composition will continue to
deliver healthy performance with long-term value to the Group.

T )\ FEREBEERRERY  SESEGOERERENESLER
EHENR - B RS ERES BEE RN EB B RIBEARE -
BlEREEE -
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The global economy generally performed well during the
reporting year, despite the geo-political headwinds and
uncertain economic atmosphere. 2018 was a year of
growth in Macau with gross gaming revenue increased by
14% year-on-year, while the travel and tourism industry
remained as one of the world’s largest industries in terms
of economic contribution. With our continued diligent
effort, our travel business made remarkable progress in its
operations in 2018, and our investment property portfolio
in prime locations was further enriched; our flagship
investment project, Ponte 16 also delivered fruitful results.
This balanced and well-diversified business composition
continued to deliver healthy performance with long-term
value to the Group.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT WITH A
SOLID FOUNDATION

Macau gaming industry demonstrated strong resilience
and showed signs of stabilisation with the positive growth
maintained in 2018. Along with the development of new
integrated resorts in Cotai and continuous addition of
non-gaming elements, the growing affluence of Asian
travellers and strong visitation to Macau keep on driving
the increasing demand for gaming products and
supporting the realisation of Macau'’s position as a world
centre of tourism and leisure.

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ER|E (&)

BHEENRR :

AAMRARREZEREREBRAATAR
Al ERENBARSHEIAEE])E
Ze((EFg)) REXARABE-F
—N\FE+ZA=+—HIFENFR -

& E AR BURE ) R T B R R
R EREEBENBREFEANERREAR
i o T \FRRMMIEREF - BEE
WARRE EF14% - ik 82 R B 3 4
KENBERMNEE2REANITEZ — < &
EIMBNTE - SERRE R 2 ER
T\ FERENES  WE—FEE
THRANNESHEMNRENRES =
REBEMOEERERR T8N HRKE
ERIRR - B R ST XA
BRAKEGERIBRORIR  AEREE
18 e

BEREESVHERR

RZT—)\F  BFIBEERBELRIN
RESHERFEEIER  2RETR - BBE
BHHEaERNNERLFBY TE
EVRFEIE N - I LR EF AR EW AR
REVFHRPT - UESHERE RO T LA
BA - BB RIS E R R E R R
DEVHBAL o
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ER|E (&)

The Group believes the demand for leisure, tourism and
travel from Asia and China will continue to grow. Ponte
16 is committed to providing a unique mix of travel and
entertainment experiences for guests, and to acquiring all
the necessary qualities to stay ahead in the competition.
Capitalising on its competitive strengths in offering high-
quality gaming, hospitality and entertainment experiences,
Ponte 16 outperformed the overall Macau gaming industry
during 2018 and is well-positioned for the future growth.

2019 marks the 20th anniversary of returning to the
motherland, the Macau economy is expected to show
continuous expansion in the coming year on the back of
the Greater Bay Area development and the major
infrastructures that improve cross-border transport
connectivity. To uphold its leading position as a casino-
entertainment resort located in the exclusive Inner Harbour
of Macau, Ponte 16 has a clearly defined growth
development pipeline by moving forward with a new
phase development project to further enrich the integrated
resort’s gaming and entertainment offerings.

EXPLORATION IN A THRIVING MARKET

Radical shifts in consumer behavior and preferences have
been shaking up the travel and tourism industry over the
years, while the online travel market is gaining higher
grounds with the intense percolation of the internet, the
rising use of mobile devices, as well as the back-up by
e-commerce industry. We believe that this global thriving
market will continue its growth momentum in the coming
years. Jade Travel commenced collaborations with large
online travel directories and continued to explore this
growing market. Owing to the solid foundation it has built
over the years and its endeavour in 2018, Jade Travel has
developed trusted business relationships with a large
variety of online travel portals and directories, which
enable to deepen the penetration of its travel products by
reaching out to more cities and connecting with a much
broader customer base.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

AEBMEE - REPBEAETMOKE
BUE MR R KSR LT - BB
RERRMB SR RE MRS B
YHREMAERFHEFEDBENRTE -
TR ZRMEEIHVIRE  BERE
FIRGERBNBEFEE  R-F—/\FH
RIENBERRMIBEE  WARKIER
TELf 74

TE-NFEREFRMAERER —+B
FBREEEANEBRER  URBHERE
TEEENE - RHIRPIRERF S
TR - /IRFERFIRBREE RITHIE
Eih - +/OHC AR ERER - T
BRIERZEROFEE  #iE—SE=
fre EENFTREMIBEY MREER -

FRAEDRBNTES

BEBFHEETRAMETSREE - B
IRERBHETRENTE - N EEBHE
MZELFE  BERMBENERMRB YT
® - AREFEBITENIE @ LKkiE
MEHNEZHAMmMBA#HRES - HMEE -
FIREDEROIKE TS RFFEER
FHE R GE o Jade Travel B 2 % (& KA
WERBEFEEE WEEMMILH R
RHO™MG - REELZFRBLMBEER
R ZZF—N\FAEHML S - Jade Travel
HEZEREAGNRFERBLENER
R EREEZHmEkEREEINRR
B IR HIREEE mMAZE S o



We believe the online travel market is expanding
exponentially worldwide where technology advancement
and product innovations will help to amplify our market
presence. To better cater to the changing customers’
demand, Jade Travel has made continuous efforts in the
areas of online platform development, product innovation,
service quality, precision marketing and refined
management. We are confident that Jade Travel’s
unwavering efforts will be paid off in the near future for it
is the right direction to build an even bigger brand in the
travel territory for long-term development.

RETURN FROM LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

The office leasing market in Hong Kong remained
favourable in 2018 and continued to achieve steady rental
income growth and high occupancy rate. We believe that
the property market in Hong Kong will continue to achieve
modest growth in rental in most of the areas and record
an upward trend in property value, in particular of central
business districts. The Group will continue with a selective
and focused approach to seek investment opportunities in
prime locations in Hong Kong, thus providing us capital
appreciation potential in a longer term, as well as steady
recurring rental income.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business
partners for their continuous support and trust, and thank
my fellow directors for their concerted effort and insights
through the past years. These achievements would not be
attained without the efforts from the Group’s management
team and the unwavering commitment of our staff. Please
allow me to express my sincere appreciation to our
management team and staff for their dedication and
commitment.

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2019

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ER|E (&)

BB - W LIRS ER 2B RE
X MEGE S R E MBS A BRI
A - BUEZENEFHT K
Jade Travel A8 EF &% - EMEIFT -
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFWN DM

OVERVIEW

Despite several significant headwinds occurred in 2018,
including trade wars, volatility in the financial markets,
monetary policies and Brexit negotiation, which
undermined the global economic growth momentum, the
Macau gaming industry has recorded a sustainable healthy
growth, and the global tourism sector also reported a
positive growth in 2018. On the back of these positive
market developments, the Group remains confident in the
outlook of the economy and will continue to stay at the
forefront of the market against a rapidly changing and
challenging business environment to drive sustainable
growth and profit for the Group.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements and the related
notes included in this annual report.

BmE

BEZRERNEEEBR - —)\F
EIHEHE  2MIBED  WERER
REBEH S S BFIARELE - RPT
B R NSRS HEBROEE - TR
BEH -\ FRGEERE - T8
WS FEEEANEE - AEEREY
EENRRRHED  WERSBE RN
B E IR RIS - A
£ B THER R TR -

PATR & o B B R 3R AT 8L 2 4R 2 B 15 ¥
=N AERAM FE — G RIE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue from
continuing operations of the Group was approximately
HK$1,120.3 million, increased by approximately 90% from
approximately HK$589.9 million for the last corresponding
year. Gross profit increased by approximately 71% to
approximately HK$34.4 million (2017: approximately
HK$20.1 million). The Group’s shared profit of the
associates relating to Ponte 16, the flagship investment
project of the Group (the “Associates”), for the year of
2018 was approximately HK$68.1 million, whereas a loss
of the Associates of approximately HK$9.9 million was
shared by the Group for the last year. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the reporting year amounted
to approximately HK$54.5 million (2017: loss of
approximately HK$29.8 million), whilst earnings per share
was 1.11 HK cents (2017: earnings per share from
continuing operations was 0.16 HK cents).

Turnaround from loss to profit was mainly attributable to
(i) the Group shared a profit of the Associates for the year
while a loss of the Associates was shared by the Group for
the last corresponding year; and (ii) the non-recurrence of
a loss from discontinued operation for the last
corresponding year due to the disposal of the lottery
business in 2017, notwithstanding that there was a
decrease in fair value gain on investment properties of the
Group.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid in 2018 (2017: nil). The
directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) do not
recommend any payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) \
EEBNWKk DN (E)

Travel Business
\}_ AY Sz

Fie 3% 3 75

With the strong brand reputation in both retail and wholesale businesses,

Jade Travel has been extending business footprints via its online booking
service platform.

BRENTELMBERB TR ARBEEZEE - Jade Travel FBEM ETART IR
FRBEREBE -

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{=IR AR A 7



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Travel Business

The Group operates Jade Travel Ltd. (“Jade Travel”), one
of the largest travel agencies in Canada, which has
developed dedicated segments to better serve the needs
of wholesale and retail markets, as well as to provide the
most suitable services and products to customers. This
allows Jade Travel to better allocate resources and support
both leisure travel business and corporate travel segments.

EHROE

MR ER

N &£ E & 2 #Jade Travel Ltd. ([Jade
Travel]) B IIERFEAMIKITIAZ — + &
EEENHUER R HBERETE
MENFX - WREFRERE ENRS
K EE i © Jade Travel BE#E IE 5 B 2 75 i
BIR - AR IR 2 5 7% R b IR

#B e
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

With the growth of internet and emerging travel trends,
Jade Travel has been enhancing its online booking service
platform to cater more retail and corporate customers’
needs and working closely with the leading regional and
international online travel portals, including the most well-
known and widely-used portals in China. This is helpful to
the penetration of Jade Travel’'s broad range of travel
products and expansion of its business footprints.

To capitalise on the increasing demand for leisure travel,
Jade Travel is constantly enhancing its travel product mix
which can be tailored to customers’ specific needs,
including in-depth and unique travel experiences with
extra fine delicacies and entertainment arrangements.
During the reporting year, the travel business was able to
turn loss into profit, which is attributable to strategic
initiatives deployed by management in an effort to evolve
the business and focus on the market needs.

Revenue of the segment increased to approximately
HK$1,090.2 million, substantially increased by
approximately 87% for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: approximately HK$583.4 million). Profit in this
segment amounted to approximately HK$2.0 million

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{ZRI AR A T
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Travel Business (continued)

(2017: loss of approximately HK$15.7 million), including
reversal of impairment loss on intangible assets of
approximately HK$3.2 million (2017: impairment loss on
intangible assets of approximately HK$4.6 million) which
was recognised for the reporting year.

In November 2018, 1338 Successful Venture Ltd. (1338
SV"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as purchaser, entered into a share purchase agreement
with a company, as vendor, which is the holder of 25% of
all outstanding and issued shares of 665127 British
Columbia Ltd. ("665127 BC" being a company indirectly
holds the entire shareholding interests in Jade Travel) to
purchase and accept the assignment of (i) 25% of all
outstanding and issued shares of 665127 BC; and (ii) the
entire amount of the shareholder’s loans owing by
665127 BC to the vendor at a total consideration of
CAD1,370,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,184,000)
("Acquisition of 25% of 665127 BC"). The said acquisition
was completed in end of November 2018 and Jade Travel
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company upon completion. Details please refer to the
announcement dated 9 November 2018 issued by the
Company.

FoE (&)

MREEER (E)

15,700,0007T) * BREARHREFENER
CEFEEREEBBEDNEE
3,200,000t ( —ZE—+F: EFEEER
BB B #7855 4,600,000 7T) ©

RZZE—NFE+—A ARa—EEE:
& Bt B A 7] 1338 Successful Venture Ltd.
(1338 SV IERES - E—MHAaER
& 7 (¥ B 665127 British Columbia Ltd.
([665127 BCJ » —fEIE #4575 Jade Travel
EHBENLDR) FIBEBEITEINRBEETT
B fn 2 25% ) B BIEE RXE())
665127 BC AT B BTN EBITIRD 2
25% : K (i) 665127 BCAARE H 2 IR
EREEFIA - 28/ 1,370,000 11T
(182 A #) 7 #8,184,0007T ) ([ Y B&
665127 BC 2 25% )EI L RHEEE sk o
FHWBEEEER - \F+—AK
AKX 1 Jade Travel Rz W EE Ak 1B B &
AAF—fEEE2ENBAR - #FEHE2
MARRR-_Z—NFE+—ANLBFE
SO/
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN Wk DN (F)

Property Investment Business
MEREFT

The Group builds up its investment property portfolio in prime locations,
generating a steadily growing income stream and capital appreciation

potential.
REERESMEBREVREMZAESG EFRIIETERNBRARIRLREARIEE
&7 e
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business

The Group has built an investment portfolio of commercial
properties in prime locations in Hong Kong for steady
rental income and capital appreciation potential in a
longer term. During the reporting year, the Group
completed the acquisitions of several commercial
properties in Eastern Commercial Centre, Wanchai, two
commercial properties in Admiralty Centre (the “Properties
in Admiralty Centre”) and a commercial property in
Sunshine Plaza, Wanchai (the “Property in Sunshine
Plaza"). For details of the acquisition of the Properties in
Admiralty Centre, please refer to the announcement dated
13 February 2018 and the circular dated 6 April 2018 both
issued by the Company. For details of the acquisition of
the Property in Sunshine Plaza, please refer to the
announcement dated 23 August 2018 issued by the
Company. In late 2018, the Group disposed of certain
commercial properties in Eastern Commercial Centre
("Disposal of the Properties”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Investment Business (continued)
Revenue of the property investment business for the
reporting year amounted to approximately HK$30.1
million, representing an increase of approximately 362%
as compared with approximately HK$6.5 million for the
last corresponding year, while segment profit was
approximately HK$37.7 million (2017: approximately
HK$83.4 million) which was mainly due to gain on
Disposal of the Properties of approximately HK$6.0 million
(2017: nil) and recognition of a fair value gain on
investment properties of approximately HK$27.3 million
(2017: approximately HK$79.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEEBNWKR DN (E)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEBNWKk DN (E)

Investment Project — Ponte 16
REBR—T"H

The Group believes the mass market will be the most potential for a
sustainable growth, and Ponte 16 will continue to enrich the spectrum of
entertainment experience, upholding its leading position in the Inner
Harbour of Macau.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENWR DN (&)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16

The Macau gaming industry continued to rebound with
gross gaming revenue in the sector reaching approximately
MOP302.9 billion for the year ended 31 December 2018,
representing an approximately 14% increase year-on-year
("yoy"). The Macao Government Tourism Office reported
that the overall visitation in 2018 was up by approximately
10% yoy to approximately 35.8 million. The opening of
the Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge is expected to
further enhance the accessibility to Macau, attracting
visitors from Hong Kong, including international visitors
using the Hong Kong International Airport, and visitors
from the eastern part of Guangdong province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

With the significant increase in the number of tourists
visiting Macau, Ponte 16 has been able to maintain its
competitiveness and deliver comprehensive entertainment
experiences, as well as to uphold its leading position in the
Inner Harbour of Macau. Ponte 16’s exclusive location next
to the World Heritage Site recognised by the United
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation
and its easy accessibility to tourism clusters constantly
attract travellers who love embracing Macau's prolific local
cultures and history.

As at 31 December 2018, the casino of Ponte 16 had 109
gaming tables, consisting of 97 mass gaming tables, 7
high-limit tables and 5 VIP tables, maintaining a balanced
mix to cater for the need of the market. Adjusted EBITDA*
for the reporting year increased by approximately 58% to
approximately HK$356.7 million (2017: approximately
HK$225.3 million). The average occupancy rate of Sofitel
Macau At Ponte 16 achieved over 90% in 2018.

* Adjusted EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation
and Amortisation (and excluded interest income from the pledged

bank deposit)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)
Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 received 20 honourable
international and regional awards as of 31 December 2018,
including “Luxury Romantic Hotel” by 2018 World Luxury
Hotel Awards, “Certificate of Excellence 2018" by
TripAdvisor, “Most Wanted Award” by Hotels.com Loved
by Guests Awards 2018, “Customer Satisfaction Award” by
Rakuten Travel, “Certificate of Popularity for the Year 2017
— Mistral Restaurant” by Mei Tuan and Dian Ping, and
“Unique Luxury Hotel of the Year — China” by The Luxury
Travel Guide Awards 2018 and more. Privé was awarded
“Ctrip Gourmet Award” by Ctrip and “U Favorite Food
Awards 2018 — My Favorite Hotel Restaurant Award
(Macau)” by U Magazine, and So SPA was awarded with
“Asia’s Top Wellness Spa” and “Asia’s Top Spa Hotel &
Resort” by NOW Travel Asia Awards 2018, and “Spa Hotel
of the Year” by Sohu Hotel Award 2018. The above awards
highly recognised the superior international standard and
quality offered by Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16.

With the deep roots in the local community, Ponte 16
takes a proactive approach to address the challenges in
sustainability faced by its hotel and entertainment
businesses, and is committed to improving its
environmental performance along the sustainability
journey. Sofitel Macau At Ponte 16 has been following the
hotel’s Environmental Policy that compliance with the
requests of 1ISO 14001 standard, aiming at continuous
improvement in energy usage, water consumption, waste
and emissions reduction. It has earned wide recognition
for environmental performance and was granted
“Environmental Performance — Gold Award” by Business
Awards of Macau 2018. Ponte 16 is also committed to
enlivening the arts and cultural scene in Macau, by hosting
online magazine “Macau Hotspot P16"” which guides
travellers to discover the inner beauty of Macau, and
setting up the “Youth’s Stage” at its outdoor plaza for
young performers to showcase their talents.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Investment Project — Ponte 16 (continued)

To comply with the full enactment of smoking ban on
casinos starting from 1 January 2019, Ponte 16 was the
first property to have a smoking lounge approved by the
Macau government authorities, establishing an industry
benchmark. It also supports in developing a culture of
responsible gaming in accordance with the rules and
regulations of Macau, by upholding related policies and
practices during daily operations.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$23.0 million (31 December
2017: approximately HK$160.7 million) and net assets of
approximately HK$1,068.1 million (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$997.9 million). The Group adopts a
conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
monitoring the trade receivables of its customers on an
ongoing basis. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitors the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and
commitments can meet its funding requirements.
Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s transactional
currency are Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Canadian
dollars (“CAD") as substantially all the revenues are in HK$
and CAD. The Group's transactional foreign exchange
exposure was insignificant.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

o RE (&)

REERB — T8 @)
REBTA-ZE-NF-A-BEEEN
RS 2EBERTE » TVBRBERR
FEORFIBUT BRPIRT A IE =RV AREESS - 2
MATEREE o +R TN A RPIE RG]
EH O BEBEREETEERERRNME
% UXRHEE A B ENBE XL

g JEI)

REBES - MBERRELRERE

RZEBE—N\F+-_A=+—H K&EEZ
MEYE EFEK B 23,000,000 T (=F
—+tE+ - A=+—8B: B
160,700,0007T ) MEE FEHN B K
1,068,100,0007t( — & — £ F + = A
=+—H: #£#8%997,900,0007T) ° A

SERBRT ZEBHBE - ORI EE
BHEPZRWE SRS  UWREEER
2 - REERBECAR EFSTYE
BRAKEZRBERIRN - AERAEE

HEE AESAEERZ RBIEESE -
NENEREFR - BAl - AEBELER
BASNE R 2 ¥R - REBMBEEA
W bABE (1785 1) R ([ ncl)
FHE BAKRE 2 X5 EETERBE RN
T e REBEER S FPIAR Z SMNE R
e



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr.
Yeung”, being the Chairman of the Board, an executive
Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company)
provided a HK$200 million term loan facility to the
Company which is unsecured and charged with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited.
The principal amount of the loan facility was increased up
to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 (the “Revised Mr.
Yeung’s Loan Facility”) and the final repayment date of
the loan and all other sums owing to Mr. Yeung under the
Revised Mr. Yeung’s Loan Facility was further extended
from 31 October 2018 to 31 October 2020 by a
supplemental letter of agreement dated 12 September
2018. As at 31 December 2018, the Company had owed
to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility
in amount of HK$39.0 million (31 December 2017: nil).

The Group’s secured bank facility in the amount of
HK$122.5 million bears interest at Hong Kong interbank
offered rate (HIBOR) plus a margin that was reduced from
2% per annum to 1.7% per annum during the year. In
addition, the Group further obtained a secured bank
facility in the amount of HK$100.0 million which bears
interest at Hong Kong interbank offered rate (HIBOR) plus
1.75% per annum. The proceeds of the facilities were for
the Group's general operation. As at 31 December 2018,
the outstanding bank loans were approximately HK$222.5
million (31 December 2017: nil).

Referring to aforesaid Acquisition of 25% of 665127 BC, a
loan from non-controlling shareholder of approximately
CAD4.3 million, equivalent to approximately HK$25.2
million had been assigned to 1338 SV during the reporting
year, details please refer to the announcement dated 9
November 2018 issued by the Company. For the last
corresponding year, a loan from non-controlling
shareholder was approximately CAD4.3 million, equivalent
to approximately HK$27.2 million. That loan was interest-
free and unsecured.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
(continued)

As at 31 December 2018, total equity attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$1,068.1
million (31 December 2017: approximately HK$1,010.6
million). The gearing ratio, which was measured on the
basis of the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group over
total equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
approximately 25% as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: 0%).

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had secured the
following assets:

(a) the Group pledged the time deposits of approximately
CAD1.6 million and USDO.1 million, totally equivalent
to approximately HK$10.0 million (31 December 2017:
approximately CAD1.5 million and USDO.1 million,
totally equivalent to approximately HK$10.1 million) to
certain banks for the issuance of a standby letter of
credit and overdraft facility of approximately CAD1.5
million and a standby letter of credit of approximately
USDO0.1 million, totally equivalent to approximately
HK$9.3 million (31 December 2017: a standby letter
of credit and overdraft facility of approximately
CAD1.5 million and a standby letter of credit of
approximately USDO.1 million, totally equivalent to
approximately HK$10.0 million) for the operation of
the Group;

(b) World Fortune Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, pledged all (31 December
2017: all) of its shares in Pier 16 — Property
Development Limited (“Pier 16 — Property
Development”, an associate of the Group) to a bank
in respect of the loan facilities granted to Pier 16 —
Property Development (the “Loan Facilities”); and
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Pledge of Assets (continued)

(c) the Group pledged all (31 December 2017: one) of
its investment properties with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$443.6 million (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$269.0 million) to secure against
the bank loans granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Company gave a corporate guarantee (the
“Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the Loan Facilities.
The maximum guarantee amount borne by the Company
under the Guarantee was HK$490 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$435.0 million (31
December 2017: approximately HK$635.0 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 109
employees. Remuneration is determined on the basis of
qualifications, experience, responsibilities and
performance. In addition to the basic remuneration, staff
benefits include medical insurance and retirement benefits.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees
of the Group as a long-term incentive.

PROSPECTS

Although pressures from external uncertainties may pose
downside risks to the projection of economic growth,
China is expected to have proactive policies that alleviate
economic downside risks arising from international trade
issues and maintain its economy on a stable and healthy
track. Leveraging the extensive experience in
entertainment and tourist-related industries, the Group
will adopt a forward-looking approach to the formulation
and implementation of corporate strategy, and do its
utmost to grasp the opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWE DN (F)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Given Macau’s growth momentum, infrastructure
developments and sound government policies, the Group
is confident of the prospects of the city. The opening of
the Hong Kong — Zhuhai — Macau Bridge and ongoing
developments of Cotai and Henggin Island, together with
the continuous growth of China outbound tourism, would
support the development of Macau as a global tourism
destination. In view of this, the Group believes the mass
market will be the most potential for a sustainable growth
in the future, and Ponte 16 will continue to offer
preeminent accommodation experience with distinctive
cultural connotation, as well as to enrich the spectrum of
its comprehensive entertainment facilities and initiatives.
Ponte 16 will uphold its leading position as a casino-
entertainment resort located in the exclusive Inner Harbour
of Macau.

With the strong brand reputation in both retail and
wholesale businesses, Jade Travel has been extending its
business footprints to possible geographical locations via
its own online platform. For the wholesale business, Jade
Travel's online ticketing fulfilment services for travel
agencies is expected to maintain a steady growth in 2019,
with the ongoing advancement of the automated ticketing
system and exploration of strategic collaborations with
leading domestic and international travel portals. In
addition, Jade Travel will put more weight on designing
packages and local tours to destinations all over the world,
addressing the retail travellers’ diverse interests.

Given its role as a world-class business hub, the growing
momentum of commercial property value and rental in
Hong Kong is expected to continue, particularly in the key
districts. The Group has further disposed of certain
commercial properties in Eastern Commercial Centre in
January 2019. The Group will continue to explore good
opportunity to build up its investment property portfolio in
prime locations, generating a steadily growing income
stream and capital appreciation potential to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

Looking forward to 2019, the Group will continue to
strengthen its competitiveness in the entertainment and
tourist-related industries and review its investment
property portfolio, with an endeavor to create long-term
value for its stakeholders. The Group will also react
confidently to the market's movements and take more
proactive steps to keep up with the evolving marketplace,
in order to create long-term sustainable value for
shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintain high corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to enhance
the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
("Director(s)”), the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each of
whom has confirmed his/her compliance with the required
standard set out in the Code of Conduct and the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”), led by its chairman
(the “Chairman”), Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is
responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs, considering and approving strategic
plans and major corporate matters, as well as reviewing
operational and financial performance. The Board is
committed to make decisions in the best interests of both
the Company and its shareholders (“Shareholders”).
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently consists of six members, including two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
(Chairman) and Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy
Chairman); a non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle (“NED"); and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung,
Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose and Mr. Chong Ming
Yu (collectively “INEDs” or each of them “INED"). All
Directors, including the NED and all INEDs, have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The Board is also characterised by
diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, age,
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and/or independence. A list of Directors
identifying their role and function is available on the
Company’s website and on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Directors’ biographical information is set out in the
biographical details of Directors and senior management
on pages 99 to 103 of this annual report.

The roles of the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman who
performs the function of chief executive are segregated
and assumed by separate individuals to strike a balance of
power and authority so that power and job responsibilities
are not concentrated in any one individual of the Board.
The Chairman, Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company, while the
Deputy Chairman, Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategies
regarding the business development of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) as well as
managing the Group’s businesses and operations. The
functions and responsibilities between the Chairman and
the Deputy Chairman are clearly segregated.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Except that Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman is the nephew of
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, there is no financial, business, family and/or
other material/relevant relationship among members of
the Board and between the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman who performs the function of chief executive.

The Board includes three INEDs and one of them, Mr.
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, is a certified public accountant
(practising) and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as
well as a certified tax adviser and a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 32 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and taxation.

The NED and all INEDs entered into service contracts with
the Company for a term of one year. All executive
Directors also entered into service contracts with the
Company without specific term of office. Pursuant to the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), all Directors
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company (in case of
filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (in case of an addition to
the number of Directors) after their appointment and the
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. In addition,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation
such that all Directors should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and
when required. Notices of at least 14 days are given to all
Directors for all regular Board meetings. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman in preparing the agendas for the
meetings and all Directors are consulted to include any
matters in the agendas. Agenda and accompanying board
papers are given to all Directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the appointed date of each meeting.

During the year under review, four regular Board meetings
and seven non-regular Board meetings were held. Details

ERERRE (F)

Exe (&)

EEENFEAERYNEFTERETT
S ARFTAESEEREREENE
BEFULELTHEBH - ARFZA
AME(RARRE D WHEREEESH
i WAARRESUSEMEEMA
EIEN - RELENR cEFegRTE
ERTRNBREZETRTHAMED
“REAEERES -

REBEFEAERTHAEZEERS
BLERESEHERGR - EFHFL

of attendance of the Directors at the said Board meetings MEFSER ZCSFEENIT -
are set out below:
Number of
Board meetings
attended/held
HEEESSR I8
Directors BE= BITEEEEINH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman) BB E (FE) 6/11
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman) BEB(5EE) 10/11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle gyt et 11/11
Independent non-executive Directors BYFEHTES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREX T 9/11
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose 23 & s 11/Mm
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRMEE 11/11

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ¥R

37



38

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, an annual general meeting
and a special general meeting were held. Details of
attendance of the Directors at the said general meetings
are set out below:

Exe (&)
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Number of general
meetings attended/held

HERRAERE,
BITRRAGRH
Annual Special
general general
meeting meeting
Directors BEx BRRBAFAE RRBHIKE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny BERTE (E/E) 171 0/1
(Chairman)
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman B gt (BlEE) 11 01
(Deputy Chairman)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle Ly eSSt 11 11
Independent non-executive Directors BUFEHTES
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZL 1/ 11
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose FEPE St 1/1 1/1
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HamTE 171 11

The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense, to
assist them in performing their duties. All Directors are
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
financial position and prospects to keep the Directors
abreast of the Group’s affairs in order to discharge their
duties. All Directors are also updated from time to time on
major changes/material developments in the laws, rules
and regulations applicable to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the contribution required from each of the Directors
to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company was
appropriate and each of the Directors has given sufficient
time to perform his/her responsibilities. The Directors have
informed the Company in a timely manner of any change
in the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant
commitments. Each of the Directors discloses semi-
annually to the Company the identity and nature of office
he/she holds in the public companies or organisations as
well as an indication of the time involved.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive formal induction covering the Group's
businesses as well as the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company. To assist the
Directors to participate in continuous professional
development, the Company arranges and funds suitable
training to the Directors to update and enhance their
knowledge and skills for performing the Directors’ roles
and responsibilities. During the year under review, all
Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, Dr.
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, Ms.
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose
and Mr. Chong Ming Yu, were furnished with materials
regarding directors’ roles and duties, corporate governance
as well as applicable laws, rules and regulations updates,
and also attended an in-house seminar regarding updates
on corporate governance organised by the Company. The
Directors are also encouraged to attend training relevant
to their duties and responsibilities that they consider
appropriate. All Directors are requested to provide their
respective records of training to the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has established four Board committees, namely
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”)
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and
to assist in sharing the Board’s responsibilities. The Board
has reserved for its decision or consideration on matters
covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
changes of members of the Board and its committees,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and
other significant operational and financial matters. All the
Board committees have clear written terms of reference and
have to report to the Board regularly on their decisions and
recommendations. The day-to-day running of the Group,
including implementation of the strategies and plans
adopted by the Board and its committees, is delegated to
management with divisional heads responsible for different
aspects of the business/affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with
specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
for the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. In line
with the revised code provision C.3.2 of the CG Code
effective on 1 January 2019 regarding the extension of the
cooling off period from the current one-year period to a
two-year period for appointing a former partner of the
issuer’s audit firm as a member of the issuer’s audit
committee, the relevant membership requirement set out
in the terms of reference for the Audit Committee was
revised on 1 January 2019.

The Audit Committee currently consists of the NED and all
INEDs and is chaired by Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose who
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualification
as required under the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the
responsibility to perform the corporate governance duties
set out in the CG Code. During the year under review, the
primary duties of the Audit Committee included, inter alia,
monitoring integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and ensuring objectivity and credibility of
financial reporting, reviewing effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
(the "Risk Management and Internal Control Systems”),
overseeing the relationship with the external auditors of
the Company (“External Auditors”) as well as ensuring
maintenance of good corporate governance standard and
procedures by the Company.

During the year under review, three Audit Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the Audit
Committee members at the said Audit Committee
meetings are set out below:
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Number of
Audit Committee
meetings attended/held

HEEXZEEESR Y

Audit Committee members EREEERE BTERZEEERNE
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose ﬁ%ﬂé?éf‘ﬁi

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (FEZESFE) 3/3

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle oS ang ks 3/3

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZ T 3/3

Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBEE 3/3
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year included the following:

e  Reviewed the draft annual report and accounts as
well as the draft annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2017, and the draft
interim report and accounts as well as the draft
interim results announcement for the six months
ended 30 June 2018;

° Discussed with the External Auditors the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

e  Considered the re-appointment of the External
Auditors;

e Considered the engagement of an external
independent consultant to provide internal audit
function for the year ended 31 December 2018,
which comprises, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment, review on the internal control system of
the Group as well as review on the corporate
governance practices of the Company;

e  Reviewed the effectiveness of the Risk Management
and Internal Control Systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions;

e  Reviewed the continuing connected transaction of
the Company;

e Reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance

report contained in the annual report;

e  Considered the terms of engagement of the External
Auditors, including their proposed fees;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

e Reviewed the arrangements for the employees of the
Group (“Employees”) to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters;

e Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

e Reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of all Directors and the senior management
of the Company (”Senior Management”);

e Reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and

e  Reviewed the codes of conduct, policy, guidelines
and compliance manuals applicable to the Directors
and the Employees.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board with specific written terms of reference. The terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Company'’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann acts as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of all
Directors and Senior Management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy, to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and Senior
Management and also to make recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of the NED and all INEDs. The
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the
Senior Management.

During the year under review, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held and details of attendance
of the Remuneration Committee members at the said
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Remuneration Committee meetings are set out below:

Number of
Remuneration Committee
meetings attended/held
HEFHES SR RS
Remuneration Committee members FHEEERE BOFMEZESERRE

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BREZ T
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (FNZE=2E/E) 2/2
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny B E 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle ey s 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose %) & Silas 2/2
Mr. Chong Ming Yu HRBELE 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included the following:

e  Determined the remuneration package of newly
appointed Senior Management;

e  Reviewed the Company's remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and Senior Management;

e Reviewed and determined the remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and Senior
Management;

e  Reviewed the remuneration packages of the NED and
all INEDs;

° Reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all
executive Directors; and

e Considered the annual performance bonus for the
Senior Management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference for the Nomination Committee is available on
the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination Committee currently consists
of the Chairman of the Board, the NED and all INEDs with
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board annually, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on selection for
directorships, to assess the independence of INEDs, to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning of
Directors, as well as to review the Board diversity policy of
the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) as appropriate.
The duties of the Nomination Committee set out in its
terms of reference were revised on 1 January 2019 by,
inter alia, inclusion of duties to (i) review the policy for
nomination of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”) as
appropriate; and (ii) disclose the Nomination Policy in the
corporate governance report of the Company so as to
align with the revised mandatory disclosure requirement
L.(d)(ii) of the Corporate Governance Report in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules which came into effect on 1 January
2019.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance,
and will select candidates for the Board basing on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and independence (the “Measurable
Objectives”). The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the
Measurable Objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy by considering the Company’s business
model and specific needs from time to time and will
recommend any revision thereof, if necessary, to the Board
for consideration and approval.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets
out the process of identification, selection and evaluation
of a candidate for election to the Board. Where a vacancy
on the Board exists or an additional Director is considered
necessary, the Nomination Committee will solicit
recommendations for candidates from any source it deems
appropriate, including referrals from members of the Board
and management of the Company or recommendations
from personnel agents. The Nomination Committee will
evaluate the candidate by considering, inter alia, (i) the
candidate’s qualifications and contribution from the
candidate’s background, experience, specific qualities,
knowledge or skills; (i) the candidate on merit and against
the Measurable Objectives, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board; and (iii) the requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules, and it will also take into account of the
existing structure, size and composition of the Board
(collectively the “Criteria”). The Nomination Committee
will make recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee will also evaluate retiring
Directors who wish to continue their services on the Board
based on the Criteria and will make recommendation to
the Board for proposing re-election of the relevant
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, and will
also discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Nomination Committee members at the said Nomination
Committee meetings are set out below:

REZEE (A)
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Number of
Nomination Committee
meetings attended/held

HEREZEEEBERE
Nomination Committee members REZEEGHE BITREZEEEERE
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny B8 A
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (IBEZE2F/F) 2/2
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle gkt 2/2
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann BRIt 2/2
Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose oKL 2/2
Mr. Chong Ming Yu R E 2/2

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year included the following:

e  Considered the nomination of the retiring Directors
for re-election as Directors at the annual general

meeting held in 2018;

° Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

° Assessed the independence of all INEDs;
e Reviewed the Nomination Policy; and

e Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was established by the Board
with specific written terms of reference. It currently
consists of all executive Directors, namely Mr.
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny and Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman with
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny acts as the chairman of the
Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is
responsible for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any
matters concerning the day-to-day management, business
and operational affairs of the Company, and any matters
to be delegated to it by the Board from time to time.

During the year under review, nine Executive Committee
meetings were held and details of attendance of the
Executive Committee members at the said Executive
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===
Committee meetings are set out below:

Number of
Executive Committee
meetings attended/held
HEHRTEESEERRE
Executive Committee members HITZEERE BITPITEEEERNRE

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny 158K
(Chairman of the Executive Committee) (BiTZEEEF/E) 9/9
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman HiE g+ 9/9
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibilities for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks
(including environmental, social and governance-related
risks ("ESG-Related Risks”)) it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate
and effective Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems (including those for ESG-Related Risks) and
reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees
management in performing its duties. The Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems are designed
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatements or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems
and achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group adopts a risk management system which
manages the risk associated with its businesses and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

e  |dentification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement
of objectives.

e Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

e Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure

effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Company has in place an internal control system
which is compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO")
2013 framework. The COSO 2013 framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
components of the framework are shown as follows:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes
and structures that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement of
objectives are carried out.

Information and Communication: Internal and
external communication to provide the Group with
the information needed to carry out day-to-day
controls.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of internal
control is present and functioning.

A disclosure of inside information policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the Listing Rules. The policy regulates the handling
and dissemination of inside information, which includes:

Designated reporting channels from different
departments/operation units informing any potential
inside information to the Company Secretary;

The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

e  Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations;

e The Senior Management to evaluate the potential
inside information and to determine further
escalation, and the executive Directors to determine
disclosure as required; and

e The Deputy Chairman is the designated person who
speaks on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties, such as media, analysts or
investors.

During the year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in
possession of relevant expertise (the “Independent
Professional Firm”) to perform internal audit function for
the year, which comprised, inter alia, enterprise risk
assessment and reviews on the internal control system of
the Group, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The review plan was approved by the Audit
Committee and the Board. Based on the risk assessments
and the reviews of the internal control systems of the
Group conducted by the Independent Professional Firm for
the year, no significant risk and control deficiency was
identified. The relevant assessment and review reports
have been considered by the Audit Committee and the
Board for assessing the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function as well as the Company’s internal audit
function which was performed by the Independent
Professional Firm. The Board, through the reviews made by
the Independent Professional Firm and the Audit
Committee, concluded that the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems are effective and adequate for
the Group as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the External Auditors, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group is set out in the paragraph headed “Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” under the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 110 to 113 of this annual
report.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amounts paid
to the external auditors of the Group in respect of the
following services provided to the Group are as follows:
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1,185

Note: Other advisory services mainly comprised interim review services.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to provide clear and full
information of the Group to the Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars and
financial reports of the Company. Additional information,
such as press releases and other business information, is
also available and updated in a timely manner on the
Company's website at www.successug.com.

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the
Shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings. In 2018, an annual general meeting (the
“2018 AGM") and a special general meeting (the “2018
SGM") were held. The Chairman, also being the chairmen
of the Nomination Committee and the Executive
Committee, as well as the chairmen of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee were
present at the 2018 AGM to answer the Shareholders’
guestions. HLB also attended the 2018 AGM for the
purposes of answering questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’ report,
the accounting policies and auditors’ independence. The
2018 SGM was held for approving a connected transaction
which required independent Shareholders’ approval. The
chairman of the independent board committee was
present at the 2018 SGM to answer the independent
Shareholders’ questions.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantially separate issues, including the election of
individual Directors. Notices of at least 20 clear business
days and 10 clear business days are given to the
Shareholders for all annual general meetings (“AGM(s)")
and special general meetings (“SGM(s)") of the Company
respectively. Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are
clearly explained at the commencement of the general
meetings.

The Board has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy for the purposes of ensuring that the Shareholders
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
information about the Company, enabling the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner and allowing the Shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Details regarding the necessary
procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are set out in the “Procedures for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director”, which is available on the Company’s website.

In compliance with a new code provision E.1.5 of the CG
Code which came into effect on 1 January 2019, the
Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) on 1 January 2019. The Dividend Policy aims to set
out the principles as a reference for the Company to
determine dividend distribution so as to allow the
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
preserving liquidity of the Group to capture future growth
opportunities. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed by the
Board from time to time and any revisions thereof will be
made as appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (&)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes is the Company Secretary. Her
biographical information is set out in the sub-paragraph
headed “Company Secretary” under the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on page 103 of this annual report.

During the year under review, in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a SGM

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call SGMs, and Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require a SGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
(the “Head Office”) at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great
Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to call the SGM and include
the resolution in the agenda for such SGM.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Convening a SGM (Continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or a SGM, the
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with the detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Head Office at Suite 1601-2 &
8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at AGM or SGM varies according to the nature
of the proposal, as follows:

(@ Not less than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 20
clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an AGM and not less
than 21 clear days’ notice or not less than 10 clear
business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in writing
if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of the
Company in any SGM; or

(b)  Not less than 14 clear days’ notice or not less than 10
clear business days’ notice (whichever is longer) in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in all other SGMs.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Shareholders’ enquiries

The Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. The Shareholders may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. The Shareholders
may also make enquiries to the Board in writing with their
contact information and deposit the enquiries at the Head
Office at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle Centre,
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the
Company’s memorandum of association and the Bye-laws.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) believes that
sustainable development is essential in achieving business
success. The Group is committed to developing a socially
responsible and environmentally friendly strategy in long-
term business operations.

REPORTING APPROACH

This Environment, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report
summarised actions and aspirations of the Group in ESG
to enable stakeholders to have better understanding on
the progress of the Group towards sustainability.

This report was prepared in accordance with the “comply
or explain” provisions of ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide"”) contained in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The Group reports its ESG-related measures
according to the four reporting principles: materiality,
guantitative, balance and consistency, while selected key
performance indicators (KPIs) that are categorised by the
ESG Guide as “recommended disclosures” were also
included for enhanced reporting. Information regarding
corporate governance is addressed in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 34 to 58 of this
annual report.

SCOPE OF REPORT

The scope of this report covered the operations of the
environmental and social performance of the Group’s
head office in Hong Kong and travel-related business in
Canada and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

Property investment business in Hong Kong has been
excluded from the scope of this report as certain office
premises of the property investment business were leased
out to the tenants for their respective business operations,
while Ponte 16 is not under the Company’s direct
operational control therefore excluded in this report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RBE - -HEeRERRE (E)

STAKEHOLDER'S ENGAGEMENT

The Group formulated its ESG strategy by identifying the
material environmental and social issues. Similar to last
year’'s approach, the Group has continued to engage
stakeholders and seek for their perspectives towards
sustainable business operations. During the reporting
period, the Group has conducted an ESG survey with
internal stakeholders to identify the material topics of its
business.

The survey contained 26 mutual environmental and social
material aspects that were identified under the assistance
of an independent consultancy company. Through the
analysis of collected responses, the Group has consolidated
the results and ranked the top three material environmental
and social aspects as below:

e Social aspect
o  Employee benefits and welfare
o Work environment
o Working hours

° Environment aspect
0 General waste management
o  Climate change and Greenhouse gas emissions
o Energy and electricity consumption and
efficiency

The Group would consider the identified material issues
into the long-term ESG management approaches and
operation, and will continue to engage stakeholder groups
and carry out materiality assessment in order to
consistently review and improve its sustainability
management in the reduction and elimination of
associated operational risks.

Stakeholders’ comments are valuable to the Group’s
continuous improvement in operations. Comments or
advice on this report and its contents are welcome by
e-mail to info@successug.com.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

CREATING A PEOPLE-ORIENTED CULTURE

Nourishing a Cohesive Team

Employees are the key driving force of business operation
which was critical to the Group's sustainable development.
In this regard, the Group values its employees and uphold
a people-oriented corporate culture in business operation,
striving to nourish a cohesive team by recruiting, attracting
and supporting the right people.

Attracting right candidate

As a way to attract talents, the Group provides employees
with competitive remuneration packages with reference to
local employment laws, market terms and individual
merits. In accordance with the relevant laws, the Group
offers paid holidays, reasonable working hours, retirement
scheme and medical care to all employees, as well as
discretionary bonuses, employee discount, food and travel
allowances for overtime work. Share options were also
granted to eligible employees as a long-term incentive to
praise their efforts.

Providing equal opportunity

In adoption of an equal-opportunity and non-
discriminatory recruitment approach during talent
acquisition, the Group recruits suitable candidates based
on their qualifications and experience without
discrimination, regardless of age, gender, race, religion
belief and physical disability. Identification and working
permits were verified to prevent employment of child or
forced labour. If any misuse of child or forced labour were
discovered, the Group would immediately intervene in the
infringement actions and provide compensation.

Developing talents

With the suitable employees on board, the Group would
provide ample opportunities for them to support their
personal and professional development. The Group
organises orientation for new hires to familiarise them
with the corporate culture, and to build a sense of
belongings and good relationship with other departments.
To further expand employees’ professional knowledge, the
Group encourages them to attend external training
courses to build up professional competency. The Group
also provides examination leaves for employees to acquire
professional accreditation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RiIE  HERERHRE ()

CREATING A PEOPLE-ORIENTED CULTURE
(CONTINUED)

Nourishing a Cohesive Team (continued)
Upholding corporate ethical image

Upholding an ethical corporate image, the Group is
committed to ensuring employees’ understanding of the
importance of business integrity. The Group communicates
its anti-corruption guidelines in accordance with relevant
regulations to all employees on potential issues relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. To
maintain high standards of business ethics, the Group
requires all employees to report any suspected cases
through whistle-blowing channels. Should there be
suspected case of corruption, the case would be
investigated to determine the validity and the subsequent
appropriate disciplinary actions.

Promoting Employees’ Well-Being

Adhering to its people-oriented corporate culture, the
Group cares about employees’ well-being and is dedicated
to creating a healthy and amicable working environment
as a way to improve employees’ health and further
enhance the team cohesiveness.

Working in a healthy and safe environment

As the majority of employees work in offices, the Group
strives to offer comfortable workplace and thus places
special emphasis on noise control, thermal comfort,
lighting and ergonomics in the design of office interior. Air
circulation and temperature control systems were installed
at offices to improve the indoor air quality, while smoking
was completely banned in the working area.

The Group exerts efforts to increase the awareness
concerning occupational safety by various measures, while
first-aid kits and Automated External Defibrillators (AED)
are available in the office and maintained regularly. During
the reporting period, the Group organised AED training
and fire drill to arouse employees’ safety awareness and
reduce risks and accidents in workplaces.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

CREATING A PEOPLE-ORIENTED CULTURE
(CONTINUED)

Promoting Employees’ Well-Being (continued)
Working in an amicable and friendly environment

In pursuance of an amicable working environment, the
Group promoted work-life balance through organising a
range of employee relations activities. As part of the
initiatives to encourage employee engagement and team
cohesion, the Group organised a series of festive and
birthday celebrations with employees, and showed
appreciation by giving out gifts on special occasions. The
Group believes that these activities can contribute to the
positive spirit and increase their sense of belongings.

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
MINDSET

Delivering Quality Services

With the contribution of the cohesive team, the Group
continues to develop its businesses with high service
quality, thus increasing its competitiveness and attaining a
more eminent status in the industries.

Safeguarding customers’ privacy

The Group believes that safeguarding the privacy of
customers’ personal data is critical in maintaining
customers’ satisfaction. With regard to the protection of
confidential information, the Group set up a principle in
employee handbook, and requires employees to protect all
confidential or sensitive information. The Group strictly
requires employees to handle all customer data carefully in
accordance with local laws and regulations. Employees
shall only collect necessary personal data and ensure the
information obtained was protected from unauthorised or
accidental access.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RiIE  HERERHRE ()

DEVELOPING A CUSTOMER-ORIENTED
MINDSET (CONTINUED)

Delivering Quality Services (continued)

Meeting customers’ expectation

The Group also pay attention to complaints as a way to
improve customers’ satisfaction. In case of complaint, the
Group will take the opportunity to review its service quality
for continuous improvement and raise employees’
awareness to prevent the recurrence of such issues.
Complaints received will be acknowledged, inspected, and
followed up properly. During the reporting period, the
Group did not receive any case of complaint.

Jade Travel is one of the largest travel agencies in Canada
and an accredited agent under the International Air
Transport Association (“IATA") accreditation, which served
as a seal of approval worldwide, and strives to provide
premium quality of tours and remarkable travel experience
to achieve customers’ satisfaction.

BRINGING A HARMONIOUS CULTURE TO
THE COMMUNITY

Serving The Society

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group cares
about its employees and is also committed to serving the
community through various charitable programmes,
making a sustainable contribution to the society. In
addition to corporate donations, the Group has taken
steps to encourage employees’ participation in volunteer
activities.

During the reporting period, the Group supported the
fundraising event and motivated employees participation
in “2018 Family Day"” organised by the Hong Kong Society
for the Protection of Children, for its charitable projects to
outreach single-parent families, low-income families, new
arrivals and ethnic minority families. For the 7th
consecutive year, the Group has been participating in the
Community Chest Dress Causal Day by encouraging
employees in the head office to contribute for a good
cause. In addition, the Group continued to take part in the
Tung Wah Flag Day for the enhancement of community
services.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

NURTURING AN ENVIRONMENTALLY
CONSCIOUS CULTURE

Integrating Sustainability Into Operation

The Group is committed to supporting sustainable
development, respecting and cherishing the natural
environment, and advocates the awareness of
environmental protection and cultivate green concept in
daily operations through the green policy and a series of
green measures. The Group aims to utilise the resources
efficiently and strives to reduce the environmental impact
brought by the Group operation.

The Group has established its environmental policy in
accordance with the relevant environmental laws during
the reporting period. Under the policy, a “Green Office
Guideline” has been formulated to implement the green
strategy for improving the efficiency of resources utilisation
and increasing environmental protection awareness among
its employees.

The Group also supports community events that promote
greener lifestyles and working environment, including the
“Earth Hour” campaign organised by an environmental
organisation, namely World Wide Fund For Nature in Hong
Kong (WWF) in 2018. In addition, the head office in Hong
Kong participated in the “Energy Saving Charter 2018"
and the "4Ts Charter” launched by the Environment
Bureau and the Electrical & Mechanical Services
Department. Under these charters, the Group pledged to
implement several eco-friendly measures in offices which
include maintaining a constant room temperature,
switching off electrical appliances when not in use and
purchasing energy efficient appliances.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RiIE  HERERHRE ()

NURTURING AN ENVIRONMENTALLY
CONSCIOUS CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Monitoring Energy Use and Emissions

Managing energy consumption and gas emission

The Group realises the impacts of energy consumption on
its environmental footprints, thus regularly monitored
direct and indirect greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission
generated by the consumption of electricity and fuel used
for office operations and transportation. The Group'’s fuel
consumption generated direct GHG emission, while
indirect GHG emission comes from purchasing electricity.

The Group has been using LED lights in the head office in
Hong Kong since 2016, as an effort to continue saving
energy and electricity. The replacement would technically
result in an electricity reduction of 10% when compared
to the use of conventional incandescent light bulbs. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group successfully
achieved a 35% reduction of electricity consumption
compared to last year.

Reducing Waste

For the operations that are primarily office-based, the
Group continues to encourage responsible waste
management by enhancing green purchasing and waste
reduction as stated in the environmental policy.

Establishing environmental guidelines

The Group has stipulated a set of green office guidelines
for all employees to follow. The guidelines introduced the
concept of “4Rs of Environmental Protection” (i.e. Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle and Replace) in the workplace as a measure
to better manage resource consumption. The guidelines
encourage employees to reduce the use of paper, reuse
stationeries and tableware, recycle office supplies.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

NURTURING AN ENVIRONMENTALLY
CONSCIOUS CULTURE (CONTINUED)

Reducing Waste (continued)

Procuring in a sustainable manner

Moreover, the Group encourages responsible and effective
practices throughout the supply chain, seeking
opportunities to purchase sustainable office supplies to
minimise waste and enhance recycling. The Group has
been using refillable stationeries and paper made from
sustainability managed and Forest Steward Council (FSC)
certified sources for the printing of annual and interim
reports since 2013. Besides, the Group has been
purchasing lighter paper in the head office since 2017 to
reduce paper consumption.

Managing waste

Apart from reducing wastes from source, the Group
supports the Recycling Scheme organised by the building
management office of the head office. Under the Scheme,
the Group also segregates fluorescent tubes, computers,
electronic components, printer cartridges and glass bottles
for recycling. In addition, travel business has been
participating in the recycling programmes promoted by
the respective city government by setting up recycling bins.

For non-disclosure of data of general waste and intensity,
the relevant data was not available as the respective
building management offices handled the waste disposal
of the head office and the travel business. The Group did
not produce any significant hazardous waste due to its
business nature.

LOOKING FORWARD

Sustainability is one of the most important elements for
stakeholders globally, hence the Group is committed to
strengthening the sustainability initiatives and reporting
practice. To fulfil this ongoing commitment, the Group will
continue to encourage its employees and the community
to cultivate green habits, provide high-quality services and
monitor its environmental footprints.

RiIE  HERERHRE ()

BHEARREEAE (&)

R ()

gHN - AEBEEREEmEBRRER
BREER  SRESBEARENRA
ERm  RPBEERDRINBREIRBA - A
SEHE T =-FHHEEAANEENX
ENKREAHEERERERMNEREZR
B ([FSCl) R AR AR ENFLF 3 I
HmE - BE  AEENARERITH -
T FRRBREMNRRARDIHER

=
E-°

EEEEY
BEEREARS, - AEESELHE
2 KB E BT ERA A - B
Wt EInG  AEEEE BB
FE IR RERIAEL S - (4
Wz o WSl - BRI E EIREIR
MRS ST BT RO RSB M -

RARE - REZRVNEERZENS -
HRARERMIREXRBHENEEH
FENANEERREE - Bt EiRfE
FAEUE - IR EHMEEMNBEER - AEEL
BELEMNERNGEREEY -

RE

ERBEHERATRERRARAEE
B BB - MUAE BB R ]
SERENSERREES - AEBEE
EHAE  AEEBEESRHES RHE
BEGEBIE RUEENRERESH
BRI -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 ¥R

67



68

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - SR ERKRE (H)

PERFORMANCE TABLE B
Environmental Performance RIEXRE

Indicator Remarks

EE B
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 5 % 5.8 8 ik *

Scope 1: Direct Emission Tonnes of CO, 37.74 38.76  Travel business in the PRC and certain
E: BEHER equivalent (tCO-e) number of offices in Canada were
R (R LRERE) excluded in Scope 2 “Indirect
Emission” whose electricity charges is
Scope 2: Indirect Emission tCOz-e 61.37 175.63  included in rent.
2 - FEHER A (ZEREE) mA R BRI RE LR R INEANSH
BEEMLOBEEE  HIE:
Total 1C0e 99.11 21439 gfg%ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ S
st D (Z&iRES)
GHG Intensity tCO-e/millions of 0.09 036 heamount of Scope 3 “Other
RERERE revenues (HK$) indirect GHG emission” was
AW (—Efr iR E) /) insignificant and not material to the
SEETCEE) If2% Group's operation, therefore the

relevant data was not disclosed.
#E3 7 [EbEEREREH R
HEERD BHASENEENS
VAEER @ R W ERES EESIE

Electricity Consumption ¥ EZE

Head office in Hong Kong kWh 69,783 72,927  Travel business in the PRC and certain
ERBNER TR number of offices in Canada were
. . excluded whose electricity charges is
Travel Business in Canada kWh 145,163 260,000  included in rent.
P P + 5 = NS A o
MERMEE TEE i R B R TS RS AR B
NERREDBREEE  KUES
Total consumption kWh 214,946 332,927 gﬁ&?fﬁiﬂ BRER - AR
AiEEs TR
Total intensity 000" kWh/millions of 0.19 0.56
BEE revenues (HK$)
JEﬁﬁﬁ/EEﬁ
(B s
Vehicle Fuel Consumption SEMMERE *
Head office in Hong Kong L 10,463 10,710 No fuel consumption in the office of
B RMER vl travel business in the PRC.
_ FR (B0 iR 4% 55 765 ) 317 =5 o I 1 8 FR A
Travel Business in Canada L 6,000 6,200 ¥l .
IEPNIFiE S vl
Total consumption L 16,463 16,910
BERE vl
Total intensity L/ millions of 14.70 28.66
BEE revenues (HK$)
#/8EAR
(B s

*  Some of the relevant data in 2017 were modified due to technical refinement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - RERKRE (F)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) EWR(E)
Environmental Performance (continued) IRIBRE (&)

Indicator i 2018 2017 Remarks

EE “E-N\E —E—+HF #HF

Water Consumption 3£KkE

Total m? N/A 20 Water was provided by municipal

fBET SR TER suppliers, the Group did not have any
significant issues in sourcing water.
The relevant data was not available as
the respective building management
offices managed all water utilities of
the head office and the travel
business.
HOKERFRE  REETESER
BUKIREIERE o 4808 5 5g K e ids 5 75
B HKBEAAEERRRERE
A AR A R -

The figure of 2017 represented water
consumed by the lottery business in
the PRC, which had been sold in
September 2017.

T FHFRPEVEEBNRE
KE  MEREBER-_Z—+FN

ALE

Hazardous Waste BEEZEY)

Total Tonnes N/A N/A The Group did not produce hazardous

FEET NI i A TiEA  waste in operation.
AEBWENEETELRERER
% o

Non-Hazardous Waste EZEZEY)

Total Tonnes N/A N/A The Group did not keep the record of

fBET YN TER A non-hazardous waste in operation

and may consider to establish a data
collection system in the future.
AEEY BRFEETEEREZYN
s RRIEBRIBBUESR

/%)zl.‘-: o
Packaging Material B#¥%
Total Tonnes N/A N/A The Group did not utilise packing
mEt NI FER M material in operation.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - SR ERKRE (H)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (CONTINUED) BEBWER(E)
Social Performance HExB
Indicator
5=
Health and Safety RERZZ
Total number of work-related fatalities No. of people 0 0
AT ERERE ML T A AR AEK
Lost Days due to work injury Days 0 0
ATIGERNITIERE HE
Anti-corruption RES
Number of concluded legal cases regarding  No. of case 0 0
corrupt practices XM E

EEENESHARFHE

Business Units

EBEN
Travel
The Business
Head Office in Canada &
Employment (no. of people) in Hong Kong the PRC
mEXR
fEE (A BRANEERE HEREXK
Total Number of Employees 51 58
EEAH
By Gender Male 15 14
5 ES]
Female 36 44
2zt
By Employment Type Senior Management 6 2
EREE Sl D SREEAB
Management 8 7
EEAR
Office Staff 29 49
MERBE
General Staff 8 0
—RELE
By Age Group <20 0 0
VASF iR 48 7l &l 95 21-30 3 12
31-40 12 13
41 -50 17 9
51-60 15 17
> 60 4 7
Turnover Rate 8% 18%
k=
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

COMPLIANCE TABLE

RiIE  HERERHRE ()

[
The Group strictly complied with the laws and regulations REBRIKEST Y& &R LD 05
in different aspects listed as follows:

Aspect
Lol

Al:

B1:

B4:

B2:

B6:

B7:

Emission

HER

Employment

&=

Labour Standards
% TIRA

Health and Safety
EREZ2

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Anti-corruption
R&EB

Laws and Regulation

SEBIR AR5

Waste Disposal Ordinance of Hong Kong
HER(BEMRE %D

The Canadian Environmental Protection Act

Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong
EERRBIEDD

Minimum Wage Ordinance of Hong Kong
BEB(HKELIE KD

Employee Compensation Ordinance of Hong Kong
FE(EEMEKRD)

Sex Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong
FB CERIBAR 551D

Race Discrimination Ordinance of Hong Kong
B CERRBAR D)

Canada Labour Standards Regulations
Employment Equity Act of Canada

Canada Labour Code

The Canadian Human Rights Act

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong
ERCBE T T REERGD)D
Occupational Health and Safety Act of Canada

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong
EEUEANER (RLER) f5&51)

Travel Industry Act of Canada

The Canadian Code of Advertising Standards

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong
EN RIS S Y
The Corruption of Foreign Public Officials Act of Canada

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 €38 71



72

Report of Directors
EEgWmE

The directors (“Director(s)”) of Success Universe Group
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in the travel-related
and property investment businesses during the year.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 8 to 11 and pages 13 to 33
respectively of this annual report as well as the following
sub-paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance”, “Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
and “Relationships with Key Stakeholders”.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group endeavors to attain long-term sustainable
development, and proactively determines ways to address
environmental, social and governance issues effectively in
the corporate decisions.

The Group upholds its principles of environmental friendly
practices by implementation of reducing, reusing, recycling
and replacing in its daily operations, and develops
initiatives to improve employee welfare and staff
development for betterment of working environment and
efficiency. The Group also believes in good corporate
citizenship and contributes to society by supporting various
charitable programmes.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 59 to 71 of this

annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group is committed to maintain a high level of
corporate compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements in respect of business and operations. During
the year, the Group’s operations were mainly carried out
by the Company’s subsidiaries in Canada, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong while the
Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and the
shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Group
accordingly should comply with relevant laws and
regulations in, inter alia, Canada, the PRC, Hong Kong and
Bermuda during the year.

As far as the board of Directors (the “Board”) is aware,
during the year and up to the date of this report, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on its business and operations.

Relationships with Key Stakeholders

The Group's success also depends on the support from its
key stakeholders which comprise, inter alia, employees,
business partners, suppliers and customers.

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets
of the Group. Therefore, the Group provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract, motivate and retain
employees for their continued contribution to the Group
and also encourages them by way of sponsorship to
attend training courses which help employees’ career
development.

Besides, the Group has developed and maintained solid and
steady relationships with its business partners and suppliers,
and provides high quality services to its customers so as to
enhance its competitiveness, sustainability and future
development.

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Report of Directors (Continued)

ESEHRE (HF)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 114 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2017: nil).
The Directors do not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held
on Friday, 14 June 2019 (the “2019 AGM"). For the
purpose of determining the shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 11
June 2019 to Friday, 14 June 2019, both days inclusive,
during such period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2019 AGM, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 10 June 2019 for registration.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended
31 December 2018 by business and geographical
segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A financial summary of the Group for the past five

financial years is set out on pages 311 and 312 of this
annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 118
and 119 of this annual report and note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the
Group during the year (2017: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT OR
SALE

Details of the properties held by the Group for investment
or sale as at 31 December 2018 are set out in notes 18
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
section headed “Particulars of Properties” on pages 313
and 314 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year. Details of the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the loans and borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in notes 27 to 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of Directors (Continued)

ESEHRE (HF)

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (Chairman)
Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Director (“NED"):
Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)"):
Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose

Mr. Chong Ming Yu

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle
("Mr. Choi”) and Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann (“Ms. Ann
Yeung”) shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the existing
INEDs, namely Ms. Ann Yeung, Mr. Chin Wing Lok,
Ambrose (“Mr. Chin”) and Mr. Chong Ming Yu (“Mr.
Chong”), an annual confirmation of her/his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and all of the said INEDs were considered to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Ann Yeung has served the Company as an INED for
more than 9 years. She has no financial, business, family
or other relationships with any other Directors, senior
management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders (“Controlling Shareholder(s)”) of the
Company. Ms. Ann Yeung has extensive experience and
knowledge in legal aspects and in-depth understanding of
the Group’'s operations and business. She has given
independent guidance to the Board over the years, and
she continues demonstrating a firm commitment to her
role. Ms. Ann Yeung exercised judgement in the best
interests of the Company when discharging her duties.
She is also the sole female member of the Board. The
nomination committee of the Board considers that the
long service of Ms. Ann Yeung will not affect her exercise
of independent judgement and is satisfied that Ms. Ann
Yeung has the required character, integrity and experience
to continue fulfilling the role of an INED and her gender,
educational background, professional experience and
knowledge can bring contributions to the Board’s diversity.
The Board therefore recommends the re-election of Ms.
Ann Yeung as an INED and a separate resolution in
relation to the said re-election will be proposed at the
2019 AGM.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The monthly salary of Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny (“Mr.
Yeung”), being an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board, was increased to HK$80,000 with effect from
1 November 2018.

The director’s fee of each of Mr. Choi, being a NED, Ms.
Ann Yeung, Mr. Chin and Mr. Chong, being all INEDs, was
increased to HK$144,000 per annum with effect from
1 January 2019.

Mr. Choi, being a NED, was appointed as a non-executive
independent director of Wealthbridge Acquisition Limited,
a company whose securities are listed on the NASDAQ
Capital Market in the United States of America, on 18
February 2019.
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ESEHRE (HF)

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the
information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules subsequent
to the date of the Interim Report 2018 of the Company
and up to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2019
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements. There has been no arrangement under which
a Director or a director of the subsidiaries of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of the duties in their respective
offices or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force indemnity provisions as permitted
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) for the benefit of the Directors and
directors/former directors of the subsidiaries of the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

)

On 1 December 2008, the Company as borrower and
Mr. Yeung, being the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director as well as a Controlling Shareholder,
as lender entered into a letter of agreement regarding
an unsecured term loan facility of up to HK$200
million (“Loan Facility”). The rate of interest on the
entire principal amount drawn and outstanding under
the Loan Facility was the prime rate quoted for Hong
Kong dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. On 14 April 2009, the
Company and Mr. Yeung entered into a supplemental
letter of agreement to increase the principal amount
of the Loan Facility up to HK$290 million (the “Revised
Loan Facility”) and to confirm that Mr. Yeung
undertook not to demand early repayment of the loan
and all other sums owing to him under the Revised
Loan Facility before 30 June 2010. The final repayment
date of the Revised Loan Facility (the “Final Repayment
Date”) was extended to (i) 30 June 2011 by a
supplemental letter of agreement dated 25 June 2009;
and (ii) 30 October 2012 by another supplemental
letter of agreement dated 23 June 2010.

On 15 March 2012, Mr. Yeung entered into a
supplemental letter of agreement with the Company
to further extend the Final Repayment Date to 31
October 2013 and to confirm that any amount repaid
under the Revised Loan Facility should be available to
further advances within the availability period of the
Revised Loan Facility.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/ BERS HERE 555/ E )

CONTINUING CONNECTED REBRKRRERRRS  ZHRE

TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND EENPZE KRR ()

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF

SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(1) (Continued) (m (&)
Besides, the Final Repayment Date was further N REEXRHBE OB BB
extended to (i) 31 October 2014 by a supplemental AB_E—=F=ZA+N\BZ2@REH
letter of agreement dated 18 March 2013; (ii) 31 EHUE—SLEEE T —UF+
October 2016 by a supplemental letter of agreement A=+—H:()&EBHHEZ
dated 21 March 2014; (iii) 31 October 2018 by a —MmE=A=-+t—H 2@ HE K
supplemental letter of agreement dated 15 March HiE—FLEEEZE _T—NFt+A
2016; and (iv) 31 October 2020 by a supplemental =t+—H:(iVERBHA-FT
letter of agreement dated 12 September 2018. FZA+RABZHT R L E—
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The transaction mentioned in this sub-paragraph (1) KA (Mt 7 32 5B 1% EH#R 8]
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company FETHAEBKARR —HEER
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which is fully 5 X SBE LEMHRAE A
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure SE>HERPETREIERFTA
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules BEZHRTE - LIARKEBEE
as the said borrowing from Mr. Yeung is on normal Z P EE R — RS E
commercial terms or better and it is not secured by ERFET MEYERAEET
any assets of the Group. B EMELER -

(2) On 26 June 2017, Good Sun Development Limited Q) RZE—+F~A=-+xH  BEF
("Good Sun”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of ERARAR(BE] ARRZ—
the Company) as landlord and Success International MHEZEEZENBAR  fER¥E)H
Management Services Limited (“SIMSL”, a company Success International Management
indirect wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yeung Services Limited ([SIMSL] » — & H
(being the Chairman of the Board and an executive EEGEFE RITESHET Hxﬂxﬁ
Director as well as a Controlling Shareholder)) as BhAEEEENERER 2N
tenant entered into a tenancy agreement (the ERMEFP)ITL—MHEE Tﬁ;’;
“Tenancy Agreement |”) in respect of the leasing of (THEWHZEI])  "RABHEHEE ME’\
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

()

(Continued)

the premises situated at Office No. 1003 and Office
No. 1004A on the 10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty
Centre, No. 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a term
of two years commencing from 2 July 2017 to 1 July
2019 (with an option to renew for a further term of
two years at the then open market rental) at a
monthly rental of HK$465,348, exclusive of
government rates, air-conditioning charges and
management fees and all other outgoings. Further
details of the Tenancy Agreement | are set out in the
announcement dated 26 June 2017 issued by the
Company.

Based on the monthly rental under the Tenancy
Agreement |, it was expected that the aggregate
maximum amount payable by SIMSL to Good Sun
under the Tenancy Agreement | for each of the two
financial years ending 31 December 2019 should not
exceed HK$5,585,000 and HK$2,808,000
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the aggregate amount of rental paid by SIMSL to
Good Sun amounted to HK$5,584,176.

The entering into of the Tenancy Agreement |
constitutes a continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which is subject to reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements but is exempt from the
circular (including independent financial advice) and
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

3)

On 13 February 2018, Victory Devotion Limited (a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
purchaser, Active Trade Investments Limited (“Active
Trade”, a company direct wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung (being the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director as well as a
Controlling Shareholder)) as vendor and Mr. Yeung
as guarantor for Active Trade entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
in respect of the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of
the entire issued share capital of and the related
shareholders’ loans to Merchant Charm Limited
(being the registered and beneficial owner of the
entire issued share capital of Powerful Concept
Limited (“Powerful Concept”)) and Massive Success
Global Limited (being the registered and beneficial
owner of the entire issued share capital of Famous
Capital International Limited (“Famous Capital”)),
which hold indirectly two commercial properties
situated at Office No. 1001A (“Office No. 1001A")
and Office No. 1004B (“Office No. 1004B") on the
10th Floor of Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre, No. 18
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong respectively with tenancy
agreements both dated 30 June 2017 and leased to
SIMSL by Powerful Concept (the “Tenancy
Agreement I1”) and Famous Capital (the “Tenancy
Agreement IIl"”) respectively at a total consideration
of approximately HK$147.5 million (the
“Transaction”). According to the terms of the
Tenancy Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement
I, Office No. 1001A and Office No. 1004B were
leased to SIMSL both for a term of two years
commencing from 2 July 2017 to 1 July 2019 (with
an option to renew for a further term of two years at
the then open market rental) at monthly rentals of
HK$74,204 and HK$163,644 respectively, both
exclusive of government rates, air-conditioning
charges and management fees and all other
outgoings.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

3)

(Continued)

Based on the monthly rental under the Tenancy
Agreement Il, it was expected that the aggregate
maximum amount payable by SIMSL to Powerful
Concept under the Tenancy Agreement Il for each of
the two financial years ending 31 December 2019
("Annual Cap under the Tenancy Agreement Il"”)
should not exceed HK$606,000 and HK$448,000
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the aggregate amount of rental paid by SIMSL to
Powerful Concept amounted to HK$584,057.29.

Based on the monthly rental under the Tenancy
Agreement lll, it was expected that the aggregate
maximum amount payable by SIMSL to Famous
Capital under the Tenancy Agreement Il for each of
the two financial years ending 31 December 2019
("Annual Cap under the Tenancy Agreement Ill")
should not exceed HK$1,337,000 and HK$988,000
respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the aggregate amount of rental paid by SIMSL to
Famous Capital amounted to HK$1,288,036.65.

Further details of the Acquisition Agreement, the
Tenancy Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement |lI
are set out in the announcements dated 13 February
2018 and 29 March 2018 respectively as well as the
circular dated 6 April 2018 all issued by the
Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

(3) (Continued)

The entering into of the Acquisition Agreement
constitutes, inter alia, a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As
certain applicable percentage ratios under the Listing
Rules exceed 5% and the consideration of the
Acquisition exceeds HK$10 million, the Acquisition is
subject to the reporting, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Transaction was completed on 4 May 2018
("Completion”). As Powerful Concept and Famous
Capital became indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company upon Completion, the Tenancy
Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement Il
constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As
the largest Annual Cap under the Tenancy
Agreement Il and the largest Annual Cap under the
Tenancy Agreement Ill in respect of the amounts
payable by SIMSL to Powerful Concept and Famous
Capital respectively for each of the two financial
years ending 31 December 2019, on their own is less
than, but on an aggregate basis with the Tenancy
Agreement | exceeds, HK$3,000,000 but all the
applicable percentage ratios calculated on an annual
basis pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules, on
such aggregation, are less than 5%, the Tenancy
Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement Ill are
subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but are exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

All INEDs had reviewed the continuing connected
transactions disclosed in sub-paragraphs (2) and (3) above
and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(¢) in accordance with the Tenancy Agreement I, the
Tenancy Agreement Il and the Tenancy Agreement |lI
governing the continuing connected transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS/DIRECTORS’ AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE (CONTINUED)

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB"), the auditors
of the Company, were engaged to report on the Group'’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. HLB have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in sub-paragraphs (2) and (3) above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the aforesaid auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its parent company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any
entity connected with him/her or a Controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
year.

Details of another connected transaction of the Company
during the year which is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are set out in note 39(e) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

Mr. Yeung, an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board, has the following interests in the companies listed
below whose business may compete or is likely to compete
with the Group’s property investment business (the

Report of Directors (Continued)
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“Competing Business”) pursuant to the Listing Rules:

Name of company
NGRS

Nature of competing business

BEREBME

AR EER A M -

EENHERE 2 ED

HITEEREZTGIEHEERN TR
RIBELEMRA - %F
RAZ FFEARE 2 YRR EERH([H

FEB]RGHFHAELRTF

Nature of interest

EEME

Active Profit Investment Limited

Asia City Holdings Limited
THEBARAT

Crownpeak International
Investment Limited
HEBRRRERGR AR

Lawman Company Limited

BXARRT

Lucky Hero Limited
HRARAT]

Super Genius Investments Limited

BEKRERRAE

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BERMFERE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEREYMERE(BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEEMFENE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BERYFERE (BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEREYMERE(BE)

property investment in Hong Kong
(commercial building)

BEAMFENE (BE)

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EENRRESHEA

owned as to 50%
beneficial interest
B m kA 50% i

director and ultimate
beneficial owner

EELRRERBEAA
ultimate beneficial owner

RERBmSBEA A

ultimate beneficial owner
RIREm#EBA

ultimate beneficial owner
RIRBREEBA
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ESEHRE (HF)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Since any significant business decision of the Group is to be
determined by the Board in which half of the members are
INEDs, the Group is capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the Competing
Business.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2018, none of the Directors was interested in
any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business, other than those
business where the Directors were appointed as directors
to represent the interests of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors or chief executive
of the Company and/or any of their respective associates
had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise, notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Interest in the shares of the Company (“Share(s)”)

Report of Directors (Continued)
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EERBSTRAERESRZ

RAEXTRED (TR ]) 2EH

Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December

2018

R-ZB-N\F

+=A=+—H

Long position/ Number of HEB1T

Name of Director Short position Nature of interest Sharesheld ERZEERMZ
EspA HE /KRR BEME RO E BMOB DL
%

Mr. Yeung (Note) Long position Corporate interest 3,523,190,987 71.52

B (i) oY) N EHEm

Note: Mr. Yeung, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board,
had a corporate interest in 3,523,190,987 Shares by virtue of the
interest of the Shares held by Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, which is direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yeung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, or their
respective associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise, notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Wit PITEEREFSF R LERGHEER
PIZEBR A Fl#FH 2 3,523,190,987 R AR 17
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 5 June
2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group or any entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest and any
subsidiary of such entity (“Invested Entity”). The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 10 June 2014 and,
unless early termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on 5 June
2014.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors are
authorised at their absolute discretion to invite eligible
persons to take up options to subscribe for Shares. Eligible
persons under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
employee (whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (i) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant, adviser or
agent engaged by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity, who is eligible to participate in a share
option scheme of the Company; and (iv) any vendor,
supplier of goods or services or customer of or to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity, who is
eligible to participate in a share option scheme of the
Company.

There is no provision in the Share Option Scheme to
require a grantee to fulfill any performance target or to
hold the option for a certain period before exercising the
option, but the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the offer of
grant of options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company is 492,649,119 Shares (being not more than
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Limit")), representing approximately 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the Scheme Limit save that
the total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company under the Scheme Limit so refreshed shall
not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the date of such approval (the “New Scheme Limit").
Options previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with the respective provisions of the
scheme(s) of the Company or exercised options) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the New Scheme
Limit.

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
scheme(s) adopted by the Company (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of offer
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the date of offer, unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
such eligible person and his or her associates shall abstain
from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the option, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is offered; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

The offer of a grant of share option must be accepted not
later than 28 days after the date of offer, upon payment
of a consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a period of
10 years commencing on the date upon which the share
option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31 December
2018.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above,
no equity-linked agreements which will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares or which require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed or taken to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Interest in the Shares igvig -
Approximate
percentage of
issued voting
Shares as at
31 December
2018
RZE-N\F
Name of substantial Long position/ Number of +=-A=+—-H
shareholder Short position  Capacity Shares held EERTARER
TERFER HE Be/ %A 27) FrERH#A B BABEDLE
%
Silver Rich Macau Long position Beneficial owner 3,523,190,987 71.52

Development Limited e ExBEA
pERMERBERAT

Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian (Note) ~ Long position Interest of spouse 3,523,190,987 71.52

BNt (i) iR ALiB et

Note: Ms. Liu Siu Lam, Marian, being the spouse of Mr. Yeung, was
deemed to be interested in 3,523,190,987 Shares in which
Mr. Yeung had a corporate interest.

Wizt B (BB E) iR EHEB A
G LHEA R AlfEz 2 3,523,190,987 R A 17
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no
other person (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had, or was deemed or taken to have, an
interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20 and
13.22 of the Listing Rules, the financial assistance, which
was made by the Group by way of the shareholder’s loans
provided by World Fortune Limited (“World Fortune”, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), and a
corporate guarantee given by the Company in respect of
the payment obligation of Pier 16 — Property Development
Limited (“Pier 16 — Property Development”, a 49% owned
associate of World Fortune) under the loan facilities granted
to Pier 16 — Property Development in the aggregate
amounts of HK$735 million and MOP273 million (the
“Financial Assistance”), continued to exist as at 31
December 2018. Pier 16 — Property Development is
principally engaged in the investment, development and,
through its subsidiaries, operating Ponte 16, a world-class
integrated casino-entertainment resort located in Macau.
The Financial Assistance is mainly used for the development
and operations of Ponte 16.

The amounts of the Financial Assistance as at 31 December
2018 were set out below:

TERRNES 2 Em (F)

B EXFrEEN R-T—-\F+ A
=t+—H BMEEMAL(EFHLAAF
R TTBABRIN) BB D R AR RE A {0
FEHSRESAEFERBEACTENR
BRE S LA E R DI 336 (R Z R TE AN A A
ATHFEZECMZERIAR °

BELETHRAFE13.200% &
F13.22EH2HE

B FHHEAIE13.2016 2 E13.221678
EHZHEBEER RZE—\F+=A
=+—H XEEAREET T/ NEME
BERODABRAR( T/ SEMEER]
BitIKERAR (THIK] - AAEz—H
M2 BB AR A 49% IR 2 B &
AA)) 2 B R E 2% % % 735,000,000
7T % 273,000,000 7C ([BA#5 & BN )
BERT/NBMEEERRHGBER - B
BEUAHIKRE ZBRRER R AR A
R NBUEBRRIRETBELOEE
RZANEL - TRNEVEBRRZETEE
BREE BHERBEBEWNBARLE
758 o TVB A AR 2 R
IREIREGEBN - WEEEEREE
R RAEE+IR e

MBEPR _FT—-N\F+_-_A=1+—H
ZERESNT

Aggregate

Shareholder’s Corporate financial

Name of associate loans Guarantee assistance
BENTEM BREREM EER AR
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

EEBEET BEBEET AEEET

Pier 16 — Property Development 317 490 807

TRRDERER
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.20 AND
13.22 OF THE LISTING RULES
(CONTINUED)

The shareholder’s loans provided by World Fortune are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Further details are set out in notes 19 and 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Set out below is a consolidated balance sheet of Pier 16 —
Property Development and the Group's attributable
interests in this associate according to its audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018:

Report of Directors (Continued)
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Group’s
Consolidated attributable
balance sheet interests

REEERER FEEEGES

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE 729,513 357,461
Current assets mENEE 461,884 226,323
Current liabilities nBEE (463,306) (227,020)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (829,003) (406,211)

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December
2018.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company.

R OER
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ESEHRE (HF)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 39% of total revenue of the
Group, of which the largest customer accounted for
approximately 12% and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 84% of total
purchases of the Group, of which the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 84%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company) had any
beneficial interest in the above five largest customers or
five largest suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float as prescribed under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board is responsible for determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management of the Company
(“Senior Management”). Besides, the Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board for its
determination on the remuneration of the NED and all
INEDs. Factors which include, inter alia, salaries paid by
comparable companies, qualifications, experience, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the
Senior Management as well as prevailing market condition
are considered by the Remuneration Committee for
determining/making proposals on remuneration of the
relevant Directors and Senior Management.

The remuneration packages of employees of the Group
(other than the executive Directors and the Senior
Management) are determined and reviewed periodically
on the basis of their respective qualifications, experience,
responsibilities and performance as well as prevailing
market condition. In addition to salaries, the Company
offers staff benefits which include medical insurance and
retirement benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme. The Group also operates a share option scheme
pursuant to which share options might be granted as a
long-term incentive to its directors and employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefit scheme of the Group are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has published its Corporate Governance
Report, details of which are set out on pages 34 to 58 of
this annual report.
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AUDITORS = EE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the AREBHEZE-_ZE—-N\EFEF+_A=+—H
year ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by HLB, |t FE 2GR AMBHRERECHEAGEZ &
who shall retire at the 2019 AGM and, being eligible, will BR—ZE—NFRERFRE RT -

offer themselves for re-appointment. HEFNEERITEEEENEMF -
On behalf of the Board REXEZEEE

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny FE

Chairman BER

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019 B —_E-NF=A=+NH

O8  SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E /=32 545 R A &l



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny, aged 64, joined the Group
in 2003. He is an executive director of the Company and
the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company as well as a director of the subsidiaries of
the Company. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Board, and a member of the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) of the Board. Mr. Yeung is
responsible for the overall corporate planning and business
development of the Group. He was a member of the
Eighth to Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and has over 35
years of experience in finance industry in Hong Kong. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung held managerial roles in
several financial service sectors such as leveraged foreign
exchange trading, and securities and futures brokerage.
He is presently the sole beneficial owner of Success
Securities Limited (”Success Securities”), which is a
licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance as well as a participant of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), principally
engaged in the provision of securities brokerage services.
Mr. Yeung has private investments in certain properties
and real estate development. He is also the sole beneficial
owner and a director of Silver Rich Macau Development
Limited, being a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is the uncle of Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, an
executive director of the Company and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREBEASREN (F)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Ma Ho Man, Hoffman, aged 45, joined the Group in
2005. He is an executive director of the Company and the
Deputy Chairman of the Board as well as a director of the
subsidiaries of the Company. Dr. Ma is also a member of
the Executive Committee. He is responsible for
implementing the Company’s strategies regarding the
business development of the Group as well as managing
the Group's business and operations. Dr. Ma has over 22
years of experience in the financial industry and years of
managerial experience. He joined Success Securities, which
is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
("Mr. Yeung”), being the Chairman of the Board and an
executive director as well as a controlling shareholder of
the Company, in 2000. He has been a director of Success
Securities since November 2008 and is responsible for
overseeing its marketing affairs. Dr. Ma is presently a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (the “CPPCC")
and a Standing Committee member of the CPPCC
Chongqging Committee. He was awarded the Bronze
Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2018. Besides, Dr. Ma
was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute
of Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of
Management by Lincoln University in 2009 and 2010
respectively. He is the nephew of Mr. Yeung.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Choi Kin Pui, Russelle, aged 64, joined the Group in
2003. He is a non-executive director of the Company as
well as a member of the audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Choi graduated from
St. Pius X High School in 1976. He has over 25 years of
management experience in the telecommunication
industry in Hong Kong, the United States of America (the
“US") and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr.
Choi established Elephant Talk Limited in 1994, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Elephant Talk Communications Inc.
("ETCI"). ETCI was an American corporation whose
securities were quoted on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin
Board in the US and engaged in the provision of
telecommunications services in Hong Kong and the US.
Mr. Choi was a director of ETCI from 2002 to 2008 as well
as the president and the chief executive officer of ETCI
from 2002 to 2006 and was responsible for the planning
of the overall strategy of ETCI. He also served as the
chairman of ET Network Services Limited (now known as
Guangdong Ming Ying Financial Leasing Co Limited), a
Hong Kong company engaged in the provision of internet
access and outsourcing services in the PRC and Hong
Kong. Mr. Choi is presently a non-executive independent
director of Wealthbridge Acquisition Limited, a company
whose securities are listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market
in the US.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEREREBEASREN (F)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann, aged 54, joined the Group
in 2004. She is an independent non-executive director of
the Company. She is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yeung
holds a Bachelor degree of Retail Marketing with honours
in the United Kingdom and a Diploma in Marketing from
The Chartered Institute of Marketing. She pursued her
further study on legal course and was awarded a Diploma
in Legal Practice in the United Kingdom in 1998. Ms.
Yeung has over 20 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant of Messrs. Fung & Fung, Solicitors, a
legal firm in Hong Kong. She is also an independent non-
executive director of Merdeka Financial Services Group
Limited and E Lighting Group Holdings Limited, the issued
shares of the said companies are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung was
an independent non-executive director of Trillion Grand
Corporate Company Limited (now known as hmvod
Limited), a company whose issued shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose, aged 54, joined the
Group in 2012. He is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Chin is a
certified public accountant (practising) and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators as well as a certified tax
adviser and a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. He has over 32 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and taxation. Mr. Chin is presently
the sole practitioner of CNT & Co., Certified Public
Accountants.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)
Mr. Chong Ming Yu, aged 45, joined the Group in 2014.
He is an independent non-executive director of the
Company as well as a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Chong holds a Bachelor degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University
of Hong Kong. He has been admitted as a practising
solicitor since January 1999, with focus on the field of
conveyancing, civil litigation and commercial. Mr. Chong
has over 22 years of experience in legal field and is
presently a consultant to Messrs. Kong & Tang, Solicitors,
a legal firm in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Chiu Nam Ying, Agnes, aged 45, joined the Group
in 2003. She is the company secretary of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing all legal matters of the
Group. Ms. Chiu is a qualified solicitor and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She holds a Master degree of Laws from
The University of Sheffield, United Kingdom. Before joining
the Group, Ms. Chiu was a practising solicitor in a local
law firm and possessed experience in banking and finance
as well as property related matters.

Financial Controller

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Alvin, aged 56, joined the Group
as the financial controller in 2008 until 2015 and rejoined
the Group in 2018. He is the financial controller of the
Group and is responsible for financial and accounting
matters of the Group. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as
well as an associate member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. He has over 31 years of
experience in accounting and corporate finance gained in
entertainment and travel-related, property development,
construction and manufacturing companies.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
MRS Gl S

HLB B M5 4zt @ £ % 08 R A3
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Success Universe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 114 to 310, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BUZBERE (&)

ERNER
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BYZBERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
EREITBIR

REETER (A

REWEZ2GE
B2 M MR8 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETENRBEEZSEHZL X

The Group’s investment properties measured at fair
value amounted to approximately HK$443,600,000
as at 31 December 2018 and there was a revaluation
gain of approximately HK$27,300,000 for the year
then ended. The fair value was determined by the
Group with reference to the valuations performed by
independent professional valuers (the “valuers”)
engaged by the Group.
RZZE-—N\FTZA=+—H  EEBRATE
STEMRE Y RB Y 443,600,000 7T + T1H E %
HIEFERNEGHKEL /B 27,300,000 T - B
AHEE BEXEEZ2E EEEZENBIEXR
i ERD ([fEERM ) ETHHEMETE °

The valuations of investment properties involved
significant judgements and estimates including:

BREMEGES REAHE LG - B

e The determination of valuation techniques,
which is using combination of income
capitalisation method and direct comparison
method of each property;

HETENETE - ISVERAEHBRAERL
EREELBOL

e The section of different inputs in the valuation
modes.

EZBHERA TEZTRNBEAE

Considering the significance of judgements,
estimates and the financial impacts of the valuations,
we paid specific attention to this matter in our audit.
ZRINHEREFCEZUERGEZHBEE - &
FREZTIERPHZEER TERIRT

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:
BAREEEHREVEZHERERZEFE
e

e  Evaluation the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuers.

SHEE L BEINEEER 2 B BB K
BEM -

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based our knowledge of the
property industry and using our valuation
experts.
RIERBFIE Y EITEN BB B
MEZRRK @ HEFERANGERE - B

R M AAETHIRE L

e Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
EREAL  mEMRKBOEAZBIESN
MR

We found the key assumptions were supported
by the available evidence. The fair market rents
were supported by recent renewals and in line
with our expectation. We found the disclosures in
Note 18 to be appropriate.

BFBE - BREREMEZEEM - AFm
e BT AT MK MTEH -2 - ZMIRA
M 18AERBEBEE -



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates

BUZBERE (&)

FARE SR (F)
B AR 2 S 2R ETE

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements. BR2HEGEAPBTHRRME19 -

The Key Audit Matter
BRRETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETENRBEZBEHZL X

The interests in associates is accounted for under the
equity method. As at 31 December 2018, the
interests in associates amounted to approximately
HK$605,074,000, including goodwill of
approximately HK$19,409,000, and the related profit
on share of results of associates for the year ended
31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$68,110,000.

REEE RN R 2 R AREREIER RN —\F
TZA=T—B RBEQFRZEE(BEEELD
78 119,409,000 7T ) %) /78 ¥ 605,074,000 7T + MM
BE_T-N\F+ZA=+—RHLLFE ' H@AEKG
B8 N R R B Hm M KR8 68,110,000 7T ©

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of interests in associates
included:

PR EIEEEH NS QR 2 R E AR
RZIBFEE

e Evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuer.

A BEINEEER 2 B - BE K
BEM o
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BYZBERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Impairment Assessment of Interests in
Associates (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
ERETBIR

REETER (A

REHE R B 2 s 2 BIERE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETERBEEZSEHZL X

The management performed impairment assessment
of interests in associates with the use of valuation
performed by an independent professional external
valuer based on the value in use calculation. The
valuation requires the application of significant
judgement and estimation by the management in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology
to be used, use of subjective assumptions and
various unobservable inputs.
EREDOMBE AR 2 R EITREN G (ERE
MEFEINMEERMRBEREEFAEFSHNME -
HEEREREREER TERAZEEMREL A
FTERXILESETTERRARBEZERANERSE
R HIEf F et o

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

e Assessing the valuation methodology, key
assumptions and estimates used against our
knowledge of the business and industry.
LR PR RITENME - fE
FTERAREETDE - BIRRR M EE -

e Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on our knowledge of
the business and using our valuation
experts.

RIETR FIET BB R IS B0 AN B 8 B AR I
MEZR  FHEAKANMGERE B
R LT EIeE 1t

e Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions used based on our knowledge
of the business and industry.
WIBERPIHZEBITERNOME - L5
REXNSEM -

e Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.
BERMET A - MEMRMRA O ABIRH
EmEAAEEE -

We found that the assumptions made by the
management in relation to the value in use
calculations to be reasonable based on available
evidence. We found the disclosures in Note 19 to
be appropriate.
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁf #HFIR

ﬁﬁZﬁ REAIE o HIFIR
HEEE

AEBEERFEREEST
2AMEE19F{EZ



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon
("Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this Other Information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

BUZBERE (&)

Hft 58

EXEFHEMESRE - HEREHET
FRFEREANER - BETEBEAM
R R FIAZ AR IR E

REUEAMBRENER L TEER
fufse  RETYRE LG BRRA
EEZENOL Tr ok
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BYZEERE (&)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BUZBERE (&)

ERE(E BB R EITRH B
o RFER T B RIS T HRE
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
BYZEERE (&)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
GmEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z—N\FE+-_A=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihE=s BT T BT IT
Continuing operations BESEXR
Revenue g 6,7 1,120,278 589,935
Cost of sales B & AR (1,085,924) (569,843)
Gross profit EF 34,354 20,092
Other revenue and gains H fth gz SR A 8 6,409 13,285
Fair value gain on investment X&YW 2 N FEWES
properties 18 27,300 79,185
Administrative expenses TR Z (78,554) (92,662)
Other operating expenses Hi & e 9(c) - (4,638)
(Loss)/profit from operations &% (E518) % F (10,491) 15,262
Finance costs R AN 9(a) (4,003) (1,541)
Share of results of joint ventures fE(5 & &3 24 597 527
Share of results of associates  FE{LEE A B) 245 68,110 (9,879)
Profit before taxation RRE A A 9 54,213 4,369
Taxation I8 10(a) - -
Profit for the year from REFESEEL
continuing operations R FE R F 54,213 4,369
Discontinued operation BARILREER
Loss for the year from REBRIEEEEB 2
discontinued operation REEEE 14 - (37,825)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEZRF(EHE) 54,213 (33,456)
Attributable to: BT S EE !
Owners of the Company /NS 33 54,464 (29,810)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR FE (251) (3,646)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEZRF(&HE) 54,213 (33,456)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRER(FE)
From continuing and REFELER
discontinued operations BAIEREER 15(a)
— Basic and diluted — ERREE 111 HK cents &4l (0.61) HK cents (L
From continuing operations 2 B & & & £ 5§ 15(b)
— Basic and diluted — BEXREE 111 HK centsBfl 016 HK cents il

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these  BEM 2 i 5T B4R & B 15 ] = 2 405K 5B
consolidated financial statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBEmREM2ERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—\F+=-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—B-\F —FtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Profit/(loss) for the year REERA(FHR) 54,213 (33,456)
Other comprehensive Hip2mkz (F8)
income/(loss)
Items that may be HETNEKEHIEZE
reclassified subsequently Bz 2ER
to profit or loss:
Release of exchange fEBR L E B A REZ
difference upon MEHERE
disposal of subsidiaries - 3,169
Exchange differences on BREBHENRBAR]
translation of financial HBMRFIEEZ
statements of disposed =5
subsidiaries - 2,126
Exchange differences on BREBINE AR
translation of financial M mMERMEE 2
statements of overseas ME 3 =58
subsidiaries (1,585) 1,560
Total other comprehensive BRAUIE 2 AN H At
(loss)/income for 2m (E518) e
the year, net of tax Fab-c] (1,585) 6,855
Total comprehensive REE2EWE(FE)
income/(loss) for the year  #%8 52,628 (26,601)
Attributable to: BN RIEE :
Owners of the Company PN/NE 1 32 53,060 (22,904)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR = (432) (3,697)
Total comprehensive rEE2EWKE(FHE)
income/(loss) for the year s 52,628 (26,601)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BERT 2 MY A A LR A M I R 2 AR A AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R
As at 31 December 2018
R=ZF—-N\EFE+=ZA=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
e BET T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #7135 - i M &t 16 26,083 30,300
Intangible assets B A E 17 6,643 3,927
Investment properties KEMSFE 18 443,600 292,000
Interests in associates AL /NI ey 19 605,074 537,087
Interests in joint ventures REe&hE R 20 5,308 4,411
1,086,708 867,725
Current assets REBEE
Stock of properties MEFE 21 186,218 -
Trade and other receivables EUE SRR K
H A RIS AR SR 22 49,139 18,602
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRRITER 23 9,964 10,064
Cash and cash equivalents ReLkRSFBEEE 24 50,720 149,656
296,041 178,322
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables ENEZERA K
H A FET AR SR 25 49,613 16,697
Deferred income IR A 26 245 265
Bank loans IRITER 27 222,500 -
Financial guarantee contract ~ BIFIERA 4 30 644 644
273,002 17,606
Net current assets REEESE 23,039 160,716
Total assets less current EELAERABARG
liabilities 1,109,747 1,028,441
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income PRIEUT A 26 1,014 1,097
Loans payable JENER 28 - 27,232
Loan from a director and —REEFRIER
controlling shareholder R E R 29 39,000 -
Financial guarantee contract I ERE Y 30 1,612 2,256
41,626 30,585
Net assets EEFHE 1,068,121 997,856
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
mEMBERRE (&)

As at 31 December 2018
RZZT—N\F+=A=+—8H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT BT T
Capital and reserves ERR #E

Share capital A% AN 32 49,265 49,265
Reserves 1 1,018,856 961,365

Total equity attributable to <2 TR R FE(L
owners of the Company EEBE 1,068,121 1,010,630
Non-controlling interests FEHE R RS - (12,774)
Total equity ERAE 1,068,121 997,856

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of #TE@2R-_ZET—hE=A=-+/\B#t

directors on 28 March 2019. R IR RET)EE o

On behalf of the board REEEZE

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny Ma Ho Man, Hoffman
B8R B

Director Director

EE EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BERT 2 MY 3% A ZANAR A B 165 Tk 2 2B B 30
consolidated financial statements. v
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERB R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-Z—\E+=-A=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARREE
Non-
Share Share Distributable  Exchange Other Accumulated controlling Total
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
& ROEE THIREE  EXRG  HEREE  ZHEE & FERER  BEAE
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
AT BETr  #BTr RSt BMTn BETn BETr BT BT
(note (@) (note (b)) (note (c)
(@) (o) ()
At 1 January 2017 R=F-tF-A-A 49265 1418963 52333 (11,665) 976 (476338) 1,033,534 (27,177) 1,006,357
Loss for the year REEER = = = - - (98100 (29810 (3646)  (33:456)
Other comprehensive incomef(loss) ~ AEEE 2R E
for the year Wi/ () - - - 3737 - - 3737 (51) 3686
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ AEE2 TN/ (BE)
for the year &g = = = 3,731 = (29,810) (26,073) (3.697) (29,770)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) ~ HEMBRAR(Afi233) - - - 3169 - - 3,169 18,100 21,269
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=1-A 49265 1418963 52,333 (4759) 976 (506,148) 1,010,630 (12,774) 997,856
At 1 January 2018 R=F-\¥-A-R 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 (4,759) 976 (506,148) 1,010,630 (12,774) 997,856
Profit/loss) for the year REERT/(BR) - - - - - 54,464 54,464 (251) 54213
Other comprehensive loss TEEEMZERR
for the year - - - (1,404) - - (1,404) (181) (1,585)
Total comprehensive incomel(loss) ~ AEE2ENE/(BE)
for the year ] - - - (1,404) - 54,464 53,060 (#32) 52,628
Transactions with non-controlling B3R RER 7% 5
interests (note 36) (Hi#36) - - - - - 4831 4831 13,206 17,637
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+=A=1-H 49,265 1,418,963 52,333 (6,163) 976 (447,253) 1,008,121 - 1,068,121
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(a)

(b)

(9]

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda.

Distributable reserve

The distributable reserve is the reserve of the
Company available for distribution to the
shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 2(q).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

(9]

REESSBR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—\F+=-A=+—HLEE

WA= E
kRhEBERZERXARE
—NN—FREEFEAGHARE

IR 0)3 i

D RFERIEARRIZBERE
—NN—FRBEFAERAHEDIIKT
BIR 2 i o

BE Wi ik e
EXHEEEEARESINERE 2
BHRRMEEZPIBINEEZRR ° %
M TR B MY T 2(0) PR & & 5T R
BRIE ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z—N\FE+-_A=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BiaE BET T BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEK
Profit before taxation PR A1 A
— Continuing operations — BEKE **%j‘“ 54,213 4,369
— Discontinued operation — BRI R - 129
Adjustments for: Bt T3S IBEL A%
Fair value gain on investment REWMEATERE
properties (27,300) (79,185)
Bank interest income RITH S A (193) (228)
Finance costs BA SR AR 9a) 4,003 1,541
Depreciation on owned property, BHEW¥  BEX
plant and equipment REZINE 16 3,802 4,850
Amortisation on financial IS ERA NN
guarantee contract 8, 30 (644) (10,322)
Share of results of joint ventures  E{E & &b ¥ %E (597) (527)
Share of results of associates JE(RERE N R EE (68,110) 9,879
Impairment loss recognised on: Ty ZIBER L
HEEE
— intangible assets —BEE %), 17 - 4550
— trade receivables —ERE ZER 9(c), 22(b) - 81
Reversal of impairment loss BT3B IERER R E
recognised on: BERE
— intangible assets —EREE 8,17 (3,164) -
— amount due from a Rl —HAERE
joint venture 258 8 (1,500) -
Write back of long-outstanding RHERNRNES
trade payables R #E 8 - (161)
Exchange alignment bEE 55 B 515 1,648
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BENM
plant and equipment R 2 W 8 - (875)
Operating cash flows before =~ ZEBEE#BAI~
changes in working capital BEHER (38,975) (64,244)
Increase in trade and JEWE 5 BR R R L fh e
other receivables s B BRIE A (31,430) (52,021)
Decrease in trade and ENE SRR R H
other payables B ER 32,605 40,114
Increase in stock of properties YIEFEN (104,338) =
Decrease in deferred income EER AR D - (43)
Cash used in operations REPRAzAE (142,138) (76,194)
Income tax paid SENI LT
— Hong Kong profits tax paid — XREAEMNEH (237) -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REX(BEHHHE EE
ACTIVITIES (142,375) (76,194)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
HEBRERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT—\F+=-A=+—HLEE

2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—t5F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
By &E BETR BB
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Payment for purchase of BEMXE BER
property, plant RAEFTTEIE
and equipment 16 (468) (251)
Net proceeds from disposal of HEME - BEK
property, plant REMBIIRTE
and equipment - 875
Net cash inflow from disposal HENBARIZES
of subsidiaries AR 33 - 7,930
Net cash outflow from WEEE RN
acquisitions of assets FEE 35 (205,619) -
Decrease in amounts due e AN O]
from associates A 123 2T
Decrease in amount due from el —FEA & E
a joint venture KR 1,200 -
Decrease in pledged EEFRITERRD
bank deposits (659) 6
Bank interest income received EYERTTHR EMA 165 221
Payment for purchase of BEREMEMN
investment property ;1A 18 - (21,107)
NET CASH (USED IN)/ REEE (B ELE
GENERATED FROM ZEEFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (205,258) 281,971
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Loan from non-controlling FEERIRERE R
shareholder - 3,152
Repayment of loan from ERIFERBRRER
non-controlling shareholder - (1,072)
Repayment of bank loans ERIBITER - (122,500)
New bank loans raised HEERTER 27 222,500 -
Loan from a director and —REERERRE
controlling shareholder 'R 29 39,000 25,000
Repayment of loan from a EBE—RESTRIER
director and controlling BREERK
shareholder - (25,000)
Transactions with BIFRRIER X 5
non-controlling interests 36 (8,184) -
Finance costs paid AT TSR AN (3,459) (1,541)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ & EZEES
(USED IN) FINANCING (BR) 2REEE
ACTIVITIES 249,857 (121,961)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
LEBERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE BETT BETT
Net decrease in cash and HeRREZBEIAB
cash equivalents A (97,776) 83,816
Cash and cash equivalents at FORekAE
the beginning of the year Z£EEE 149,656 64,509
Effect of foreign exchange [EREFH 8
rate changes (1,160) 1,331
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £REE£REL
AT THE END OF THE YEAR ZEEH 50,720 149,656
Analysis of balances of RBERBREEE
cash and cash equivalents HB&SHD W
Cash and bank balances He MR{TEH 24 50,720 149,656

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BE MY 2 MY sk B A4S B fE 3R 3k 2 A RK 26
consolidated financial statements. s
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL
ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in Bermuda on 27 May
2004 under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda.
The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Suite 1601-2 & 8-10, 16/F., Great Eagle
Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Its
controlling shareholder is Silver Rich Macau
Development Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"”) with limited liability.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS(s)"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”) and
interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and applicable
disclosure requirements under the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”). These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosures provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

1.

ARE M IRRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

HEBREERK

ARRIR—ETENFRAA=-++tH
BEARE-NAN—FAREER
REIMKLRERRBRAA -
MEBEZEITROREBHE IS
BRAR([EEAZAT]) £ o RAFA]
2 i =R Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11,
Bermuda ° N AT E B L EM IR
BEEFABEE2ZIREEP L 161
1601-2 &2 8-10%E - HiFRRR BB
ERMBRARAR(—HEREBE
THE(RBEXES ) M
=1 YN

ARAZTEXBRIREER  H
AR EBEBHNES T
WARMREA3 -

FEEEE

() SFEEH
WELRE P FBRERIIBESE
FtMag((HEESFAIA
S)EMMBEREENK
WMEER(EBPFRELE
Al tE B IR A E R (AR
BEMBREER]) BELET
ER(THEEGFER]
B BB LRHRAUNAER
AMEBI(BEBEDIE22E)(TA
AIGEH D IR E 2 BREEE
KEE o B4 E P FEWERID
BrBMRRES EmAR( L
MRA ) 2 EREEHE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)
The HKICPA has issued certain amendments
and interpretations which are or have become
effective. It also issued certain new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretation
(“New HKFRSs"), which are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group (as defined
hereinafter). Note 3 provides information on
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements included
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’'s interests in
associates and joint ventures made up to 31
December each year.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise
indicated.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

2. TESFEE(E)

(a)

(b)

SEEH(E)
BERTMAGDEME TH
FE&EMZET AR
B reffhE TRASEGE
ZERTX)EHzEHHEE
IR SRS R (R ER IR 2 #T AT
FAMERT R - BRI A MR R
(IFHBEFHHREED ) - K
ABESIEREARE SRS
MHBRARRZ EHBE
SHHEAREEHE  HR
ZEF o

REVBHRR 2 RMREE

HREVBHREEBESF
TZA=+t—BHIEARRARE
BB~ m) (i hE [ ANk E ) 2 8
BHREK  ARAESERBE R
AIRAELR oS -

FAEMBHRRARNRE ZINEE
EEAE(RBEDZI - K>
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(b) ZEVBHRRZEREE

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis except that investment
properties and financial guarantee contract are
stated at their fair value as explained in notes
2(h), 2(k) and 2(l) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
orderly transactions between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristic of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or
value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

(&)

FTEEE

A M IRR TIIRE L AN E
% (ffesr B M BB KR M 2(h)
2(k) X2 2() P& i a2 Rl 8
2B MERIBFERE L
BRON) ZETEEERE -

BE e AN — IR E T M AR
BRANREZ R FERE -

NFERNRFERYMSLHE
ELEETERRZTHESR
EFMEBRERREMNZ
B TwmzBEREtERE
RUBHER S —HET AR
it BEFEEHBEZAFE
- ARBZERMH2EER
AERHREEXREETE
ERKEEEZEERARL
Kifh o ERFHRA M mKRE
BR/SBE 2 XA TEEEL
EBE LT ARE - EBFEMB
TGRS 25 [ F3K 88
BAZBEONRRS  BEE
AAERFE17RIEE ] SER
ZHERGURERTEES
THEUZ BB IFERFE(F
WEBEFERFE 2R IFE
Z B R ER T B G ER
F365R[ EEME ] ZEMEE)
ZETEERIN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

— Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

— Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amount of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

2. TESFEE(E)

(b) ZEVBHRRZEREE

(%&)

STEEE(EA)

BEoN - BB HREmMS - 2F
B 2RBEAFEFEH AR
B2 ERIZE Rig ABURY
AT EFECERBEENHSE
BE M BMAE=
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— F-RBAREEEERN
AAERBABSZHERE
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BEZTABR ZEAH
e

NIRRT BB MRS ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated

(9]

financial statements (continued)

Basis of measurement (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in
note 5.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more or the
three elements of control listed above.

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

2. TESFEE(E)

(b) ZEVBHRRZEREE

(9]

(&)

srEEE(H)

Bt R ARRRRSEEES
B o A Gt EET 2 ERIER
BRERTHRE - BEEBFTRZ

HIM AR KW EETHE
AR RRAEBERE - AR

T’EW JZHHF'?)SUE?FHEFEEE

R o

EREEENERAEGRAMHK
BRABEAFEZBBYBR
EEEAPTEZ HETIA KT — (@
FEEEXNARRER 2G5
1P 5 5 AT & o

B A R K IR R A

REMBRREEBEARARRNE

$/ AMEMBARERZE
B(ERRBER) M B R

%:z fie /B LA 1B - AR AR R
EISHE B -

o  AIHRIREEITERED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over
the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group's voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

e right arising from other contractual

arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expense of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control

the subsidiary.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

2. TESFEE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

(0 MBARKRFEZERERS(E)

interests (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair values of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

A ERE M E M E RS2
T8 AREBRARAK
RNOFER D - B ARZ
EERERBRTEERNARA
PR Ko JE PR M 2R - BB UL 2R
SEBORHERER LB

MEFE  WBAR VR
REFLAR  FESFTHR
EASESABR 2 e

FEEENARZ M EAER
818 % WA BXRE
SHRE(EAEEREAT
M2 5EH)  REARER
SR -

FEERREMBRRAEEE
i 28
AEERHB AR EAEER
ZEHMY \BEFAEEKRE
HZEMB AR ZEHIE - &
ERERRH AR - AEHEZ
o R IFERER REED
TEFE - ARBRERHE A
Al 2RSS 2 BB - IFER
BafARzeRED D
BREZ2AFEZHEHNER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests

in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position

in accordance with notes 2(k) and 2(l).

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiaries is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note (2())).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exits only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group'’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKFRS 9 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group'’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or
when the investment is classified as held for
sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of a part interest
in the associate or joint venture is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) Associates and joint ventures

(continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interests
in associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interests if that gain or
loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

In the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position, interests in associate and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment loss
(see note 2(j)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(e) Goodwill (e) BHE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each cash
generating unit (“CGU(s)”) or groups of CGUs
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(j)). In respect of
associate or joint venture, the carrying amount
of goodwill is included in the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate or joint venture
and the investment as a whole is tested for
impairment whenever there is objective
evidence of impairment (see note 2(j)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of a business combination or an investment in
an associate or joint venture is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a CGU of an associate or a joint
venture, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at

cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2())).

Gain or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds on disposal
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
life at the following rates per annum:

Building 2.5%

Leasehold improvements Over lease terms

Furniture, fittings and 18% — 33'3%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 30%

Motor yacht 10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
There is no depreciation imposed on the
freehold land.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(9) Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (9) BILEE (BERR)

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, identified
on business combinations are capitalised at their
fair values. They represent mainly trademark
and relationship with customers. Subsequent to
initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis from the date of acquisition
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Client list 15 years

The asset’s useful lives and their amortisation
method are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
not amortised. The intangible asset and its
status are reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support indefinite useful life. Should the useful
life of an intangible asset change from indefinite
to finite, the change would be accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(h) Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for such
purposes). Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value. All of the
Group'’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gain and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of
the Group’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
or return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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2. TESFEE(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables (before adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 January 2018)

Investments in debt and equity securities
and other current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any
such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

0]

For investments in associates and
joint ventures accounted for under
the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see
note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2(j)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(j)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables (before adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

— For unquoted equity securities and
current receivables that are carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for current
receivables are reversed if in a
subsequent period the amount of the
impairment loss decreases.
Impairment losses for equity securities
are not reversed.

— For financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Impairment of assets (continued)

()

0]

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and other
receivables (before adoption of HKFRS
9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of other
receivables are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or,
except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures;

— goodwill; and

— investment properties

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated. In

addition, for goodwill, the recoverable

amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

() BEEREGE)
(i) HEMEERE(R)

—  Calculation of recoverable amount — AN EISREZIER
JE
The recoverable amount of an asset BEZAKEESEEA

is the greater of its net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss is whenever the carrying
amount of an asset, or the CGU to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the CGU (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(k) Financial instruments (before the

adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (before the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the three categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets
and loans and receivables. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
The accounting policies adopted in respect
of each category of financial assets are set
out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") comprise financial assets
held for trading purpose and derivative
financial instruments that are not designated
as effective hedging instruments. At the end
of each reporting period date subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (before the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period
date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment
losses (see note 2(j)). An impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in
the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

k) EBMTA(R-ZF-NF-
A—BRAEREVBREE
RSB 95%AT) (&)

(i) MBEEERRE

(k) Financial instruments (before the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's
financial liabilities are generally classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other
payables, bank and other borrowings,
bonds, convertible bonds and promissory
notes, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (before the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January

2018) (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equities

(continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis other than financial
liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Financial quarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the terms of

a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (before the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equities

k) ERIA(R=F-NF-
A—BEMBERYHHREE
RSB 95%AT) (&)

(i) BAEEERKRE (R

(continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)
Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of assets. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued, in addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
2(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee, that is, the
amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e

MBI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (before the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January

2018) (continued)
(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the

rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are
transferred or the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

For financial liabilities, they are removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial positions when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(k) Financial instruments (before the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(iv) Derivative financial instruments

k) EBMTA(R-ZF-NF-
A—BRAEREVBREE
RSB 95%AT) (&)

(iv) fT£2®IA

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of
the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative
host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the Group’s statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets

All reqgular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the
financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
amortised cost:
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() EMTA(R=-ZF-NF-
A—BRAEREVBREE

RIS 957 %) (&)
() MBEEHE)
HBEEEN T

AN TRENERTA
RERIRESHRAGE ¢

the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following
conditions are measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”):

the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

By default, all other financial assets are
measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

Despite the foregoing, the Group may
make the following irrevocable election/
designation at initial recognition of a
financial asset:

the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if
certain criteria are met (see (iii)
below); and

the Group may irrevocably designate
a debt investment that meets the
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch (see (iv) below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the
relevant period.

For financial assets other than
purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. assets
that are credit-impaired on initial
recognition), the effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the
gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, a credit-
adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the
estimated future cash flows,
including expected credit losses, to
the amortised cost of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method (continued)

The amortised cost of a financial
asset is the amount at which the
financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, adjusted for any
loss allowance. The gross carrying
amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset
before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using
the effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently
at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For
financial assets other than purchased
or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If, in
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest
method (continued)

subsequent reporting periods, the
credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, the Group
recognises interest income by
applying the credit-adjusted effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from initial
recognition. The calculation does not
revert to the gross basis even if the
credit risk of the financial asset
subsequently improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit
or loss and is included in the “other
revenue and other net income —
interest income” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI (see (i) to
(iii) above) are measured at FVTPL.
Specifically:

o Investments in equity instruments
are classified as at FVTPL, unless
the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held
for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a
business combination as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Classification of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Debt instruments that do not
meet the amortised cost criteria
or the FVTOCI criteria (see (i)
and (ii) above) are classified as
at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet either
the amortised cost criteria or
the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition
inconsistency (so called
‘accounting mismatch’) that
would arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on
different bases. The Group has
not designated any debt
instruments as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Foreign exchange qains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets
that are denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of
each reporting period. Specifically:

e for financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss; and

e for financial assets measured at FVTPL
that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL(s)") on
financial assets which are subject to
impairment (including trade and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture). The
amount of ECLs is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL
for trade receivables and lease receivables.
The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL when there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. However, if
the credit risk on the financial instrument
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will
result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument
at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which
the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various
external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)
In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in
external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices
for the debtor, or the length of
time or the extent to which the
fair value of a financial asset has
been less than its amortised
cost;

existing or forecast adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)
e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

e  significant increases in credit
risk on other financial instruments
of the same debtor;

e an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the
above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates
otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January

2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group
assumes that the credit risk on a
financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if
the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

The financial instrument has a
low risk of default,

The debtor has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near
term, and

Adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual
cash flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when the asset
has external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if
an external rating is not available, the
asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’. Performing means that
the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past
due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as
constituting an event of default for
internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that
meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

e when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the debtor; or

e information developed internally
or obtained from external
sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into
account any collateral held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the
Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of
the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event (see (ii)
above);

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower,
for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it becomes probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a
function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as
described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross
carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of
the specific future financing needs of
the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is
estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss
allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in
the previous reporting period, but
determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach
was used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Derecoqgnition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

() EMTA(R=-ZF-NF-
A—BRAEREVBREE
RIS 957 %) (&)

(i) HMBEERES ()

(continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Compound instruments

The component parts of convertible notes
issued by the Group are classified
separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company'’s
own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the

adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January

2018) (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity
(continued)
Compound instruments (continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for a similar
non-convertible instrument. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at

the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount of
the liability component from the fair value
of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date of the convertible loan
note, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the

conversion option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

() EMTA(R=-ZF-NF-
A—BRAEREVBREE
RIS 957 %) (&)

(i) HMBEERES ()

(continued)

Compound instruments (continued)
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible loan notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible loan notes using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does
not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing involvement approach applies,
and financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Group, are measured in accordance
with the specific accounting policies set
out below.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i)
contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination, (ii) held-for-
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are
measured subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(I) Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January

2018) (continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

(continued)

Financial liabilities measured subsequently

at amortised cost (continued)

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial

liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are
denominated in a foreign currency and are
measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined
based on the amortised cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the in profit
or loss for financial liabilities that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

(m)

(n)

Financial instruments (upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity
(continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

(o) Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

(i)

(ii)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit/(loss) before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The
Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(o) Income tax (continued) (o) FrB®i (&)
(ii) Deferred tax (continued) (i) EZEFHE (&)

Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such
investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Income tax (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss, except when they relate to
items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business
combination.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

2. TESFEE(E)

(o) Frf&
(i)

(iii)

SH (&)
ESER T ()
ELRAEE <FRHER
EHREMARRT - ARAT
%&EEEE%&&MW
2L EEEERK
ﬁﬁﬁﬁO

ERNEREHARASHAM
HREE LR BM 2 HE
(RBUR) - BLERIBEE
FEBREBEEAERER
&EHEMERER 2 B

_2_ E o

“=al =

ELRARBEREE
ERRAEEBBRANRE
RGOS FEEHEE
REBEERHEZHER

% o

Az BV R R SE B R
B R R SEFR AN H 2
HERR - MEE BIHA MR IERR
Eﬁ&ﬁ@iﬁ% £ (A HE
W ERAERRNRERZ
EEHE Rl BV SR S
ﬁﬁﬁ“%mﬁ@%ﬁw
Ml E RN T R
%I%%QHZW%QE
Ba 32 M 2= £ BV E SR ST/
R AIEEMBEESS
AXBEH 2 gt RE
A o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

BRERIAKE

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities (p)

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition
Upon application of HKFRS 15

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. A
performance obligation represents a goods or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services

that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the

following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group

performs;

e the Group's performance creates and
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the

distinct goods or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

(q) Wz (&)

Upon application of HKFRS 15 (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group'’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and a
contract liability relating to a contract are
accounted for a presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates
them transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

(i)  Travel-related service fee income

— Revenue from the sale of air tickets is
recognised at a point in time when
the booking tickets are delivered to
and have been accepted by the
customers.

— Revenue from the sale of tour
packages is recognised at a point in
time when travel arrangements have
been booked and confirmed with
customers.

— Revenue from the sale of group tours
is recognised at a point in time of
group departure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)
Upon application of HKFRS 15 (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Rental income in respect of investment
properties under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease term.

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised at point in time when control
of the properties is delivered to buyers.
The Group receives deposits from buyers
when signed the sale and purchase
agreements. The deposits received from
the contracts prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are
recognised as contract liabilities.

Management fee income is recognised
when the amounts are measurable and
the ultimate collections are reasonable
assumed.

Interest income is recognised on a time
apportioned basis using the effective
interest method.

Services income is recognised when
services are provided.

Deferred income comprises of a sign-up
bonus for an on-line ticket processing
system and is recognised as revenue in
accordance with the terms of the
agreement.

Other income consists of revenue earned
based on volume sales through various
online ticket processing systems and is
recognised when it is measurable and all
contractual obligations have been fulfilled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)
Prior to 1 January 2018:

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as

follows:

(i)  Travel-related service fee income

Revenue from the sales of air tickets
is recognised when the tickets are
issued.

Revenue from the sales of tour
packages is recognised when travel
arrangements have been booked and
confirmed with customers. Deposits
from customers are reported as
liabilities.

Revenue from the sales of group
tours is recognised at the point of
group department. Deposits from
customers are reported as liabilities
until the tour departs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Revenue recognition (continued)
Prior to 1 January 2018: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

Rental income in respect of investment
properties under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
respective lease term.

Management fee income is recognised
when the amounts are measurable and
the ultimate collections are reasonable
assumed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
apportioned basis using the effective
interest method.

Services income is recognised when
services are provided.

Deferred income comprises of a sign-up
bonus for an on-line ticket processing
system and is recognised as revenue in
accordance with the terms of the
agreement.

Other income consists of revenue earned
based on volume sales through various on-
line ticket processing systems and is
recognised when it is measurable and all
contractual obligations have been fulfilled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

g

(r) Foreign currencies (r)

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual entity, transactions in currencies other
than the Company'’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

HEMBIHRME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(r) Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified

to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on
identifiable assets acquired arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in equity
under the heading of foreign currency

translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESHEBE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(s) fEERA

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised as being
directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Related parties
A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(a

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control of the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
E-N\F+-A=+—HLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t) Related parties (continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of

(b)

the

following conditions applies:

(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources
or obligations between related parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARG BRI M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u)

(v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group's chief operating decision maker
(“CODM") for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical location.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

Stock of properties

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
the cost of land, development expenditure and
other directly attributable expenses. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
determined by management based on prevailing
market conditions.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018
In the current year, the Group has applied for
the first time, the following New HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, which are effective for the
Group'’s financial year beginning on 1 January

2018.

HKFRS 2
(Amendments)

HKFRS 4
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS
(Amendments)

HKAS 40

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) —
Int 22

Classifications and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Except as described below, the application of
the New HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective

on 1 January 2018 (continued)
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The Group has initially adopted HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” from 1 January 2018.
HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. It
sets out the requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items.

Based on the assessment by the Group, there
would be no retrospective item that existed and
no significant cumulative effect of the initial
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transition requirement.

(i) Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities
HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI") and at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL"). These supersede HKAS
39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial assets is
managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(i)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

Amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective
interest method;

FVOCI (recycling), if the contractual
cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows
and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECLs. When the
investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

(continued)

()  Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

— FVPL, if the investment does not
meet the criteria for being measured
at amortise cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.

An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment
at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective.
Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as
at FVPL or FVOCI (non-recycling), are
recognised in profit or loss as other
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(i)

Classification of financial assets and
financial liabilities (continued)

Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in
contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are not
separated from the host. Instead, the
hybrid instrument as a whole is assessed
for classification.

There is no reclassification or remeasurement
of the financial assets, including cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits as
well as trade and other receivables for the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

The measurement categories for all
financial liabilities remain the same.

The carrying amounts for all financial
liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of
HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(ii)

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with an “ECL"” model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with
a financial asset and therefore recognises
ECLs earlier than under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to
financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits as well as trade and
other receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expect cash shortfalls are discounted
using the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof for fixed rate financial assets as
well as trade and other receivables where
the effect of discounting is material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(ii)

Credit losses (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— Lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected of the items to which the
ECL model applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

(continued)
(i) Credit losses (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at

the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognised a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(ii)

Credit losses (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 180 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking
information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(ii)

Credit losses (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

(continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

Failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

An actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

An actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

Existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(ii)

Credit losses (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such
as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

As at 1 January 2018, no additional credit
loss allowance has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

(continued)

(i) Credit losses (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income on
credit-impaired financial assets
Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired included the following observable
events:

— Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

— A breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency interest or
principal payments;

— It becomes probable that the

borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(continued)

(ii)

Credit losses (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income on

credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

— Significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— The disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy
The gross carrying amount of a financial

asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in
the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective
on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

(continued)

(iii) ~ Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been
applied retrospectively, except as described
below:

Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.

The assessments have been made on
the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at 1 January
2018 (the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9 by the Group) for the
determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held.

If, at the date of initial application,
the assessment of whether there has
been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition would
have involved undue cost or effort, a
lifetime ECL has been recognised for
that financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERHIIRKLEITIZ2EAN
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING FERLEXER ()
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective (a) A ERIKEHREER —

on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained earnings (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to the contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared with HKAS 18
“Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the
following sources which arise from contracts
with customers:

e Sales of air tickets

° Travel-related service fee income; and

e  Sales of properties
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(a) Adoption of New HKFRSs — effective

on 1 January 2018 (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

There is no impact on retained earnings for
transition to HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018.

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of
Investment Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or
from, investment property necessitates an
assessment of whether a property meets, or has
ceased to meet, the definition of investment
property, supported by evidence that a change
in use has occurred. The amendments further
clarify that situations other than the ones listed
in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and
that a change in use is possible for properties
under construction (i.e. a change in use is not
limited to completed properties).

At the date of initial application, the Group
assessed the classification of certain properties
based on conditions existing at that date. There
is no impact to the classification at 1 January
2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

BRI REIERT 2B RY
B E A (&)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b) New HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following
New HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

(b) EEMEEKRERZHEE
B F R 2 A
AEETEREFERALTNEHE
B R ERZ BB

yet effective: AR
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of Material® BRAGHENR 1R HIEX] 25’
(Amendments) BEETEAESH
(BEIA)
HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment BAGIEAE 9%  FHEIBET - R
(Amendments) or Settlement’ CHES! Bl
HKAS 28 Long-term interests in Associates ERCHERE LY RUELALAE
(Amendments) and Joint Ventures’ CHEY rENREES
HKFRS (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs N, i i | —E-hER
2015-2017 Cycle’ (BFIA) —Z—+FRY
BERERE
BAICFESE
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business? BB RS 2R Y%K 28R’
F3H(BITEK)
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative EAMBREEN  REEDEMR
Compensation’ F 95 (B K) AERE
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between ERB L £l REZERHME
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint 105K RAE ARl AETE
Venture® SHERZE 285 LARBELE
(BFIA) HTE’
HKFRS 16 Leases’ ERUBaLEN HE
F16%
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? ERRBREEN  RRAK
E17%
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B (AR REREMEH 2 AT
Treatments’ REE)RBENRT ZEE

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
1 January 2019.
2 Effective for business combination and asset 2
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Fi16 2 F /R -

Rk A - FE—FF—H
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acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 R-E—FF—F—Ht 2 #
1 January 2020. Fita2 FIZRIBIAERL
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 R_ZFE——F—F—Hst 2 #

1 January 2021. Fita2 FIZRIBIAERL
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 5 RiFTFE BRI 8162 FE
a date to be determined. HHRTAERL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b) New HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
“lLeases” and the related interpretations when
it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. In addition,
HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the
transfer of the relevant asset should be
accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease
modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is
replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERHIIRKLEITIZ2EAN

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B EZER (])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(b) New HKFRSs that have been issued but (b) EEMERMKERZHE SR

are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject
to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16.

M mEER (&)
ERMBHREERNE 165K
g (&)
FREEENZEKNRGTE
BE 18 AR AN (15 T Bl SMNE R
BRON) BRI E RBEBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(b) New HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$10,857,000 as disclosed in
note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition
of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the
Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

The application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect
of initial application to opening retained
earnings without restating comparative
information.

Except disclosed above, the directors of the
Company (the “Director(s)”) do not anticipate
that the application of other New HKFRSs will
have a material impact on the Group's financial
performance and financial positions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

ETRMTH
(a) €T HAZ3EHR

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i i
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=—A=+—-8B +—A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets measured REHEK AT ER
at amortised cost MEEE 424,960 -
Loans and receivables ER R EWRIE (BE
(including cash and RekReFHEER)
cash equivalents) - 488,427
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised costs B SH K AR 311,113 43,929

Financial risk management and fair
values

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk) from its
use of financial instruments. This note presents
information about the Group’s exposure to
each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and
managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

(b) MBEBREERAFE

A& B EE M2 @ T A
EERR RBESEMRET
SRR (BRERRR - FIRE
2 R E M ERER) o AR
BEARAKEERY L ER - A
SESNFENREERRZA
7 BREERF ARAEH
BEERZER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE—

Z-NF+_A=t—HLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from bank balances and deposits, trade
receivables, deposit and other receivables
and amounts due from associates and
joint venture. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the
credit risk is considered to be low as the
counterparties are reputable banks. The
existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, ECL rate of
cash at bank is assessed to be close to zero
and no provision was made as of 31
December 2018.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime ECL
provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the ECLs, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk
and ECL. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, trade and other
receivables as well as amounts due from
associates and a joint venture that are
individually significant have been separately
assessed for impairment. The Group makes
periodic assessments on the recoverability
of the receivables based on the background
and reputation of the customers, historical
settlement records and past experience.

Majority of the Group's revenue is received
from individual customers in relation to
sales of air tickets and service fee income
from provision of travel-related services.
The Group's trade receivables majority
arise from sales of air tickets to the
customers. As at the end of the year, the
top five customers and the largest
customer accounted for approximately
56% and 9% respectively (2017:
approximately 0.3% and 10%), of the
Group’s trade and other receivables
balance. In view of the history of business
dealings with the customers and the sound
collection history of the receivables due
from them, management believes that
there is no material credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding receivables
balance due from these debtors saved for
the debtor related to the impaired trade
receivables disclosed in the below.
Management makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the
debtors and whether there are any
disputes with the debtors.

HE—

T N\F+_A=t+—HLFE

4. £@I A (E)

(b) HMBERERERAFEE

(i)

EER (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(i)

Credit risk (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed
on all of the Group’s customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 30 days from the date of
billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

As the amount of ECL were minimal
resulted of impairment analysis performed,
the Directors were of opinion that no loss
allowance for trade receivables recognised
as at 31 December 2018 under HKFRS 9.

For other receivables as well as amounts
due from associates and a joint venture,
management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The Directors
believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables.
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4. £@I A (E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_ZT—N\FE+-_A=1+—HIEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4., SRITH (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(b) HMBERERERAFEE

(i) Liquidity risk (i) REBELERE
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will MENE & R IE A K EE
not be able to meet its financial obligations ERITHHMBEEZ
as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to & ﬁ;l‘%ZﬁiﬁEE
regularly monitor its current and expected %§§§%§£%ﬁ§§§§§ggzﬁ§wﬁi
liquidity requirement and its compliance iﬁ'ﬁ*&hj%ig’@qz
with lending covenants, to ensure that it L - ﬁg?f%gingﬁﬂi%éﬁ
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and %f{%&ié{iiﬁﬂﬁ%%%
adequate committed lines of funding from 5Eﬁ%£éy@{éfigggg’ ¥AE§
e L : MEHEREZRBESD
major financial institutions to meet its =k o
liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.
The following table details the remaining TRAHRNMERR - K
contractual maturities at the end of the SEZITETBEEZ
reporting period of the Group's non- %T/ﬁ\f\‘ 2| HA A Hﬁ/ﬁ%"]
derivative financial liabilities, which are g%ﬁ E'/Ej_) i ﬁmﬁﬁf\i
based on the contractual maturity date. EQ?%;?%?;?&E?E@;?;%é&?%
The amounts disclosed in the table are the o A R
contractual undiscounted cash flows (ﬁqz%ﬁ’%‘zﬁﬁf&%’ﬁﬂjiz
(including interest payments computed i’% [T 5 52 3 B4
, | , %) URAEETRE
using contractual rates or, if floating, k% 22 A E
based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay:
At 31 December 2018
R=B-NF+=A=+-8
Weighted More than ~ More than Total
average Within Tyearbut  2yearshut  contractual
effective 1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
gz -Frg BB-F RERE  ANRME
BBAIZ REX  BIRRE  BHREFE RENELE HEE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
BSTn  BETR BMTn BETR BETR
Trade and other payables EANE SRR R
ERER - 49,613 - - 49,613 49,613
Bank loans (note) S8R (H?) 339 230,029 - - 230,029 222,500
Loan from a director and —ZEZRERRRER
controlling shareholder 513 - 41,001 - 41,001 39,000
279,642 1,001 - 320,643 311,113
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(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
E-F\Ft-A=t-BLFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4. £@I A (E)

(b)

¥ EREER A FE(E)

(i)

REE S EE ()

At 31 December 2017
RZE—+F+-fA=1—-H

Morethan  More than Total
Within -~ Tyearbut ~ 2yearsbut  contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FR%  BEF  BEMF SORMR
REX BIRME EIRLF RERELE BRE{E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A%t BT A%t A%t ARTn
Trade and other ERESHRIR
payables B (AR AR 16,697 - - 16,697 16,697
Loans payable ERER - 27,232 - 27,232 27,232
16,697 27,232 - 43,929 43,929
Note: Hiat -

There is a clause for repayment on demand under the
facility letters regarding the bank loans granted to
the Group. Thus, the bank loans are categorised into
the time band of “within 1 year or on demand” in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2018, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
and interest of bank loans was approximately
HK$230,029,000 (2017: no outstanding amount
regarding to this bank loan). Taking into account of
the Group's financial position, the Directors believe
that the bank exercising its discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment is remote and such
bank loans shall be repaid one year after the end of
the reporting period. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will be in the amount of approximately
HK$230,029,000 calculated with weighted average
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4. £@WMIT A (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BI¥EMEERAFEE)
values (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) FRBESEREK(H)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, it was RZE—N\FEER-_ZE—+
not probable that the counterparties to F+-_A=+—H UK
the financial guarantee will claim under BERZRZSHTKNAER
the contracts. Consequently, the carrying BAEXEHER - A -
amount of the financial guarantee contract MISERE A2 REEL
of approximately HK$2.3 million 75 ¥2,300,000t( = &
(2017:approximately HK$2.9 million) has —-t4F : 497%2,900,000
not been presented above. To) RN EX 25 o
At 31 December At 31 December
2018 2017
R=FB—-NEF R-T—tF
+=RA=+—8H +=-—A=+—H
Expiry Expiry
HK$’000 period HK$'000 period

BT T EwRE sETT JiE i 5

Guarantee given to Fii% 7 —fEE &
bank in respect of AT ZRTT
banking facilites ~ B& [RE1T

granted to fEH 2 R
an associate 490,000 2022 490,000 2022
(iii) Currency risk (i) E¥EE

Presently, there is no hedging policy with BAl - AEEIWEFBEIN
respect to the foreign exchange exposure. PE @ b 2 ¥R - A&
The Group’s transactional currency are B R5EERBERN
HK$ and Canadian dollars (“CAD") as T(Mmzl) RERBX
substantially all the revenue are in HK$ 0> Wz Th LA VS B K hn T
and CAD. The Group’s transactional FHE - AREER S EFT
foreign exchange exposure was R 2 SN R B E D o
insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair

values (continued)
(iv) Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk
is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to floating-rate borrowing.
The Group's income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4., £FITH(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair (b) BIEREERERAFE(E)
values (continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk (continued)

(iv) *U%Jﬁtl’ﬁ(ﬁ)

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk
Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk,
the sensitivity analysis set out below has
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 December 2018 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2.0 million (2017: approximately
HK$718,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its floating-rate borrowings.

T R R RSB 5 BT
Fdﬁﬁ@m%ﬂ?ﬂ i}
T NXAEHBURED T
RIRBERMERRIEITET
BAR 2 MR Rk mE
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Tﬁ)ﬁﬁ““b‘“&t‘:HHXZ?E
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HAREEMREL o B0
SR A 50 (A EE IR A A
ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%/\%ﬁ&iﬂ”

o MR E IR EH AR
%‘J?m@)T“b’lﬁtZAfi%
HEFER -

fisi & F & _EFH T F% 50 &
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—N\E+=ZA=+—H1t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE-T—)\F+-A=1+—HLEE

4. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(v) Fair value

4. £@I A (E)

(b) MBREABEERAVEHE)

The fair values of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from observable current market
transactions. The Directors consider that
the carrying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December
2018 and 2017, except for the following
financial instrument, for which their
carrying amounts and fair value and the
level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed

below:

(v) AFE

AEEPHBEERMBGE
B2 RFETDRE—RE
EMzEEBRLNEE I
BERAABR AT
REERIAERETLZE
MBARERENNEE -
EERB RZE-)\F
E-_ZE—-—+tF+_ A
=t —HEREEMBRRK
RN AL 2 MG E
=N A E 2 iREE R
HAFELTEEAZR
HET5 T AR
HREE A FERAF
EFRWEWT

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2018

Carrying Fair _ CategoriSfd illto:
amount at value at B@—g—}\ft/—\ﬁz‘l'—ﬁﬂ’ﬂ
31December 31 December AVEFEIENT
2018 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZE-N\E ZE-N\E
t=A=t-8 +2Az1-R
WREE WATE F-8 -8 F=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BETT BETT BETRT BETT
Financial quarantee ~ BIEERAH)
contract 2,256 0.4 - - 0.4
Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2017
Can’ymg Fa” . Categonsed |n10
amount at value at E@:?*t%ti\*ﬂ:JﬁBE@
31 December 31 December AFEAESRNT -
2017 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2t ZE4F
+-R=t-H +ZA=1-8
gl BATE E—R F-R F=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BETT EEFT BETT
Financial quarantee  BIBERAH
contract 2,900 51 - - 51
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies which are described in note
2, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed
below:

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment and freehold land and
buildings

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which
requires significant judgement relating to
the level of revenue and the amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. Changes
in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying amount of the
assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group use
judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group performs annual test on
whether there has been impairment of
intangible assets in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2(j). The
recoverable amounts of CGUs are
determined based on value in use
calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of
the business, pre-tax discount rates, and
other assumptions underlying the value in
use calculations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty
(continued)
(iv) Useful lives of property, plant and

(v)

equipment

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on as straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment
regularly in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded
during the any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking
into account the expected usage, wear
and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or services output of the
assets. The depreciation expenses for
future periods are adjusted prospectively if
there are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Fair value of investment properties

As set out in note 18, investment
properties were revalued as at 31
December 2018 on an open market value
existing use basis by the independent
professional valuers, whose have among
their staff, fellow members of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyor (the
“Valuer(s)"). Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the
judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an
active market for similar properties and
uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each of
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Key sources of estimated uncertainty

(continued)

(v) Fair value of investment properties
(continued)
In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, the
Group considers information from a variety
of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for
properties of a different nature,
condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contract),
adjusted to reflect those differences;
and

(b) recent prices of similar properties on
less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those
prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents
for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flow.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s
estimation of the fair value include those
related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates,
expected future market rents and future
maintenance costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5. EEH{hE R HE (&)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) ERXEEETHREZEE

(b) Critical accounting judgements in

applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some
assets and liabilities, the Group makes
assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the end
of each reporting period. These estimates
involve assumptions about such items as cash
flows and discount rates used. The Group's
estimates and assumptions are based on
historical experience and expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. In addition
to assumptions and estimations of future
events, judgements are also made during the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

(i) Impairment test for interests in

associates

The Group completed its annual
impairment test for interests in associates
by comparing the recoverable amount of
interests in associates to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2018. The
Group has engaged the Valuer to carry out
a valuation of the interests in associates as
at 31 December 2018 based on the value
in use calculations. This valuation uses
cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and
a pre-tax discount rate of approximately
8% (2017: approximately 12%). The cash
flows beyond the ten-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2017:
3%) growth rate for the casino and hotel
industries in which are operated by
associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

0]

(ii)

Impairment test for interests in
associates (continued)

Management has considered the above
assumptions and valuation and also taken
into account the business plan going
forward. The valuation depends upon an
estimate of future cash flows from the
interests in associates and other key
assumptions, which are based on the
Directors’ best estimates. The valuation is
sensitive to these parameters. Changes in
these parameters could lead to a material
revision of the valuation which may have
effects on the net assets and results of the
Group.

Principal versus agent consideration
The Group engages in sales of air tickets.
Upon application of HKFRS 15, the Group
reassessed whether the Group should
continue to recognise revenue on gross
basis based on the requirements in HKFRS
15. The Group concluded that the Group
acts as the principal for such transactions
as it controls the specified goods before it
is transferred to the customer after taking
into consideration indicators such as the
Group is primarily responsible for fulfilling
the promise to provide the air tickets. The
Group has inventory risk with respect to
the air tickets because the Group
committed itself to obtain the air tickets
from the airline before obtaining a
contract with a customer to purchase the
air tickets. This is because the Group is
obliged to pay the airline for that right
regardless of whether it is able to obtain a
customer to resell the air tickets to or
whether it can obtain a favourable price
for the ticket.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of
internal reports which provide information about
components of the Group. This information are
reported to and reviewed by the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM considers the business from both
geographic and service perspective.

The Group has presented the following two
reportable segments.

(a)

Travel business: sales of air tickets and provision
of travel-related services.

Property investment business: receiving rental
streams from leasing office premises and sales
of properties in Hong Kong.

Segment results, assets and liabilities
The travel reportable operating segment derives
their revenue primarily from sales of air tickets
and provision of travel-related services.
Geographically, management considers the
performance of the travel business in North
America.

The property investment reportable operating
segment derives their revenue from leasing
office premises and sales of properties in Hong
Kong.

In accordance with HKFRS 8, segment
information disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements has been prepared in a
manner consistent with the information used by
the Group’'s CODM for the purposes of
assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s
CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Segment profit represents the profit from each
segment without allocation of corporate
administrative costs such as directors’
emoluments, share of results of associates and
joint ventures and corporate finance costs. To
arrive at reportable segment profit, the
management additionally provides segment
information concerning interest income, finance
costs and major non-cash items such as
depreciation, amortisation and impairment
losses derived from reportable segments.
Unallocated corporate income mainly comprises
amortisation on financial guarantee contract,
management fee income from an associate,
interest income and other sundry income. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. Taxation is not
allocated to reportable segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to
the CODM is measured in a manner consistent
with that in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than amount due from an associate,
interests in associates and joint ventures.
Unallocated corporate assets mainly include part
of the property, plant and equipment as well as
cash and cash equivalents of the central
administration companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEPER ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PEp%E - BEREE(E)
(continued)
All liabilities are allocated to reportable FrERBEEIREATE®RY
segments other than corporate liabilities. L A ERRIN o KD
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly include RArEBETECIEBER
financial guarantee contracts and part of other BRI R RITHRRREEZE
payables borne by the central administration D E fh FETBR TR o
companies.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable MAFERAEBFTELER
segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for RERHEEENER AED RS
the purposes of resource allocation and BRI EDERIEZATE
assessment of segment performance for the Mo ERES T
year is set out below:
Continuing operations Travel Property investment Total
RELCERE i ESE At
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\§ 2% ZE-\f Tt ZB-\§f T +F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000
AeTn AT AETn BBt B¥Tn BETR
Revenue fromexternal ~ SMIEF v HBRET
customers and reportable  2HA W
segment revenue 1,090,196 583,425 30,082 6,510 1,120,278 589,935
Reportable segment AT2E9
profit/(loss) i/ (68 2,029 (15,656) 37,619 83415 39,708 67,759
Share of results of joint ventures EfEA £ M £ 597 527
Share of results of associates  [EEEEATEE 68,110 (9,879)
Unallocated corporate income  KAEAEIMA 2,569 11,137
Unallocated corporate expenses RAAEAEH % (55,068) (65,069)
Finance costs SRR (1,703) (106)
Consolidated profit hefore ~ BBiAI 44 %R
taxation 54,213 4,369
Taxation ] - -
Consolidated profit REEGRER
for the year 54,213 4,369
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER(EFE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PEPEE BEREE(E)
(continued)
Continuing operations Travel Property investment Total
NEGexR it NERE it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\§ Z2t% ZE-\f Tt ZB-\§f T +F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AeTn BT AETn BBt B¥Tn BETR
Reportable segment assets AT 2R HEE 90,219 51089 631507 294142 7726 345231
Unallocated corporate assets k2B LEEE
— Interests in associates —RBERRER 605074 537,087
— Interests in joint ventures ~ —RAEREER 5,308 441
— Corporate assets —(%8E 50,641 159318

1,382,749 1,046,047

Reportable segment ATEHATER

liabilities 40,972 39,873 128,517 1,015 169,489 40,888
Unallocated corporate FABLEERE

liabilities
— Corporate liabilities —1¥8E 145,139 7303

314,628 48,191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER(EFE)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other segment information

(b) EAthzEHEH

Continuing operations Property Other
BELEER Travel investment corporate entities Total
i NERE Htb¥ER At
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\E ZF-tF ZB-N\E ZF5F CB-N\E 25 +F C8-N\F Z5tF
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BeTn B¥TT B%Tn ANt B¥Tn EETn BMTR BMTx
Bank interestincome {7 EHA I} 3 1 9 150 184 193 28
Fair value gain on RENEATE
investment properties Uiz - - 20300 79,185 - - 27300 79,185
Depreciationonowned ~ BEWE  BER
property, plant and REINE
equipment (554) (684) - - (3248 (3472  (3802)  (4,156)
Reversal of impaiment 3T 5% BRZ 2 HE
loss recognised on: BRER:
— intangible assets —BWEE 3,164 - - - - - 3164 -
—amountduefrom  — B4 %
ajoint venture ETE - - - - 1500 - 1,500 -
Impairment loss RTHIEERRZ
recognised on: WEBE:
— intangible assets k7773 - (455 - - - - - (59
— trade receivables —ERESER - (81) - - - - - (81)
Finance costs STRA (39) - 1) (1435 (4703)  (106) (4003  (1,541)
Additions to non-current R E R eV AR *
assets* 17 209 148,000 21,107 351 42 148468 21,358
@ Additions to non-current assets only include the * REHRBEEER AERER

REZYE - BB RREARR

additions to property, plant and equipment and
investment properties during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(9]

(d)

An analysis of the Group'’s revenue

7 EER (&)

(0 AEKEREFRAEREzWE

from all services is as follows: AT :
Continuing operations 2018 2017
BEKSEEK —EBE-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Travel business IR ETE
Sales of air tickets PHEME 1,038,733 531,746
Travel and related service Hik itz N 48 8 AR 7% B A
fee income 51,463 51,679
1,090,196 583,425
Property investment business MEREETE
Rental income e WA 8,006 6,510
Sales of properties HE M 22,076 =
30,082 6,510
1,120,278 589,935

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s non-current
assets. The geographical location of customers
refers to the location at which the services were
provided. The Group’s non-current assets
included property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, intangible assets,
interests in associates and joint ventures.

The geographical location of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties is
based on the physical location of the asset
under consideration. In the case of intangible
assets, it is based on the location of operations
to which these intangibles are allocated. In the
case of interests in associates and joint ventures,
it is based on the location of operations of such
associates and joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEPER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Geographical information (continued) (d) HEEER(E)
Revenue from
Continuing operations external customers Non-current assets
FEREEK REMBEF 2z FRBEE
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2018 2017 2018 2017
—®-N\F -—T-LF ZB-N\F —TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BT

Hong Kong B (FrfEth)

(place of domicile) 30,082 6,510 464,214 314,614
Macau ol - - 605,074 537,087
North America k= 1,090,196 583,425 17,292 15,873
The People’s FEARLAME

Republic of ([FE])

China ("PRC") - - 128 151

1,120,278 589,935 1,086,708 867,725
(e) Major customer (e) EEEF
Revenue from customer arising from travel EERNEBEAIWET 10% KA L
business segment who over 10% of the total REREFEB D E 2P W=
revenue of the Group is set out as follows: T -
2018 2017
—E-N\E T +F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Customer A (note) P AW 132,333 —
Note: BtaE -
The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of RIE—+F ZEPZMHBE NI
the total revenue of the Group in 2017. TG A E B 75 10% LA E ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

7. REVENUE 7. W=
The principal activities of the Group are engaged in AEB 7T EXK AN ERELR
the travel-related and property investment N EIREER -
businesses.
Revenue represents sales of air tickets, service fee Wz TEiH S M2« 12 ik % A8 B8 Ak
income from provision of travel-related services, BZRBEKRA  HEWAKHES
rental income as well as sales of properties. The ME - RNER - KIED R U N IE
amount of each significant category of revenue RZEERANMZEEOT
recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:
Continuing operations 2018 2017
BFESEEK —E-NF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue from contracts with REEZFFTH W :
customers:
Recognised at a point in time FRE — (A [ 2 R R
Sales of air tickets THEME 1,038,733 531,746
Travel and related service fee T 8% B 4B B AR 75 B U
income 51,463 51,679
Sales of properties HEME 22,076 —
1,112,272 583,425
Revenue from other sources:  HAth 3 FAIUW A :
Rental income Ma A 8,006 6,510
1,120,278 589,935
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS 8. HzzmRWA
Continuing operations 2018 2017
HESEER —E-N\F S
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BT T
Other revenue H fth Uy 2
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 193 228
Management fee income from 2R 5 —[ElB& A a2
an associate EEEBIWA 274 632
Write back of long- REENRSE SRR
outstanding trade payables Z B[ - 161
Gain on disposal of property, HEYEH -« BE KEE
plant and equipment 2 WEs - 875
Other income HAnUgA 634 21
1,101 1,917
Other gains Heug A
Amortisation on financial MG ER G #0# 5H 30
guarantee contract 644 10,322
Reversal of impairment loss  Ft N7 R IBRER 2 RE
recognised on: EEEMD -
— intangible assets —BEE 17 3,164 -
— amount due from a joint — B —f&E
venture ERIR 1,500 -
Net exchange gain AINGEE S U 2 - 1,046
5,308 11,368
Total a5t 6,409 13,285
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

(a)

(b)

(o)

(d)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBIAIGEF
Continuing operations 2018 2017
FEREER —E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Finance costs (a) BAFERRA
Interest on bank loans IRITERZF B 3,651 1,435
Interest on other loan HMERZHE 39 -
Interest on loan from a director —RESFIER
and controlling shareholder RERERZFE
(note 39(a)) (Bt &t 39(a)) 313 106
4,003 1,541
Staff costs (b) BIRA
Salaries, wages and other e ITENEAM
benefits (including directors’ B (BEES
emoluments) <) 35,330 38,448
Contributions to defined TE R FUGRIK
contribution retirement plan FTE| 2K 1,206 1,327
36,536 39,775
Other operating expenses () HMRERX
Impairment loss recognised on: AT BIEER
BEEE
— intangible assets (note 17) —\mEEE
(Hiax17) - 4,557
— trade receivables (note 22(b)) — EIWE FERR
(Ktax22(b)) - 81
- 4,638
Other items (d) HEB
Auditors’ remuneration = EE BN &
— Audit services — ZEPRTE 925 925
— Other services — H A AR 260 400
Depreciation on owned property, BHEYE  H&E
plant and equipment RECTE 3,802 4,156
Operating lease rentals REMHERE
— properties — W= 8,012 7,663
— plant and equipment — B K& 471 532
Net exchange loss SNEEF BT 1R 245 -

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED 10. RS EZR2HIE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement (a) REZEEBRZBEER :

of profit or loss represents:

Continuing operations 2018 2017
BEQEEK —E-NF —T—+tF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

LiEsd BET T BET T
Current tax BIEAT 18 - -
Deferred tax R IA 10(b) - -
Tax charge MIERAX - -

The Group is subjected to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at a rate of 16.5% for the year ended 31
December 2017.

On 21 March 2018, the Legislative Council of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC passed The Inland Revenue
(Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits of the corporations will be taxed at
8.25% and assessable profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made for both years as the Group has no
assessable profits in Hong Kong.

BieE AEBARRE
16.5% B BB FEH -

R-EBE—N\F=A=-+—H"
FREEBFAIITREY Z2B
BT —EFRBUER]) (B
T EPIERYEMEZR])
{6 B 2= 5] AT 45 350 /i AR 1l 352
Ko K ERR_T—N\F=
AZ+ N \BEEXEBEE I
REBEERTE - BRIEBERR
FIFESME CENBBE
2,000,000 JT Y F& 2R 5t 55 T 4%
825% & M- # B B ¥
2,000,000 JT A F& 3R B i Fl i 12
16.5% #% °

F P AN 5= [ 170 7 1 6 T2 A AR £
EREBELRRAB GF
it B L B RIS AR AE B
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss represents: (continued)
Canadian subsidiaries are subject to Canadian
Corporate Income Tax which comprises federal
and provincial income taxes. The net federal
income tax is calculated at 15% (2017: 15%)
and the provincial income tax is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant provinces. No
provision for Canadian Corporate Income Tax
has been made as the Group has utilised tax
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: no provision has been made as the
Group has no assessable profit arising in
Canada).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise
Income Tax at 25% (2017: 25%). No provision
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
for both years as the Group has no assessable
profits arising in the PRC.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

10. RS BRERZHIE (&)

(a)

§§QE§$2ﬁﬁiﬁ:
EPNGIEPNGIEEE RPN
TEMRSH  EFESBABR
BB - FHIBFTERIE
15% (=& — + F:15%) &t
B mMARAERAIREEA
MZEAHERTE - HRASE
BRr#Ez_—_ZE—NE+_-A
=t RHILFEREBERKE
EiE - At MERNE AL
E¥mMEHRELBEBE(ZTE—+
FARAEEMEENEXR
EXERBEF - Bt &
MINEADEFEHELEE) -

B A RIZEE25% (=&
—tF 25%) BAHHPRCE
FT1SH o AR AR S B EF
EABELES RELEERT G
o At HESPBECERN
SEVEL B -

BB o AR A 2 BIRSR
AR A M 2 B 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

10. RS BRERZHIE (&)

(b) RBARRIE 2B EMX

and accounting profit at applicable tax HEEEf ¥R :
rates:
Continuing operations 2018 2017
FEREER —E-N\F —F—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Profit before taxation B 5 Bl v A1) 54,213 4,369
National tax on profit before  IREANBEBER

tax, calculated at the tax rates % F| 2 Fi K&~

applicable to profit in the BB E A2 ERIE

countries concerned 1,915 615
Tax effect of share of results  JE{GEt & N FIZEE 2

of associates B E 11,238 (1,630)
Tax effect of share of results ~ JEIEALEXE Y

of joint ventures HIEFE 99 87
Tax effect of non-deductible A RIS 2 FRIE &

expense 13,501 7,667
Tax effect of non-taxable BARBMAZHIBTE

revenue (21,388) (15,646)
Tax effect of unrecognised AERFIEEE 2

tax losses WA 2 794 8,839
Utilisation of tax losses B AMIEEE (5,908) -
Unrecognised temporary RIERE R =58

differences (251) 68

Tax expense for the year REZHIBFRZ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Company Ordinance, Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the laws
of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowance and  Retirement benefit

IR B ERPISE 383(1) 16k
BEEMNDER) RO (FRENE
622GE ) F 280 M LR A F AW
BeESMEHINWT

NCING

Directors' fee other benefits ~ scheme contributions Total
Ezhe e RERAMER  RABEATBMR ait
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
-0\ T ZB-NF 4% CB-N\F DT 4F IR0\ CT AR
Name %% HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BeTn BRTT BETn ANt B¥TR BT B¥TR ANTr
Executive Directors HiEE
Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny 138
(Chairman) (2E) - - 160 - 3 - 163 -
Ma Ho Man, Hoffman BEX
(Deputy chairman) (#EE) - - 7% 607 18 18 814 625
Non-executive Director FHEE
Choi Kin Pui, Russelle Biys 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Independent Non-executie BV #5772 %
Directors
Yeung Mo Sheung, Ann R 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Chin Wing Lok, Ambrose o 120 120 - - - - 120 120
Chong Ming Yu e 120 120 - - - - 120 120
480 480 956 607 21 18 1,457 1,105
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(Co
Notes:

(@

(b)

NTINUED)

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
directors waived any emoluments and no emoluments were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Director’s material interests in transaction, arrangement or
contract is stated as below:

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 December 2008 made
between the Company and Mr. Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny,
being a Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company (“Mr. Yeung”), Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200
million term loan facility to the Company with interest at
the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The
principal amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009. The Company paid the
interest of approximately HK$313,000 for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: approximately HK$106,000) in
relation to this transaction. Other details of the transaction
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save for contracts amongst group companies and the
aforementioned transaction, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE_ZT—)\F+-A=1+—HLEFE

fifaz -

(a)

(b)

1. EEf < (E)

2T —NER=_F—FtF+=H
=+—HILFE HEEFREFM
B - 2B A FIT (] 2 F X
A% - (A MAZEE LR IMA K
EER 42E) - SIERBEBAE -

EBEERRG  THHAAHPZEAE
mEHT

WREBEARR ] HEFF AR AERRE
BEKEE([BEED)R=ZFZNE
+=A—HFZ %5 BELERE
2 AT B 5 200,000,000 7T 12 &%
EEZRITHR A A AR BEE
SRBBFEFEZHEHEHHE - R
ZEENFHA+IA  ZEEH G
BZAL 2 BMEENERZEK
290,000,000T » BE=F—/\F 1=
B=+—HIFE  XRAIEFUR
554 F B # & #313,000T( = F
—L4F B8 106,0000T) e K52
H i FERRARE B KM £ 29 -

BEBRFIFZEHNUAR LRSI} -
AR BB AEET T B A F AR EFE
BAEREEEIDAEN  MEERE
FPEEXAEHEEEA R ZRS
ZHEREH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12.

EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals with the highest
emoluments were not the Directors for both
years. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the other five (2017: five) individuals,
included two (2017: two) senior management,
are as follows:

EREEAEMERRSH
AL

() EEBREHFAL
MEFE 2 A= HATH
WHES - EHAR(ZZT—+t
F:RAZB)ALTERBEMS
(Z2—tF : MB) SREE
AB - HSBEEHIAT -

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Salaries, allowances and e R NRHEMER
other benefits 4,547 4,491

Retirement benefit scheme RUKE AT 23R

contributions 20 90
4,637 4,581

The emoluments of the five (2017: five)
individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following band:

ZhAB(ZE—+tF : A% &
BHFATZHMEe N T Ty EE
A

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 T B 1,000,000 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to 75 ¥ 1,000,001 TR
HK$1,500,000 75 #1,500,000 7T 1 1

244  SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED H{EERE A IR A F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

12. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12. SREEAEMEREEHFAL
EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS (#&)
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Senior management of the Company (b) EATISREEAR
The emoluments of the senior management of KRS REBABZME N
the Company are within the following band: FRE|EBEA -
Number of individuals
AE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 Tz %% 1,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to 751,000,001 TE
HK$ 1,500,000 78# 1,500,000 7T 1 1
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
No interim dividend was paid during the year (2017: FRALERNFHARE(ZZE—t
nil). The Directors do not recommend any payment FOB) EETEZINBE_F
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December —NFE+t-A=1t—HItFERH
2018 (2017 nil). ERRMRE (=T —15F  #) -
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On 8 September 2017, Victory Devotion Limited
("Victory Devotion”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as vendor entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party as purchaser to dispose of (i) the 80%
equity interest in Honour Rich China Development
Limited (“Honour Rich”, together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Honour Rich Group”)); (ii) all the
shareholder’s loans due and owing by Honour Rich
to Victory Devotion in amount of approximately
HK$113.3 million (the “Honour Rich Shareholder
Loan”); and (iii) all the loans due and owing by a
person who is the ultimate beneficial owner of Up Fly
Limited (“Up Fly”), a company which holds 20%
equity interest in Honour Rich (the “JV Partner”) in
amount of approximately HK$5.9 million (the
"Related Loan") at a consideration of HK$12 million.
The completion of the said disposal took place on the
same date. The operation of the Honour Rich Group
represented the entire business segment of lottery
business of the Group and therefore the cessation of
the business was treated as discontinued operation in
these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 14. BRI REEK

RZZTE—tFhLANB ARF—
MEEZZENBARBBERAA
(I8Bs)) ERER)B—RBIUE
=HF(ERER)FIVEERZ
BENEEFRBHERAR AR
B BRENBRAR (HEEEE
B 1)) H80% ki : (N EEHERH
BHAEREERESBN AR BE
113,300,000 T ([BEREEK]) :
A R(id—BBRABRA A MR
- —HBEEEEN20% KRENA
A BREREREEANALT(EER
HDERNFEERCBN BB
5,900,000 7 ([fEEEER]) - R(EA
75 12,000,000 7T bl & EIE
REIAEK - BF£E 2 EEHA
SEREXBOHBIEEES - i)
RIFXEBDIRBRE BT RS ER
FEoR [IFEEEZIERBEERE
RIS E TS RS a W BmEk
TERBERIEREXETERIE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

(a) The analysis of the results of the

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

14. BRI EK (])

(a) FFAGEEERZERILEEHX

discontinued operation included in the BEBEHWT :
consolidated statement of profit or loss

are as follows:

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
BT
Revenue I %5 19,097
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,508)
Gross profit EF 17,589
Other revenue and gains Hoh i as U 30
Administrative expense TR (15,345)
Selling expenses SHE R (2,145)
Profit before taxation BR A5 Bl A 129
Taxation I8 =
129
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HEMEB A A2 EE (fF33) (37,954)
Loss for the year from discontinued HREBKRIEEEK
operation KEEEE (37,825)
Attributable to: MU T & EEN
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSI ) S (37,851)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR = 26
Loss for the year from discontinued REEKRIEEEK >
operation KEERE (37,825)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2w
Exchange differences on translation BREBHENBAR
of financial statements of MBMKRMEEZ
disposed subsidiaries ME H = 5E 2,126
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 14. ERIERE XK (8)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Profit/(loss) before taxation from (b) RECKRILEKREEK KR
discontinued operation is arrived at AT, (EEB) RT3
after charging the following: E/A :

2017

—E—+F

HK$’'000

BT T

Auditors’ remuneration Z AN B & -
Depreciation on owned property, BEYWE  HWEMRE

plant and equipment ZITE 694
Loss on disposal of property, HEWME  BEL&E

plant and equipment ZEBE 5

Operating lease rentals of properties MELEHERS 1,070

Staff costs B TR 10,639

(c) Cash flows from discontinued () CRUIEREEBZBHER

operation: B
2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
BT T
Net cash outflow from operating activities &8 4 & &) 2 IR £ 7 H 7 F 58 (7,496)
Net cash inflow from investing activities && EE 2R & RAFEE =
Net cash inflow from financing activities Ft & &) 2 IR & A F 58 7,521
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 K&IR4&Z(EE B & HNFE 25
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15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(@) From continuing and discontinued

operations:
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per
share from continuing operations attributable

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

15. 8REF](&8)

(a) REFFEKERCRILEREE

E¥,
RABRREMITELEER
MERERREF,(EE) hiR

to the owners of the Company is based on the BATEEE -
following data:
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit/(loss): AL (E5E) -
Profit/(loss) for the year RAFIRREEAREE
attributable to the m, (&)
owners of the Company 54,464 (29,810)
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
‘000 ‘000
Shares Shares
Fi Fix
Number of shares: BROoEE
Weighted average number of s+ E&FREARZF],
shares for the purpose of (BE) 2B
basic earnings/(loss) per share 1924 4,926,491 4,926,491

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was the
same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share.
There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for both years presented.

BE-F—\ER-T—t%
+=—A=+—BILEE &
BHERF)(R) BER SR
BEABF, (FH) > REWE
2 |EERBBRITEN 2
ERE B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(CONTINUED)

(b) From continuing operations:
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per
share from continuing operations attributable

5. BRER(BR) (&)

(b) REFERSLEK:
ARARBRERBELSEER
ZEBRERER,(EE) TR

to the owners of the Company is based on the BUATS8ETE
following data:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T
Profit/(loss): =R (EE) -
Profit/(loss) for the year ZN/NSI Y A
attributable to the REERF,
owners of the Company (E18) 54,464 (29,810)
Add: Loss for the year - REERIERE
attributable to the owners E 3 . /NC]
of the Company from RREERFEE
discontinued operation B8 - 37,851
54,464 8,041

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings/(loss) per share.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 was the
same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share.
There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for both years presented.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15. BIRERF(E8) (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) From discontinued operation:
The calculation of the basic loss per share from
discontinued operation attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

() RECHRIEEERE:

AN FRE A BRI
B2 SREAFEIRENT
B E -

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT T BT T
Loss: &iE
Loss for the year attributable to  E DR IFKEEEKE
the owners of the Company iN/NE])5 3
from discontinued operation e ARFEEE - (37,851)

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss
per share.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 was the same as the basic loss
per share. There were no potential dilutive
ordinary shares outstanding for that year
presented.

FrRAD B EERN EX LS
BEARNETEEZ D -

HE-2—tF+-A=t—
HIEERE - SRESHRAES
NEREAKFE - RELBE
BRI BTSN 2 RS
A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. M1 - BERRE

Furniture,
Freehold fittings and
landand  Leasehold office Motor Motor
Building improvements  equipment vehicles yacht Total
KARE Bf - %E
THREF BEXE RHLOZRG ot il ait
HKS$' 000 HK§'000 HK$" 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS" 000
AETT AT AT BT AT BT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2017 R_F-t5-A-A 12970 3,276 9,586 4,869 24,747 55,448
Additions NE - 64 138 49 - 251
Disposals ik - - (181) - (4,700 (4,881)
Derecognised on disposal of REEHBATRRL
subsidaris (note 33) Bl 5) - (1,156) (8674) - - (9.830)
Exchange alignment AR 1,001 306 1114 - - 2421
At 31 December 2017 and RIF-tFTZA=1-BR
1 January 2018 “F-\#-A-H 13,97 2,490 1,983 4918 20,047 43,409
Additions HE - 9 264 195 - 468
Disposals HE - - (31) - - (31
Exchange alignment [ (1,060) (238) (482) ) - (1784)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+-R=1-H 1291 2,261 1734 5,109 20,047 42,062
Accumulated depreciation ZitE
At 1 January 2017 W_E-t5-f-A 1912 2,369 5,166 1,726 6,371 17,544
Charge forthe year ERSH 3 182 93 1403 2005 4850
Disposals ik - - (181) = (4,700) (4,881)
Fliminate on disposalof ML ENBAARH
subsidiaries (note 33) (Wit33) - (825) (4811) - - (5,630)
Fxchange alignment [ 165 393 674 - - 1232
At 31 December 2017 and RIE-tE+-A=+-RK
1 January 2018 Z5-\§-R-H 2,404 2119 1,781 3129 3,676 13,109
Charge for the year Eh 38 116 164 1,189 2,005 3802
Disposals HE - - (31) - - 31
Exchange alignment B 5 (204) (216) (480) (1) - (901)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+Zh=1-H 2528 2,019 1434 4317 5,681 15,979
Carrying amount KaE
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+-A=1-A 10,383 M 300 192 14,366 26,083
At31 December 2017 ROE-HE2At-R 15 30 0 178963 3030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BMEKRXE(E)
(CONTINUED)

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—EB-NF —ET—+F
+=—A=+—HB +=—A=+—H
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
BT T BT T
Freehold land and building held ~ A EBLAIME IS ~
outside Hong Kong KAEELH RETF 10,383 11,567
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. B EE

Trademark Client lists Total
5L EFEE &ast
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT BT BT T
Cost RS
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZFE—+tF—H—H 25,151 7,031 32,182
Exchange alignment P SH 2L 1,927 538 2,465
At 31 December 2017 and R-ZT—+%F
1 January 2018 +=—A=+—8xk
—T—-)\F—H—H 27,078 7,569 34,647
Exchange alignment bE 5, 28 (2,043) (571) (2,614)
At 31 December 2018 R=-B—N\EF
+=H=+—H 25,035 6,998 32,033
Accumulated amortisation R4 RRERE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+tF—H—H (17,130) (7,031) (24,161)
Impairment loss REERE (4,557) — (4,557)
Exchange alignment ME 54, 58 B (1,464) (538) (2,002)
At 31 December 2017 and R -ZT—+4F
1 January 2018 +-A=+—8xXK
—F-NF—H—H (23,151) (7,569) (30,720)
Reversal of impairment loss  SE{EE18 D 3,164 - 3,164
Exchange alignment PE 5 FE 2L 1,595 571 2,166
At 31 December 2018 R=EB—N\F
+=A=+—H (18,392) (6,998) (25,390)
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2018 R=-B—N\F
+—-—BA=+—H 6,643 - 6,643
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—tF
+=ZA=+—H 3,927 - 3,927
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Trademark

The trademark named as “Jade Tours” is a well-
known travel agency brand registered in Canada. The
Directors assessed that the trademark is having
indefinite useful lives because the trademark was
expected to contribute to net cash inflow indefinitely
and can be renewed by the Group at minimal cost.

In accordance with HKAS 36, the Group completed
its annual impairment test for the trademark by
comparing its recoverable amount to its carrying
amount as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The
Group has conducted a valuation of the trademark
based on the value in use calculations. With reference
to the valuations carried out by the Valuer, the
recoverable amount of the trademark is higher than
its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of
trademark was equivalent to approximately
HK$6,643,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
equivalent to approximately HK$3,927,000).
Therefore, a reversal of impairment loss equivalent to
approximately HK$3,164,000 has been recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
impairment loss equivalent to approximately
HK$4,557,000). The recognition of reversal of
impairment loss is mainly contributed by the increase
in profit forecast of the travel business in Canada.
Any adverse change in the assumptions used in the
calculation of the recoverable amount would result in
impairment loss.

17.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

BREE (H)

a5k

[Jade Tours| F1RERBIIINEXRFE
AR ERIERE - AREEES
AERBERIASRAERE - WAl
RASBEUMTNRE 2K ANES
WNEETHRNECERAFHARE
PR o

BRIBFBGFEREICH  A5E
BEZzalpeEEEAR -
—NEFErR_E—+F+_A=+—
HZBREBEELER  FEATKEE
E2FERENR - AEBERE
FREEFESEZAPITETHE -
LEMBEMETZHE BE2H
Ke¢BEarREFERBE  R=2F
—N\F+—A=+—8 " BIEZA]
el & BEAEE P 498 % 6,643,000 7T
(ZE2E—+tF: HERHOEK
3,927,0007C ) e # It BE - ZT
—N\FE+-_A=+—HILFEEE®
REEBEBEEELDRASEROBE
3,164,000 t( —Z & —tF : HEE
BHEERL B 4,557,000 ) © #
R EEEEDEZHRMNE XK
TS m A FEOR EFHFTER - ARG
e ¢ 2 REWE ERAF
BE)  HRREELRERIE -
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Trademark (continued)

The valuation of the trademark is based on the relief-
from-royalty method and uses cash flow projections
based on financial estimates covering a five-year
period, the expected sales deriving from the
trademark in the travel CGU and a pre-tax discount
rate of approximately 26% (2017: approximately
26%). The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2017: 2%) growth
rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for travel markets in which the
Group operates. The values assigned to the above
assumptions reflect past experience and are
consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management believes
that the assumption is reasonably achievable.

Client List

The Directors assessed that the client list is having 15
years of useful lives from the date of acquisition. The
carrying amount of the client list was fully impaired
in the year ended 31 December 2014. The
recognition of impairment loss is mainly contributed
by the increase in contributory charge of fixed assets.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 7. B EE (&)

A ()
MEZAERAMNEFEERES
FERrE UHABREBREAFHZ
B EEr - HHREIRERSEL
BB 2 PAE 2 5 B BB DA R R R A B
WEL26% (ZT—HF : £926%)
BHEzREREEI#ET - BAaR
FHzHEeREARAEEERE
2% (ZB—+F :2%)HE - 5
1R R A A S B & & P IR
HEMH T RBFEHERE . LR
RZIAEBEERMB AL WH
EEEEITNZEMGEE 28
HE - BEEREZBRRIAEER
B o

EFBE

EXMEEPREZNERFAR
WEHHES15F  FTRPREZE
BEERB8EZE-_FT-—HNF+_-A
=t+—HIFEDEZHREE - - #ER
BEREE 2R A EEEE BN
BN o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

18. BEWHE

Fair value HK$'000
AT BT
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+tF—H—H 191,708
Addition NE 21,107
Increase in fair value recognised WS BRRANERZ A AL

in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss 79,185
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 MRZ-ZT—+F+_A=+—"HK

—E-N\F—HA—H 292,000

Acquisition of assets through acquisition HRWENEBAREBESE

of subsidiaries (note 35) (Htat35) 148,000
Increase in fair value recognised REEEBRRAERZ AFEEN

in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss 27,300
Transfer to stock of properties (note 21) EREYETE (MiF21) (23,700)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—N\E+=-A=+—H 443,600

A fair value gain on the investment properties of
approximately HK$27,300,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately
HK$79,185,000). The direct operating expense from
investment properties is amounting to approximately
HK$943,000 (2017: approximately HK$776,000) and
the rental income generated from the investment
properties is approximately HK$8,006,000 (2017:
approximately HK$6,510,000).

BHE_ZT—-N\F+-A=+—81
FE BREWMEZATFERZNHE
# 27,300,000 LR R B B R P
R(ZZT—+F : £/8% 79,185,000
TL) c REREMFEZHEEKLERY
#) A BE# 943,000 (=ZF—+HF:
#) B % 776,0007T) - MR BIREY)
¥ 22 WAL A B 8,006,000 7T
(ZZ—+F : 475%6,510,0007T) °
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(CONTINUED)

The Group’s properties interest held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purpose are measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for an investment
properties. The fair value of the investment properties
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 has
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out
on the respective date by the Valuers who have
appropriate qualification and recent experience in the
valuation of similar property in the relevant locations.
The management works closely with the Valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to model. The management reports the
valuation report and findings to the Directors half
yearly to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value of the investment properties. The highest and
best use of the investment properties are its current
use in estimating the fair value of the properties.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong is determined using combination of
income capitalisation method and direct comparison
method (2017: combination of income capitalisation
method and direct comparison method) by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per saleable square foot basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under
the fair value hierarchy (2017: level 3). There were no
transfers into or out of level 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out the fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REWMXE (&)

AEERBLELEHAER B UKIRA
CRIEETNIEERAENYERERK
AAFERAGFE  WHERKE
MERBEEAR - BE-_T—\F
MZTE—+F+A=+—HBLHF
B "EWEZAFEEHAER
EERITAEREE 2 BUMER
BEFEAFIDBLER 2 (GEM »®
EE PR EEREEER - BEEE
B EMEREE - SEEENG
BRHEREXNNEASE - BEE
B¥FRESHRE —RHERER
R UBEREMELTEES
BRE - FEBETMEL A FER -
KREME S RREREREER
AR °

NRBBZREMEZAFETIE
2ERALBYEOREERE TN
REHEBERELEARA S I
ABERMOERBERLEE(ZT—+
F:AHBRABERNMOERERLE
BVETE °

BE_T- N\t _-_HA=+—HL
FE REVEDBRRFHERE
BRETE=R(—T—tF: F£=
B) e FRN - F— ZR=ZAHMEE
ASEH -

ARE RERESRUB 2 F
S RE B 7 B2 BRAAT
ERH BRI 2 A REH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW= (&)
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the fair value TR AEBRIEEWEN NEE
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment P=t&
properties:
Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2018 Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs weighted average
R=F-NE
t=B=1-A
i ZAVE fhERE LYEER EXTTERBARE  SEIMEVH
HK$'000
ABTR
Units 1003-1004A, 10/F 284,600 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HKS35,472 to HK$54,224
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square foot
BERL1E10R1003ER WABKLERERLEE =8 EETARERER WD TEREMUT
1004A% i
Capitalisation rate 12%
AL E
Units 1001A, 10/F 57,600 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HK$39,991 to HK$61,133
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square foot
BEFL1E10B1001AE WAEALER AR Y e ¥R RERARESR B399 T EER6113 T
(Capitalisation rate 12%
-8
Units 10048, 10/F 101,400 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HK$39,955 to HK$54,225
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square foot
BERL1E101008% WAEALERERLEE =8 ST ARERERER #3995 TERM54.257
Capitalisation rate 12%
BR{LE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment

properties: (continued)

18. REMW= (IR)

TRELAAEEREVENRFE
BHtE ()

Fair value at
31 December Fair value Significant Range or
Description 2017 Valuation technique hierarchy unobservable inputs weighted average
RZF—t4%
+-A=1-H
it ZATE fAERE ATEER EAMIEREAE  SEUNETY
HK$' 000
AT
Units 1003-1004A, 10/ 269,000 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HK$31,994 to HK$61,728
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre and direct comparison method saleable square foot
BERLIEI10B103RR BRABRMERERLRE =4 BB TAREAMEER B%31904 T EA%61 7287
1004A%
Estimated monthly HK$52 to HK$103
rental value per
saleable square foot
[EIEAGTHRERER AR TZABI103T
HeER
Capitalisation rate 1.8%
ARk
13/F, Sing-Ho 23,000 Income capitalisation method Level 3 Estimated price per HK$17 347 to HK$21,322
Finance Building, Wanchai and direct comparison method saleable square foot
B EREBAR3E WABRERER S 8K = EETARERERER B% 17307 w282 3027

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

Estimated monthly HK$28 to HK$30
rental value per
saleable square foot

ErEAGEARERER AEBTEAETL
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Capitalisation rate 25%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the valuations of
investment properties were based on either the
investment method which capitalises the rent
receivables from the existing tenancies and the
potential reversionary market rent of the properties
or direct comparison method by reference to
comparable market transactions.

A significant increase/(decrease) in estimated rental
value per saleable square foot in isolation would
result in a significantly higher/(lower) fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significantly lower/(higher) fair value of the
investment properties.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per saleable
square foot in isolation would result in significantly
higher/(lower) fair value of the investment properties.

The Directors believe that any possible changes in
input values would not cause significant change in
fair value of the investment properties.

The properties are either leased out in return of
receiving rental income or held for capital
appreciation and are measure using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted as investment
properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
had pledged all (2017: one) of the investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately
HK$443.6 million (2017: approximately HK$269.0
million) to secure bank loans granted to the Group
(note 27).

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

18. REMW= (IR)

R-EBE-N\F+-A=+—8" %K
BYERTIRBEREE(BIEYEDIR
THERK S REEERTS
HEERNL) KERLER(2E
AELEMSER5) E1THE

Bt r T READEEHSERSE
BAEEN,ORD) @< REYE
ZRFERELA(TRE) - BER
ERBBAEZM ORD) LR
BMEZ NTEKRRE NE(LF) -

T RE A E A B EBANEL
m/ D) B RENEZ AFE
KHBEF(FRE) -

EFRE BABBIEMAEE
EZR St \%’ﬂ&éﬁ#@%Z N FAEEMX
Ej(ﬁ;‘.’:

W) 2R R IR ERE © WA T AR 3ok
EEARTHE  RAAFERAE
WD BMARSREYE -

HE-_T-N\F+ZA=+—HL
FE  AEEEKEME(ZT—+
F:—IH)REYE  REHENARS
%44360000075(_ —tF 4
% 269,000,0007T) A BT T AL
lmfﬁﬁg RVE AR (FI5E27) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REEE QT 2R

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—B-N\F —F—tF

+=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

P5E BET T BT T

Deemed capital contribution R{EEREE (b) 103,200 103,200

Goodwill EBES (© 19,409 19,409

Share of results of associates JE{LFi = A B F45 165,046 96,936

287,655 219,545

Amounts due from associates J& B2 A 7] 70 I8 (d), 39(b) 317,419 317,542
Amount shown under EMEBEERTR

non-current assets -] 605,074 537,087
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REtE R R 2= (&)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial jx$ﬁ%ﬁljzﬁﬁﬁk§#4 REe HM&#&
information to the carrying amount of the interests in RAPFTIERNEE QN7 2 s
associates recognised in the consolidated financial (=P 3
statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—2-N\F —F—tF
+=ZA=+—H8 tZA=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net liabilities of the associates RSN = K- (154,370) (293,371)
Proportion of the Group's REE 2 B EERLLA
ownership interests 49% 49%
Share of net liabilities of the JE R Bt BEFE
associates (75,641) (143,751)
Goodwill [EEES 19,409 19,409
Effect of fair value adjustments WER N FEARZE
at acquisition 240,687 240,687
Deemed capital contribution BIEEARLEE 103,200 103,200
Amounts due from associates JFE Lk B 2 N | FR 0B
(note 39(b)) (K17£39(b)) 317,419 317,542
605,074 537,087
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REFE QAR Z2 = (F)
(CONTINUED)
(a) The following list contains only the particulars () TREHINEHAEEEERE
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate EBKTEZE S NG 2
entities, which principally affected the results or HIE ZEHEARYE AL
assets of the Group: TMEAEE :

Proportion of ownership interests

G b
Place of Particulars of Group's Held
Incorporation/ issued and paidup  effective bythe  Heldbya Principal
Name of associate operations share capital ~ interests ~ Company  subsidiary activity
i/ ERAR A%E  mARE  A-FHKE
BENTAR XY HRkrEts  ERER KE  LAKE IEXR
% % %
Pier 16— Property Development Limited Macau 100,000 shares of 49 - 49 Property holding
("Pier 16 — Property Development”) (note) MOP100 each
TARNEERROERAR i 100000 R BHREE VES
(TR nEER ) (Wit) 100RMT2 &b
Note: As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, Pier 16 — Wiz R-FB-NFR-_FB—+F+=
Property Development held the equity interests of the A=1+—H +NEWEEER
following companies with the details as below: B TR E]RAE - BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(CONTINUED)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

19. REEE D F 2R ()

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of associates, all of which are unlisted corporate
entities, which principally affected the results or
assets of the Group: (continued)

(a) TRESIHAEEXRELE

B

EBXNEIEXEZIHERRZ

ZEBERARARIEL

mEAER (&)

Place of Particulars of Proportion of effective
Incorporation/ issued and paid up interests held by Pier 16 —
Name of associate operations share capital Property Development  Principal activity
BeELRLR i/ BRTRARRERE HtARNERRRE  IERE
gxu8 Lt 3]
2018 2017
Z2-N\F -1
% %
Pier 16 — Entertainment Macau 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Provision of
Group Corporation Limited and MOP1,000 management services
respectively for casino operations
TABREEERRAT P 217 R {E 24,000 %M RRESEER(
R1,000 %P2 R{A BRRE
Pier 16 — Management Limited MacauHong Kong 2 shares of MOP24,000 100 100 Hotel management

I BERARAT

and Macau

B/ EERER  2RAAIEEA0008H7

and MOP1,000
respectively

R 1,002 7.2 fln
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(9,

(d)

The deemed capital contribution is referenced
to the financial guarantee contract (note 30)
granted by the Group to the associates.

Goodwill

Because goodwill is included in the carrying
amount of the interests in associates and is not
separately recognised, it is not tested for
impairment separately by applying the
requirements for impairment testing in HKAS
36. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
interests in associates is tested for impairment
as set out in note 19(d) below.

The amounts due from associates are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment. Their carrying amounts are not
materially different from their fair value.

The Group completed its annual impairment
test for interests in associates by comparing the
recoverable amount of interests in associates to
its carrying amount as at 31 December 2018
and 2017. The Group has engaged the Valuer
to carry out a valuation of the interests in
associates as at 31 December 2018 based on
the value in use calculations. This valuation uses
cash flow projections based on financial
estimates covering a ten-year period, and a pre-
tax discount rate of approximately 8% (2017:
approximately 12%). The cash flows beyond the
ten-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% (2017: 3%) growth rate for the casino and
hotel industries in which are operated by
associates. The values assigned to the above
assumptions reflect past experience and are
consistent with management plans for focusing
operations in these markets. Management
believes that the assumption is reasonably
achievable.
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19. REE DRz s ()

(b)

(9

(d)

RIEEARL B IEAEE M
NABEH 2 BEERE (K
5£30) °

[k

=) NEE RPN N
mAREE - WEBIHER - W
BARBE B ST ERE 365
ZRAE R AR EAETTIBILRE
R - AT BT KRR
19(d) &L - M E AR 2
Z ERPARE ES R ORE R o

JE Ui Bt 2 B RO A AR R
BRI EETFERY - ZF
IR Z REE R H A EI
BERER -

REEBFENBE AR 2R
2B EHENR T —N
FERZF—+tF+ZA=1+—
HZEREEELER - #EATK
HERBEQRZERZFE
BEAR AEEEZEME
MR EREETE S EAE
E-ZFT-NF+=ZA=+—H
HRBE QR ZERETR
B 2XHERARBERE T
FH 2 B RS ET DA R BR B AT AL
WERL%( —T—tF: 4
12%) 15 1 2 3R & 7t = T8 R #
ToHATFHZRASRER
FR Bt N R P AS & IR G435 IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE DRl 2 %= ()

(CONTINUED)

REEBERARCEE B
&~ Was MREAREBENT

(e) The following is summary of aggregate amounts (e)
of assets, liabilities, revenue, and results of the
Group's associates:

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

i N

—E-N\F —T—+tF

+=ZA=+—8 TZ-HA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT TT

Non-current assets EMENEE 729,513 881,772
Current assets mMENEE 461,884 337,183
Current liabilities RBBE (463,329) (418,987)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (882,438) (1,093,339)
Net liabilities BEFHE (154,370) (293,371)
2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Revenue e 735,202 609,668
Other revenue and gains HA Y as R 56,321 16,534
Profit/(loss) for the year REHF, (Fi8) 139,000 (20,162)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEECER

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E —F—+F

+=A=+—8 +t—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Share of net assets L& EFE 3,538 2,941

Amount due from a joint venture JEU—EA & EIA

(note 39(b)) (K7aE39(b)) 8,970 10,170
12,508 13,111
Less: Recognise of impairment loss )& : # R E{E &2 (7,200) (8,700)
5,308 4,411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEDE R (E)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T 2 B RS E R R AR A B S R
information to the carrying amount of the interests in RAAPFMERNEE X2 ERER
joint ventures recognised in the consolidated financial B2 $0R
statements:
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=ZA=+—HB +=—A=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net assets of the joint venture BEPEZEEFE 12,498 11,604
Less: Non-controlling interests B FEIERRAE S (5.422) (5,722)

Net assets attributable to owners & &R R ELEE S E

of joint venture 7,076 5,882
Proportion of the Group's REE 2 B EER LD

ownership interests 50% 50%
Share of net assets of the BIREE X EEFE

joint venture 3,538 2,941
Amount due from a joint venture fEU—R4& & E0H

(note 39(b)) (Hfe£39(b)) 8,970 10,170
Less: Recognise of impairment loss & : R RE{E &2 (7,200) (8,700)

5,308 4,411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. AR E R (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Details of the Group’s interests in the () AEBNREETCE R
joint ventures are as follows: BT :
Form of Particulars of
business Place of issued and paid Group's  Principal
Name of Joint venture structure incorporation  up share capital effective interests  activity
EBTR A5H
RELEER $BRERA AfRAR LR BB ERES: TEXE
Surplus Win Enterprises Incorporated BV 2 shares of 50%  Investment
Limited (note) USD1 each holding
BEBCFARAR (W) R A AERLES RERER RARR
Ewd v
Note: As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, Surplus Win Hiet R-F—NFER=F—tF+=
Enterprises Limited held 80% effective interests in A=+—H  BBEFXEERAA
Double Diamond International Limited (“Double ##% Double Diamond International
Diamond”, a company incorporated in the BVI with Limited ([Double Diamond/ * —
limited liability). The principal activity of Double FIREBELZ B SAMA LB
Diamond is pier operation in Macau. R 2 Al ) 280% % B # af -
Double Diamond = Z 7£ 8 P &
BTG °
(b) Aggregate financial information of (b) EREFERzEELEZ
joint ventures that are not individually B E R AR
material:
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,293 29,293
Current assets mMENEE 1,659 3,003
Current liabilities mEBERE (18,454) (20,692)
Net assets BEFE 12,498 11,604
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REE X R (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Aggregate financial information of (b) ERIAFERZEELEZ
joint ventures that are not individually G R & : (&)

material: (continued)

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Revenue Wz 1,898 1,731
Expenses F (403) (411)
Profit before taxation B A5 B S ) 1,495 1,320
Taxation 18 - _
Profit for the year REE A 1,495 1,320
The above amounts of assets and liabilities PR EERABELEAENT

include the following: &IF

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

+=ZA=+—H8 +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEER 1,660 3,003
Amounts due to shareholders — FE{T AR R FIE (17,940) (20,340)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

(c) The amount due from a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms

of repayment.

(d) The Group has advanced HK$12 million to the
joint venture to finance the acquisition of
certain assets. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group will not demand for repayment
within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and is therefore classified as

non-current assets.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of amount due from a joint venture was
approximately HK$9.0 million (2017:

approximately HK$10.2 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the accumulated
impairment loss of interests in joint ventures
was approximately HK$7.2 million (2017:
approximately HK$8.7 million), which is
considered to be adequate as there are no
indication for further impairment. The
recoverable amount of this advance is
determined based on the net cash flows from
operations estimated by the management for

the coming five years.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, a
reversal of impairment of HK$1.5 million (2017:
nil) was recognised due to recovery of the

amount due.
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20. AEE ¥ ()

(9]

(d)

U —REaErtEREARER
o 8 M E EE R

AEBEMAEDERGBE
12,000,0007T * Bl EE TE
EREES -BEFERA A&
B TeZRkRmERRE
+TZEARER  MEKZE
BROBRIERBEE °

RZE—N\FE+_A=+—
H Bl—HEELEREBEZ
B T 18 %V & 75 ¥ 9,000,000 7T
(ZEBE— Lt F: H B
10,200,0007T) °

RZE—N\FE+_A=+—
H ReEEhEIED R
BB B 1B 4 & 75 % 7,200,000
T(ZE—+F: HABK
8,700,0007T ) + A & BF &R
BLRTE—IELHRE - #3
RABRH - ZEBFR 2 E
CRINRERBHARARAFL
LG zReREFR M
BiE -

BE-ZT-/\Ft-A=1—
HIEFEE  BRKE & RK
H EERREREDEE
1,500,0007T( = & — + -
) o



21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

STOCK OF PROPERTIES 21. EFE
HK$’'000
BT
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and HR=-ZT—+&—H—1 -
1 January 2018 —T+t+F+A=1T—A8K
—T-N\F—H—H =
Acquisition of assets through BRWENBARBEEE
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) (K1aE35) 58,180
Additions during the year FAIE N 120,416
Transfer from investment properties (note 18) & 8% &Y% (K7 18) 23,700
Disposal during the year FAHE (16,078)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—NE+=-A=+—H 186,218
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EWE 5 AR R H b FE AR
N
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=B=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
B aE BETT BT
Trade receivables FEWE SRR 42,267 7,344
Less: Impairment loss recognised & : gt FEUNE 5 B8R X (b)
on trade receivables BR B EEE - (81)
(@) 42,267 7,263
Other receivables H Ath fE Y BR K 657 651
Trade and other receivables FEWE F R T N B A
FE UK R X 42,924 7,914
Prepayments and deposits TN FIERIRE 6,215 10,688
49,139 18,602
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to FT B FEW B 5 BR 51 I H fh FE R 3K
be recovered within one year. TEHAR —F WiIgE -
Including in trade receivables, the lease receivables of BREBWE BT 2 EKES
approximately HK$234,000 (2017: approximately A B 234,000 (ZF—HF 1 4
HK$700,000) arise from properties rental income. 751 700,0007T) Y B M EHE e A
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Aging analysis
Included in trade and other receivables, the
aging analysis for trade receivables, based on
the due date and net of impairment loss, is as

22. BIRE JERF N H it fE W BR

(&)

(a) RRERDHT
BRERKE ZER N HEAME
WBRR T 2 EUL B 5 Bk 3R IR B
Hi B RIBRRER R Z Rk

follows: DHTAT -
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
S S
—E-NF —T—+tF
T=A=t—-B t-A=1+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current B1HA 37,848 4,921
31 to 60 days overdue ®EI31 = 60H 3,920 834
61 to 90 days overdue #HI61 £ 90 H 234 962
Over 90 days overdue B HAKEE 90 B 265 546
42,267 7,263

The Group normally allows an average credit
period of 30 days to customers of travel
business (2017: average credit period of 30
days). For the customers of property investment
business, no credit period was granted. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 4(b)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BB 5 MRk I H Ath FB W Bk

(CONTINUED) ™ (%)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWEZRIRE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables B E 5 BR R 2 BB E 18 T5 LA
are recorded using an allowance account unless BAERGCE: RSB
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the [B1 5% 7RI 2 & 1R 45 Al 55 1E R
amount is remote, in which case the impairment i EUEERT  BEEET
loss is written off against trade receivables BEEREREZERZTME(R
directly (see notes 2(j) and 2(k)). At the end of FIEE2() R 2(k)) o REREEIK -
the reporting period, there has no impairment B e W E Z BR S RRUE
loss recognised on trade receivables (2017: BiE(ZE—+tF: B
approximately HK$81,000). 81,0007T) ©
Movement in the impairment loss of trade EWE ZERRBEBEE 2 ZE
receivables is as follows: LU

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
+=ZA=+—HB +—A=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Balance at the beginning FEEH
of the year 81 18
Impairment loss recognised on gt & UL & 5 BR FAIER
trade receivables (note 9(c))  REEIE (A& 9(c) - 81
Amount written off as WEE R E 2
uncollectible G| (81) (18)
Balance at the end of the year K458 - 81
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EWWE SRR E i FEUER
(CONTINUED) ()

(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired
The aging analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired are as follows:

(9]

I #RE 2 B E 5 IR
BRI HER RSB RE &
WE ZERRE DT -

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

+=ZA=+—H8 tZA=1+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Neither past due nor impaired 3 £ 1 8 2\ )5 (B 37,848 4,921

Past due but not impaired BEAE I R E

— Less than 1 month —mEATE—1EA

past due 3,920 834

— 1 to 3 months past due — @B —=={EA 499 1,508

4,419 2,342

42,267 7,263

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 23. EEABITEXK
The amounts are pledged to secure certain banking S ERIED FIEE  EUEEET
facilities granted to the Group (note 41). The pledged REBEZETHRITEE (MzE41) o
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of ZEL MBI HFEIIRE EERN X
approximately 1.20% to 1.70% per annum (2017: #11.20% & 1.70% (ZZF—+4F : F
approximately 0.35% to 0.75% per annum). FIE#0.35% £0.75%)5H & °
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RERBAEEEIER
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i i
—E-N\F —ET—tF
+=ZA=+—8 TZ-HA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash and bank balances e KIRTTHERR 35,720 29,571
Non-pledged bank deposits EEPRITER 15,000 120,085
Cash and cash equivalents in the 4 & MR R KR REFE
consolidated statements of ReneaxkzBAERk
financial position and cash flows IR&%EIER 50,720 149,656

Deposits with banks carry interest at market rates
which is approximately 0.18% to 0.95% per annum
for current year (2017: approximately 0.15% to
0.60% per annum).

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2018, there has an amount denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB") of approximately RMB383,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$441,000) (2017:
approximately RMB776,000, equivalent to
approximately HK$941,000). Remittance of RMB out
of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

RAFE » IRITFFILT 5 F F XK
#470.18% £ 0.95% (ZZE—+4F : F
MEA0.15% F0.60% )T & °

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H2ZR
e NAEEEEEY  BE—FU
ARE(TAREDFBEZHIBLHA
K ®383,000t(#H FE R L B &
441,0007T) (ZZ2—+tF : HARK
776,000 7T * 1 R 4978 % 941,000
7o) o iF ARMIE X P BIRINER R
B BN B 2 INEE FIFFR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. BEeRBEEEER ()
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing MEFHELNEEHER
activities:
Loan from
a director and
Bank Loans controlling
loans payable shareholder Total
—BREERER
RITEN EREX RRER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(tzE27) (Pt 28) (M&£29)
At 1 January 2017 n=ZE—tF—-R—A 122,500 30,668 - 153,168
Change in financing cash flows: REREFEEH :
Repayment in bank borrowings EBHTEE (122,500) = - (122,500)
Repayment in loan from BEFERBEERER
non-controlling shareholder - (1,072) - (1,072)
Increase in loan from FEERRRETEM
non-controlling shareholder - 3,152 - 3,152
Total changes in financing cash flows EEH & RELHEE (122,500) 2,080 - (120,420)
Exchange adjustments ERAR - 1,790 - 1,790
Other changes: Hitt#8
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HERBAR (f5E33) - (7,306) - (7,306)
At 31 December 2017 R-F—+F+-A=+—H - 27,232 - 27232
At 1 January 2018 n=E-\F-R—AH - 27,232 - 27,232
Change in financing cash flows: BERSRELH
New bank loans raised MBERTER 222,500 - - 222,500
Loan from a director and —ZEEREBRRRER
controlling shareholder - - 39,000 39,000
Total changes in financing cash flows EEH & RE2HEE 222,500 - 39,000 261,500
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (2,054) - (2,054)
Other changes: Higg
Transaction with non-controlling HIERER RS
interests (note 36) (Hizt36) - (25,178) - (25,178)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-N\¥+-A=1-H 222,500 - 39,000 261,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ENE SRR EMENER
=hH

TA
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
S i
—EB-NF —E—tF
+=—A=+—HB +=—A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEsd B¥TT BT
Trade payables JENE SRR (a) 32,592 5,821
Accrued charges and other  FEETE A R Hth

payables JFEAS BR 3K 17,021 10,876
49,613 16,697

(a) Aging analysis (a) FRERDAT

ERERNEZRRANEME
R 2 BN E S RFIRE
HB 2 BREe DT

Included in trade and other payables, the aging
analysis of trade payables, based on the due
date, is as follows:

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

+=-A=+—-H +=—A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Current BN HA 31,248 4,562
31 to 60 days 31£260H 435 325
61 to 90 days 612 90H 243 211
Over 90 days #8348 90 H 666 723
32,592 5,821
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

26.

27.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income comprises of a sign-up bonus for an
on-line ticket processing system and is recognised as
other income in accordance with the terms of the
agreement. The agreement had been renewed for a
period of five years in 2015. The contract period of
this agreement was extended to February 2024.

26.

EEWA
BERABRERIRERBERGFZ
RIAITEAL - WIRB W RGN IERR
HMA - ZBp@EER_E—hF
BHATF  ZWWEIENEE—F
EREZZT-_MF_AH -

BANK LOANS 27. RITEX
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i i
—E-N\E —EFE—tF
+=A=+—-RA +=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Bank loans, secured BIKMBITER 222,500 -
Carrying amount repayable: AR TFIHREREZ
BRmEE
On demand or within one year HRERey—F A 222,500 -
222,500 -
Less: Amount shown under current & : B & &% R&5E
liabilities (222,500) -

Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities

FRBEEIIRER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged all
(2017: one) of its investment properties to secure the
bank loans granted to the Group (note 18). The bank
loans are carrying an interest rate at Hong Kong
interbank offered rate (HIBOR) plus 1.7% to 1.75%
per annum. The weighted average effective interest
rate on the bank loans was approximately 3.39% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
approximately 2.46% per annum).

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )
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SEEHEREMBE(ZE—F : —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

28. LOANS PAYABLE 28. ENEX
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—E-N\E —F—+F
+=A=+-A +=A=1-§
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Loans from non-controlling IEIERIER 2 ER
shareholder
— 1034635 B.C. Ltd. — 1034635 B.C. Ltd.
(“1034635 BC") (1034635 BC) - 27,232
Amounts shown under FERBBETRI SRR
non-current liabilities - 27,232

Note:

1034635 BC was a non-controlling shareholder of 665127 British
Colombia Ltd. (665127 BC”, an investment holding company
indirectly holding the entire shareholding interests in Jade Travel
Ltd. (“Jade Travel”, a company which was incorporated in Canada
and operating travel business)). The loan had been assigned to
1338 Successful Venture Limited (“1338 SV”), an indirect wholly-
owned company of the Company during the year. Details please
refer note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. The loan
was unsecured, interest-free and no demand for repayment within
one year.

1034635 BC /665127 British Colombia Ltd.
([665127 BC | » —[EfE1# #5 5 Jade Travel Ltd.
([Jade Travel] - —ERIMEXEMMK L - 4 &
MERERFE BN A]) 2 BRI B 1ERR A A])
ZIHIERIRR o ZEBAERFNEZZE T AR
A — ] Bl # 2 & #% & 2 7] 1338 Successful
Venture Limited ([ 1338 SV]) ° ## &z 2 k&
B REZN 736 - ZEENBELRE - 2.8
RITER—FEAHELREN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

29. LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR AND 29.  BREEFRERBRRER
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

;S N

—E-N\F —E—+F

+=B=+—-8 +t=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Loan from Mr. Yeung BEEER 39,000 -
On 1 December 2008, Mr. Yeung provided a HK$200 RZZEZENF+A—B  HE&E
million term loan facility to the Company which is [ 728 A AR i = 808 200,000,000
unsecured and charged with interest at the prime TZEHENRRE  ZEXMER
rate quoted for Hong Kong dollars loans by The mIEH - BREBLSELRTA
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation RAFIFTHM B TERKEENX
Limited. The principal amount of the loan facility was FE-RZZETAFMA+TITA -
increased up to HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 (the ZEXRBMEZASBREEASE
“Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan Facility”) and the final 290,000,000 7T ([ &R 2 B R 2
repayment date of the loan and all other sums owing EXmE]) UBBABHAE-ZT
to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Mr. Yeung's Loan —N\NENATZBFFEILZ2HEH
Facility was further extended from 31 October 2018 M RIERI 2B REZERF
to 31 October 2020 by a supplemental letter of B2 ERKAMBHERGREZHA
agreement dated 12 September 2018. FENREEFRBH BAZT—N
FHtA=+—HRE—PLEEE_F

“ZEF+A=+—H-

In the opinion of the Directors, the borrowing of the BEERA LB EEERIETH
said loan from Mr. Yeung was for the benefit of the BEMEARANMNE - ThiR—K
Company and on normal commercial terms where no REGRFKET  BRARASERD

security over the assets of the Company was granted. BEEM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT 30. K ERED
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
" i
—E-NE —T—+tF
+=-A=+—8 +t—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Carrying amount FREE

At the beginning of the year REH] 2,900 10,000

Fair value of financial guarantee R A HBIEER A 4
contract issued during the year < NHE - 3,222
Amortisation for the year TN [ £ (644) (10,322)
At the end of the year RER 2,256 2,900
Current liabilities REAE 644 644
Non-current liabilities EREAE 1,612 2,256
2,256 2,900

In 2017, the Company gave a corporate guarantee
(the “Guarantee”) to a bank in respect of the loan
facilities granted to Pier 16 — Property Development
(the “Loan Facilities”). The maximum guarantee
amount borne by the Company under the Guarantee
was HK$490 million.

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at
31 December 2018 was approximately HK$435.0
million (2017: approximately HK$635.0 million). The
contingent liabilities were disclosed in note 38.

Based on the valuation performed by the Valuer, the
Directors considered that the fair value of the
financial guarantee contract in respect of the
Guarantee was approximately HK$3.2 million at the
date of issuance of financial guarantee contract that
has a corresponding increase in the Group'’s interests
in associates as deemed capital contribution.

RZZT—tF ARAFRRTF S
HEMEERNERBE ([ZERR
B m—HERITIRESEER(Z
EIR]) o NARIRIEZEREED
& = IR 75 & B8 & 7 ¥ 490,000,000
=

R-_E—NFE+_A=+—H8" ' #
ZEXMEBB T ZREEERNE
75 ¥ 435,000,000 C( = F — £ F -
#4775 % 635,000,000 7T ) ° KA A &
RMI 38 # 55 -

BIBGEEMETZEE EEREA
ZERRYBERALOZ L BB
MEERABHNZRAFEHNEBE
3,200,000 7T * MiEEHR 2K E
EMEREEREBENE) 2 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

31.

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of the financial guarantee
contract recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statements of financial position is in accordance with
HKFRS 9 and is carried at amortised cost.

No provision for financial guarantee contracts has
been made at 31 December 2018 and 2017 as the
Directors considered the default risk is low.

TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through utilisation against future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2018,
the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$163.0
million (2017: approximately HK$165.2 million) that
are available to carry forward indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits. Estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$2.4 million and
HK$27.9 million will expire within 5 years and over 5
years respectively (2017: approximately HK$38.0
million expire over 5 years).

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future tax profit streams.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

30. MBEHEEN (B)

31.

REBEEFEMEHREERIE ISR - 5
BEREVZEAEERAEEZ&F
BB RER - WIREE H KA
FIIfR

HREZFR/EVRRIE SR
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e MBRRRAZHIE

WaEBBREFEEEBRER
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HEESFTGEE 2 HIBBEERA
R-RZE—N\FEF+=_A=+—H"
AEBREBEBHNABE
163,000,000 C(Z T —tF : 4978
#165,200,0007T) + A (R HR 4%
AR S AR R FE R TR F o (HETH
THE 1B 5 B 4978 % 2,400,000 7T & 7
# 27,900,000 7T (ZZF—+5F : 4978
# 38,000,000 7T 7A L F 18 2 B ) #%
RAFARAFEEE -
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

SHARE CAPITAL 32. k&
Number Nominal
of shares value
RGO EE H{E
‘000 HK$'000
TR BT T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ GREEH¥0.017T2
AR
At 1 January 2017, 31 December RA=-Z—tH&—H—H -
2017, 1 January 2018 and —E—tF
31 December 2018 +=A=+—8"
—ZE2-NF—HA—H
E=—F-N\F
+=—A=+-—A8 160,000,000 1,600,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ ERXEEB ¥ 0.017T
2 &R
At 1 January 2017, 31 December A=Z—+HF—H—H
2017, 1 January 2018 and —E—tF
31 December 2018 +=—A=+—8"
—E-NF—H—H
R-B-—N\F
+=-—A=+—H 4,926,491 49,265

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of
the Company. All ordinary shares rank pari passu in
all respects among themselves.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 8 September 2017, Victory Devotion entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of (i) the 80% equity interest in
Honour Rich; (i) the Honour Rich Shareholder Loan;
and (i) the Related Loan at a total consideration of
HK$12 million. The completion of the said disposal
took place on the same date.

33.

LERBEANERESTITREIRL
REREERARBRRANE LR
—BR—RZHTARR - FAEEBR
Rt EES T EE AR AR

HE B 2 F

R-_ZE—+tFNANB > BE—
BB E=ZAHRIN— D EBEHE
1% 48 X {8 75 % 12,000,000 7T H £ (i)
EEM80%HE : (NEERREN
AR i fAREER » Lt HEFER
A HK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEME QT (&)
(CONTINUED)
Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and BEHEEENABBZHBLER
the calculation of the loss on disposal, are disclosed EEEZHEAFENT ¢
below:
(i) Consideration received (i) BWRE
As at
31 December
2017
i
—ET—+F
+-—A=1+—H
HK$'000
BETIT
Consideration received by the Group in ~ NEBUIR & MRS EH(EIER
cash and cash equivalents WELZ R AE 12,000
(i) Analysis of assets and liabilities over (i) XEEFE2EEREED
which control was lost #r
As at
31 December
2017
i
—T—+tF
+=-—A=+—H
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment L EN N 4,194
Trade and other receivables JE U B 55 B K % Ll B LU BR K 63,339
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFHIEHR 4,070
Trade and other payables FE <8 5 BR K % Bl &~ BR K (41,477)
Loans payable e E K (7,306)
Net assets disposed ELEEERE 22,820
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEME QT (&)
(CONTINUED)
(iii) Loss on disposal of Honour Rich Group (i) HEEBEEEZEHE
As at
31 December
2017
e
—E—tF
+=-A=+—H
HK$'000
BT T
Consideration received by the Group AEE D WEZKE 12,000
Release of exchange difference upon R ERZIERZ5E
disposal (3,169)
Net assets disposed of subsidiaries AEBRME HEMHRB AR
attributable to the Group L EEFE (22,820)
Assignment of the Related Loan e EE (5,865)
Derecognition of non-controlling interest 4% |F#ERIEIE MG fE 7 (18,100)
Loss on disposal of Honour Rich Group HEZBFE£E 2 EE
(note 14) (Mt 14) (37,954)
(iv) Net cash inflow from disposal of (iv) HEBEEBEZRERANF
Honour Rich Group ]
As at
31 December
2017
e
—E—+F
+=-A=+—H
HK$'000
BT T
Total consideration received B ERRE 12,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balance i : DHEZE L RIIRELEE
disposal of 5 B &8 (4,070)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEERERBZREMAFHE
Honour Rich Group 7,930
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(a) Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000 effective from 1 June 2014.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant
authorities in the PRC, the Group participates in
the relevant social retirement benefit schemes
(the "PRC Schemes”) whereby the Group is
required to contribute to the PRC Schemes to
fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the PRC
Schemes are calculated based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC.
The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the PRC
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution
represents gross contributions by the Group to
the PRC Schemes operated by the relevant
authorities of the PRC.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

34. EERIKER

(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT 34. EERIKRER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) BBARFESTE

(b) Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme
on 5 June 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
which became effective on 10 June 2014.
Unless early termination by the Company in
general meeting or by the board of Directors
(the “Board”), the Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to the Group or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest and any subsidiary of such entity
(“Invested Entity”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors
are authorised at their absolute discretion to
invite eligible persons to take up options to
subscribe for shares. Eligible persons under the
Share Option Scheme include (i) any employee
(whether full time or part time and including
executive director) of any member(s) of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (i) any non-
executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (iii) any consultant,
adviser or agent engaged by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity, who is eligible to
participate in a share option scheme of the
Company; and (iv) any vendor, supplier of
goods or services or customer of or to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity,
who is eligible to participate in a share option
scheme of the Company.

RARRZE—WFAAA
RN —IERE AR AT B ([ BB AR A
HE ) YR -E—WENA
THEAM - RIFBARTRKR
FAeBHESES((EEE))
REKRIE  BRIERE B
B EREERRTF -

B E B e EREAE
SRBTEHASESAEEE
I B R B R A AR 2
MERNANZER ZTMHE
NE([REERDIFLAERZ
BEMBAL

RIZBRESS  EFERE
A2ERBEFREBALE
WEE A AR B I - FEAHE
AElZAEEBALEBREOASE
BERKERBREFMREER
BZEAREE (TwmEB R
B WBERATES) : (A%
BERKERBREFMREER
BZEAFATES(BREE
MIEHITESR)  (NAKEE
falpk B R RIS ERIRE BB
ZREAREARBEARTBR
T8l 2 EEER - EREE
HARIE - R (iv) AEREEAIK A
RAHEAREERSERS
EARNRIBRESE ZEME
R - EmIRGHERHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

There is no provision in the Share Option
Scheme to require a grantee to fulfill any
performance target or to hold the option for a
certain period before exercising the option, but
the Board may at its absolute discretion from
time to time provide such requirements in the
offer of grant of options.

The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company is
492,649,119 shares (being not more than 10%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
(the “Scheme Limit”)), representing
approximately 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
the Scheme Limit save that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company under the Scheme Limit so
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of such
approval (the “New Scheme Limit"). Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the
respective provisions of the scheme(s) of the
Company or exercised options) will not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the New
Scheme Limit.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

34. EERKER (&)

(b) fEMRMESHE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT 34. EERIKRER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) fEMRMESHE (&)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)

Notwithstanding aforesaid in above, the
maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme(s) adopted by
the Company (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) to each eligible person in any
12-month period up to and including the date
of offer shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of offer,
unless such grant is approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting at which such eligible person and his
or her associates shall abstain from voting.

The exercise price in respect of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the
option is offered; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

& B A AT Pt - AR AR
At &I R AR A e A A B Ak
AR BRARTTEZ 2
SN B RS A AR IETT (R T A] T 3
Tz E=HAE - ~EE8
TR EEITIROBEZ30% °
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T-EARHE AERaER
AT RBEBERAE AR A
PRTER A 2 A AA) H 4 8 A A 5t 3
ER LR 2 B E (T
mAETTE - BEHIRTTE)
BTEmE HTMERTZR
MBS THREBNENAH
EAERTRNDBHZ1%
HARRIBERERERKRE £
HERLERERE  BFH
BERATREBREAERE
R LERR - RIBRISH -

RIBBRE B 2 EME
BRZITEESAESTS 2%
BIIERE - EERBER T A
BERAT=FEHhZ2HEE
()P EREE A B H (7R
REXB)EB AT A RE
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EBREZL B B a2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

34. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share option scheme (continued)
The offer of a grant of share option must be
accepted not later than 28 days after the date
of offer, upon payment of a consideration of
HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share option granted is determined by the
Board, save that such period shall not exceed a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
upon which the share option is granted.

No share options had been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up
to 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS

In April 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Gain Glory
Development Limited (“Gain Glory”) and Perfect Top
Development Limited (“Perfect Top”) for an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$58.2
million. The principal assets of Gain Glory and Perfect
Top are properties in Hong Kong, the purpose of the
acquisition is for the Group’s business operation.

In May 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of and the related
shareholders’ loans to Merchant Charm Limited
(“Merchant Charm”) and Massive Success Global
Limited (“Massive Success”) for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$147.5 million.
The principal assets of Merchant Charm and Massive
Success are investments in their respective
subsidiaries which hold investment properties in
Hong Kong, the purpose of the acquisition is for the
Group’s business operation. Details please refer to
the announcements dated 13 February 2018 and 29
March 2018 respectively as well as the circular dated
6 April 2018 all issued by the Company.
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34. EERKER (&)

(b) BBRAESHE ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
eV ERRMEE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS 35. WREE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The acquisitions of Gain Glory, Perfect Top, Merchant L H& Gain Glory ~ Perfect Top * Merchant
Charm and Massive Success did not constitute Charm %z Massive Success I TNE K 275
business combinations and were for the purposes of S0 BB TEWEYE - BESE
acquiring properties. In accordance with HKFRS 3 IR SREERIE 35% [ EKE6] 0 A
“Business Combinations”, such acquisitions did not AUE I EEARE - A 0 ANAF]
give rise to goodwill. Therefore, the Company RIE R R R EERALE -
recognised the assets and liabilities at the dates of
acquisitions.
(a) The assets acquired and liabilities recognised at (@) REZWBEBZEREBEERD
the date of the Acquisition are as follows: wREEmT :
Merchant ~ Massive Gain Perfect
Charm  Success Glory Top Total

&t
HKS$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BETL RETL ARTR ARTR  ARTR

Net assets acquired: BRBEESRE:
Investment properties RENE (H:t18)
(note 18) 53,200 94,800 - - 148,000
Stock of properties MEFE (H21)
(note 21) - - 20,750 37,430 58,180
Trade and other receivables  JEWE FERZ N
Hi W ARR 33 213 3 9 258
Trade and other payables B8 HRA M
H AR (181) (391) - - (572)
Tax payable R HIE (11) (236) - - (247)
Net assets BEFE 53,041 94,386 20,753 37,439 205,619

Total consideration, BRELUTHF
satisfied by: B
Cash consideration HERE (53,041)  (94,386) (20,753) (37.439) (205,619)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS

35. WIREE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of (b) WHEEE RS MLFERE
assets:
Merchant  Massive Gain Perfect
Charm  Success Glory Top Total
At
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT #BETT #B¥TT BT B¥TR
Consideration paid in cash EBEERE (53,041)  (94,386)  (20,753)  (37,439) (205,619)

36. TRANSACTION WITH NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

In November 2018, 1338 SV, as purchaser, entered
into a share purchase agreement with a company, as
vendor, which is the holder of 25% of all outstanding
and issued shares of 665127 BC to purchase and
accept the assignment of (i) 25% of all outstanding
and issued shares of 665127 BC; and (ii) the entire
amount of the shareholder’s loans owing by 665127
BC to the vendor at a total consideration of
CAD1,370,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,184,000). The said acquisition was completed
in end of November 2018 and Jade Travel became an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
upon completion. Details please refer to the
announcement dated 9 November 2018 issued by
the Company.

The difference of approximately HK$4,431,000
between the decrease in the non-controlling interests
and assignment of non-controlling shareholder’s
loans (note 27) and the consideration paid has been
credited to accumulated losses.
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36. EHIFEZERERZRS
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FHRWBEEBREER ST —N\F+—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

There has a capital commitment outstanding
approximately HK$808,000 in respect of
renovation works for the stock of properties at
31 December 2018 which does not provide for
in the consolidated financial statements (2017:
nil).

At 31 December 2018, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for the Group are payable as

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

37. &iE

@ R=ZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—
H BEVMEXEFENREFNIE
ZAREEBERNEAELN B
808,000 T * I K WA 4r & B 75
WRELBEEHE(ZTE—LF:
/) o

(b) R=F—NF+-A=+—
B AR BRI A
T2 BN R ARSI 3

follows: HEBWT -
The Group as lessee AEBEREAA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Within one year —FR 5,551 5,598
In the second to fifth years, RE_ZFRF
inclusive (BEEEMT) 5,306 996
10,857 6,594

The Group lease certain office premises and
office equipment under operating leases. The
leases typically run for period ranging from two
to five years. None of leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEERBEEZHEERET
MAEMERBAERME - H
WP _ERF - HOXL
TeERExAEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

37. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 37. A (4E)

() At 31 December 2018, the Group had () R=Z=FE—NF+=HA=*+—
contracted with the tenants for the following A AEEEBFFTHZARK
future minimum lease receivables: HEEKHESHT -

The Group as lessor AEEERHBEA
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
—2-N\F —T—tF
+=BA=+—HB +tZHA=+—H
HK$/000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Within one year —FR 3,539 5,799
In the second to fifth years, RE_FE2FREF
inclusive (BIEEREMF) - 6,494
3,539 12,293
Property rental income earned during the year FARRZMEE T WAL R
was approximately HK$8,006,000 (2017: 718 006,0007C( — T —+ 4 -
approximately HK$6,510,000). All of the #)7%%6,510,0007T) - A& E
Group's investment properties are held for FBEREMFEAHEIEHEER
rental purpose. It is expected to generate rent T EHAURBEELEN18%
yield of approximately 1.8% (2017: (ZE2—EF : 19%) 2=
approximately 1.9%) on an ongoing basis. EEE
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. AAREE

The Company gave the Guarantee to a bank in RZT—tF AAFARZERR

respect of the Loan Facilities in 2017. The maximum BR—ARITIRHEZER - A2 F

guarantee amount borne by the Company under the BREZERAENEZSRESCHER

Guarantee was HK$490 million (notes 19 and 30). 78 #490,000,0007T (MF5F19%30) °

The outstanding loan under the Loan Facilities as at RZFE-—NF+ZA=+—8" %

31 December 2018 was approximately HK$435.0 EXREE THREREERNAE

million (2017: approximately HK$635.0 million). # 435,000,000 T (=T — L F - 4

75 635,000,000 7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BEATRS
In addition to the transactions and balances detail e S B ElRRE M Rl a <
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, 5 MR - AN & B & (AN Bl Y @
the Group had the following material transactions ATBUTEARRS :

with related parties during the year:

(@) The Group had the following () AXEERAEEREREA
transactions with the related parties THEFLUTRES :

during the year:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —F—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE BT T BT T
Management fee income & Ui K JiE Uy — e Bk 4%
received and receivable A FZ BB EU A
from an associate 8, (i) 274 632
Interest expenses paid to B X —ZEEH#HIE
a director and IRRR R 2 I B
controlling
shareholder 9(a), 29 313 106
Rental income received R8BS A 7] 2 W A B UK
and receivable from e WA
a related company 39(f) 6,991 2,546
Note: HtaE -
() The management fee was charged on actual cost () EBREBEEAFEEFIRHREER
incurred by the Group for provision of management 72 17 R 7% BT 22 £ 2 B BR B AN
and technical services. Bx -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) The outstanding balances with related

39. BEAERF (&)

(b) RBEHREBEALZR

parties at the end of the reporting BELEGIT :
period are as follows:
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i I
—E-N\E —T—+tF
+=ZA=+—H +t—A=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT
Amounts due from JFE Lk B 2 B FNIE
associates 19 317,419 317,543
Amounts due from R —FE &
a joint venture IE 20 8,970 10,170
Loan from a director and —&ZESH3%
controlling shareholder AR AR R B X 29 39,000 -

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Key management personnel (c)
compensation
Compensation for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Directors as
disclosed in note 11, senior management of the
Company and certain of the highest paid
employees as disclosed in note 12 is as follows:

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHE_ZT—)\F+-A=1+—HLEFE

39. BEAERF (&)

TEEEAEHE

FTZEEBEABZHEBER
11 EEZENESRER
M NREEZENAAT SR
ERABRETRAEFREEZ
MRIB)AR -

The Group
rEE
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
i i
—E-N\E T4
+=—A=+—HB +Z-—H=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
LhE=s BT T BT T
Salaries and other short- ;& & H {th %5 Hf
term employee benefits g 8487 5,524 5,098
Retirement scheme RIRET IR
contributions 111 99
Total emoluments are WM AR ER A
included in “staff costs” [ & TR | 9(b) 5,635 5,197
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d) On 1 December 2008, the Company entered

(e)

into a letter of agreement with Mr. Yeung
regarding a term loan facility of up to HK$200
million, the loan is unsecured and charged with
interest at the prime rate quoted for Hong Kong
dollars loans by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The principal
amount of the loan facility was increased up to
HK$290 million on 14 April 2009 and the final
repayment date of the loan and all other sums
owing to Mr. Yeung under the Revised Loan
Facility was further extended from 31 October
2018 to 31 October 2020 by a supplemental
letter of agreement dated 12 September 2018.
The said loan from Mr. Yeung constitutes a
connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but is fully
exempt from shareholders’ approval and all
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Management and services contracts entered
into between Jade Travel and a company owned
by a director of Jade Travel in an amount of
equivalent to approximately HK$734,000 (2017:
equivalent to approximately HK$732,000) also
constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is fully exempt from shareholders’
approval and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

39. BEAERF (&)

(d)

(e)

RZZFEZENF+-_A—H &
AEHGEAER —BEESERS
£ 7 % 200,000,000 2 A
EXRmER L —DiaERG
ZERAERE BRES L
TEZRITERARIMHR B
TERAXEBEMNEGFE R
TZENFNA+IMNAE  ZEX
MEZASCHEERRES
¥ 290,000,0007T © B @B H
HE_E—N\FENA+_BFA
RN 2R B EE R IBE]
EXRMEBE T ERRABLE
RighEZBEMRIB L &EE
FEBHBE-_ZET—NF+ A
—t+—HE—FPEEE_T—
TFE+A=+—H -RELM
MAIE+HAE - Fii2kRE1H5
EEZEFERARNT A
ERXG HERELEMHRAUE
THAEEZERRETRRE
HERFBEREHE

Jade Travel 82 —f& (5 Jade Travel
EEHAEMNRREI LS EEE
B 49 78 ¥ 734,000 7T /) & 1B &
RIGEH(ZZE—+F : HER
AP 732,0007T) - RIE T
RAETOAZETEKARR A
—IHHER S  HEREETR
R+ MAZEEZEIAREST
IRERHLE NPT BB EE 2 HAE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

In June 2017, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) for a
term of two-year in respect of the leasing of the
Group's one of investment properties to a
company which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung, the tenant therefore is a
connected person of the Company. The rental
chargeable under the Tenancy Agreement was
determined after taking into account of the
valuation conducted by the Valuer in connection
with the market rental chargeable in May 2017
in respect of the said property. The entering
into of the Tenancy Agreement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and complies all disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For
further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 26 June
2017.

In February 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a company which
is direct wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yeung to acquire the entire share capital of and
the related shareholders’ loans to Merchant
Charm and Massive Success, which hold
indirectly two investment properties situated at
Admiralty Centre respectively with tenancy
agreements (the “Tenancy Agreements Il”) at a
total consideration of approximately HK$147.5
million (note 35). The acquisition was completed
in May 2018.

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

39. BEAERF (&)

(f)

(9)

RZE—+FA AEEF]
MAMENEERE((HE
W&l ARBEBASER—
HHRGLEZEEREEZD
AIEEAREEHEF —HNKRE
M BRHBEFPARNARZH
EAT - RHEEHZEEBETHA
WEH € Ty E B b ER B
MMER—_ZE—tFRHAM™
SAIWEESETHMEME
E o BRIEEMRANETOAE -
FIVHERHEEX A AT A
BEBERS  WHBSTLET
RMAETOAZEZFIERER
EoE—THBRL2HEARA
BHA—Z—+tF A=+~
HE) A o

RZZE—NE-F A5EHE
—HEBEEEEZERER
BENAREI L —EE W
LA Ug  B& Merchant Charm &
Massive Success B2 & 2 B 1TAX
AEHEBRRERER  ZMEA
AFEREMESFIURNES
RLONEREDE  WHEHEE
W ((HEHZI]) - BREL
A 7% # 147,500,000 7C ( B 7
35)  WEEEER_F—N
FRATEK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
(g) (continued)

Upon completion of the acquisition of Merchant
Charm and Massive Success, the tenant in
respect of its investment properties is a
company which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Yeung, therefore, the tenant is a
connected person of the Company. According
to the opinion letters of a Valuer, the rental
payables by the tenant under the Tenancy
Agreements Il were at the market rental
prevailing at the date of the relevant Tenancy
Agreements Il and that the commercial terms in
the Tenancy Agreements Il were fair and
reasonable and on normal commercial terms.
The Tenancy Agreements Il constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the
announcements dated 13 February 2018 and
29 March 2018 respectively as well as the
circular of the Company dated 6 April 2018.

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher level of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

SUCCESS UNIVERSE GROUP LIMITED E{EIRI AR A )

39. BEAERF (&)

(9) (&)

52 X U8 B8 Merchant Charm &
Massive Successi& @ & B8 & %
EVMEMNEFPA—HHBBGEE
2ENEmBEANRAA
It AP AR RR ZBEEA
T RE-—ZHEMHER
B BREBEEERZIESEN
HemearnEEHEERBZIR
HzRTmEHEE BEHEWR
BINEEKRBEATEE -
TR — MR EGEFEST - HE
W IRIE EMAREFHAE
BRALNA —BRFEBRER
5 BAFIBE2MARQAAH
HoRlR—_E—N\F_A+=
HE=ZZE—NF=A=+N1H
B AMUA R ZF— \FMAKR
HHYE Y o

40. EXRBERE

AEEEREAZTZEMNTRE
AREBRMTELSE  HSHAH
BARBRE R LR & AR MR D
wRAME - WHEREREARNRE -
PUBE B AR

AREEBEELRERRTREELE
AR NEERERSRRER(A]
BERRRE = 6 B/KT) B R E AR
LR SR 2 4 B S AR IR 2 TR ERAS
oy DA R IR R A7 AR O 8 B T R B
BRI o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41.

(CONTINUED)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines debt as total borrowings which are bearing
fixed interest rates and variable interest rate such as
bank loans (note 27) and loan from a director and
controlling shareholder (note 29). Capital represents
total equity attributable to owners of the Company
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group's strategy was to maintain the debt-to-
capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt. As at 31 December 2018, the debt-to-capital
ratio is approximately 25% (2017: zero).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged the
following assets:

(@) the Group pledged the time deposits of
approximately HK$10.0 million (2017:
approximately HK$10.1 million) to certain banks
for the issuance of certain banking facilities of
approximately HK$9.3 million (2017:
approximately HK$10.0 million) for the
operations of the Group (note 23);

(b)  World Fortune Limited pledged all (2017: all) of
its shares in Pier 16 — Property Development to
a bank in respect of the Loan Facilities; and

(©) the Group’'s all (2017: one) of investment
properties with carrying amount of
approximately HK$443.6 million (2017:
approximately HK$269.0 million) was pledged
to secure against bank loans granted to the
Group (note 27).

mE MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-ZT-—\F+=-A=1+—HLEE

40. EXEFRERE ()

41.

AEBZRESHEN L RETHEE
RERE - Bt AREBEBHRE
RIZE M RET B RILF B A K5
B(METER(ME27) F—%2E
FREBRBRER(HE29) 2 &
ERE -  EXAEERAMBARRARA
ZARBIRREIEESEE -

AEBEZRBAENBEBKHER
bR FRFFMEKTE o BBERFRAE
ZEE  AEEA g FAEMBRRIK
NZBRESE MBRRREERN -
BITHRKEEEEREER - X
—E-N\E+-A=+—8 &%
BWERLERL)B25% (ZF—+F :

T
EEEA

R-ZZB—NEFE+-A=+—H 'K
SEEEBTINEE

(@ AEERETRITEREHT
X4 7 ¥ 10,000,000 ( = &
— + F: 4% 10,100,000
TT) M ASEBEEBEFAE
#9,300,000 L (= F — £ F -
#4776 % 10,000,000 7T ) Z & 1A
RITELE (MFEE23)

(o) ERBERAFRZERBER
—ERITEFER T 7ORME
BRZE2HRMN(CT—1F:
2R - &

O AEEABE(ZZ—tF: —
T8 ) BR T (B #4975 & 443,600,000
T(ZE -+ F: HABE
269,000,0007T) 2 EMHEE
WHR - ERAREBERIRT
BB Rm (MEE27) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  42. AR T2 BB R R R 5

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =)
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) A1 TF)Z AR R T
Company
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB AR ZIEE 1,270,675 1,093,248
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and e BAFRER
other receivables E A FEUS AR K 482 461
Pledged bank deposits EHEMIRITER 6,556 7,091
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 24,557 129,300
31,595 136,852
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBAE
Other payables and accruals ~ EfbER BRI
FEEtE M 2,626 8,407
Bank loan RITER 100,000 -
Financial guarantee contract B #GIER A 4 644 644
103,270 9,051
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ #E(E&E) EE
ASSETS HEE (71,675) 127,801
TOTAL ASSET LESS EEHERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,199,000 1,221,049
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  42. AR T2 BB R R R 5

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(a) Statement of financial position of the
Company (continued)

258 (H)

(a) AT ZzHBRRE (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥REEE
Financial guarantee contract ~ BIFSIEIRE %) 1,612 2,256
Loan from a director and —REERIERER
controlling shareholder =& 39,000 -
40,612 2,256
NET ASSETS EEZRE 1,158,388 1,218,793
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERRFEE
Share capital N 49,265 49,265
Reserves (note 42(b)) & 1& (M £ 42(b)) 1,109,123 1,169,528
TOTAL EQUITY RE&BEE 1,158,388 1,218,793

Approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 28 March 2019.

On behalf of the board

Yeung Hoi Sing, Sonny
o p=101
Director

EE

EEeER T —NF=A

A\ B R IR T o

RREFS

Ma Ho Man, Hoffman

BHEX
Director

EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42, KA Q T Z MR R R R G E
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BE(E)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AATZREEE
Share Accumulated
Premium losses Total
IR 105 E 2t EE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
BT TT AT IT BT T
At 1 January 2017 RN-E—+tF
—HF—H 1,418,963 (276,634) 1,142,329
Profit and other REE M R
comprehensive income Hib 2 EK =
for the year - 27,199 27,199
At 31 December 2017 and R=—Z—+F
1 January 2018 +=-—A=+—H
EZF—N\F
—H—H 1,418,963 (249,435) 1,169,528
Loss and other AFEEEEK
comprehensive loss Hith 2 EEE
for the year - (60,405) (60,405)

At 31 December 2018 NR-E—N\F
+=—HA=+—H 1,418,963 (309,840) 1,109,123
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) The following list contains only the particulars
of subsidiaries which principally affected the
results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as
defined under note 2(c) and have been
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-N\F+-A=+—HILFE

43. T EMEB A 7

(a) TREHINHAKEXE B

EXREBRNIEXEZNE
RAFHB - BRRBIIAN - P
R D IR R 1E B R -

FREZF REY RH 200
REZZEMBAR - LB
BEFARNRE 2 AR TEHRE

Proportion of ownership interests

BRRERRLH
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
Incorporation/  and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests  Company subsidiary  Principal activities
BMERL/ ERTRAR A58 @BARE H-HEKE
WEARERE BEBY BRBRAFHE BRER ¥E DABE TEEER
% % %
Macau Success (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000,000 shares/ 100 100 - Investment holding
Limited ) HK$1,076,000 RERR
RPERE(BE)ERAR 10,000,000 &R 13,/
711,076,000 7T
Macau Success Management Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$100 100 - 100 Provision of
Services Limited ) 100 &R (7,/ A% 1007T administration
services
RETHARS
World Fortune Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares/HK$1,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
HRERAR] EE 1,000 813,/ RERR
71,000 7T
665127 BC Canada 9,400 common shares 100 - 100 Investment holding
mex without par value RERR
9,400 R EEIE 2
il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

43. T EKM B2 T (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
Proportion of ownership interests
BEERRLD
Particulars of
Place of issued shares Group's Held
Incorporation/  and paid up effective bythe Heldbya
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interests  Company subsidiary  Principal activities
ERRL/ BETRAR 5@ HALNE H-BHE
WEARERE EESE HERRAFE BiRE: BE NEARAE  IEEH
% % %
Jade Travel Canada 15,000 class “A” 100 - 100 Wholesale and retail
JIIEYN non-voting special shares business of selling
of CAD1,500,000 and airline tickets and
7 common shares tour packages
without par value HERE RIKTT
A%#1,500,000 1172 EZIHER
15,000 [A] & TEEHR
ERFREEHIR
RIRIEREEL
el
Good Sun Development Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
REERARAF BB 1IRRR1R, /B T NERE
Joint Cosmos Limited Hong Kong 100 shares/HK$100 100 - 100 Property investment
BRERAA EE 100 &R 13 /%5 100 7T NERE
Total Gain Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$1 100 - 100 Property investment
PRARAR BB 1IRRR1R, /B T NERE
Powerful Concept Limited Hong Kong 1 share/HK$ 1 100 - 100 Property investment
ERBRAR BB 1R,/ B8 1T NERE
Famous Capital International Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1,000 shares/USD1,000 100 - 100 Property investment
EERTES/  1,0008BH,/1,000ET NERE
Gain Glory BVI 1 share/USD1 100 - 100 Property investment
AERTHE 11RB&13,/1 %70 NERE
Perfect Top BVI 1 share/USD1 100 - 100 Property investment
EBRAHE 18RI, %7 NERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_ZT—N\FE+-_A=1+—HIEFE
43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. T EMHE LT (F)
(CONTINUED)

(b) BEEAKEEZREZZ—B
FEEWBLRZFE

RER - REBE [ FEFEAT
5 U BB 665127 BCAT B 31T/
INRBEITIRD Z225% - FE1E
BRRGRE P B RRME36 -

(b) Details of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests
During the year, the Group has purchased 25%
of all outstanding and issued share of 665127
BC from the non-controlling interests. Details
please refer to the note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TRERAEBHEEALD
Bz — W EWEAT
ZHE

The table below shows details of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group that has material
non-controlling interests:

Proportion of
ownership interests

Place of and voting rights held Loss allocated Accumulated
incorporation/ by non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary operations interests interests interests
FERERFSHGE FEFFER
WEAREM S S EHERREELA B BE Rt FERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-N\F —Z+F ZB-N\F —T+HF ZB-NFf T +t#F
% % HK$' 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
BT ENTT  B%Tn BRI
665127 BC Canada - 25 - (3,762) - (12,774)
nex

Summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below. The

AEERBEERFZERERZ
—EK B QR 2 F BT
W o FXRHI 2 I E RS

summaries financial information below AMEEB AL IHAI 2 £%8 ©
represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.

At

31 December
2017

i

—T—+tF
+—-RA=+—H
HK$'000
BT T

FEREEE
MEEE
mMEAIE
FREBEIE

15,873
33,999
(11,062)
(100,106)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EHRRMET (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE—_Z-N\F+-A=+—HIEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. TEMBEAF (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Details of a non-wholly owned (b) BEEARERERZ—H
subsidiary that has material non- 2 EMBLARZFHE (&)
controlling interests (continued)

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
BT T
Revenue and other income Weas B B g A 583,590
Expenses F (598,279)
Loss for the year REZEE (14,689)
Other comprehensive loss Hi2HEEE (50)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFEBEERER
loss for the year BB (14,739)
Net cash outflow from KEEBReRD
operating activities FE (11,103)
Net cash outflow from REEZBRS
investing activities T F R (105)
Net cash inflow from BMEEHHES
financing activities MAFEE 8,052
Net cash outflow WEMEF5E (3,156)

(c) Significant Restriction () EXREH
Cash of RMB held in the PRC are subject to RABEFEAARESEZR
local exchange control regulations. These local © AR E HHNEE FI 15 FTR
exchange control regulations provide for R o 325 E 1 IMNE B BB 5t
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC, e s HEANE TR
other than through normal dividends. FHiEEE AR BERIN o
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RESULTS

Five-Year Financial Summary
AFHBME

ES

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E “E—+F “E-REF “E-hF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Continuing operations HERERE
Revenue ey 1,120,278 589,935 564,848 941,078 1,103,544
Profit/(loss) before taxation REHBEEER
from continuing operations  BFATEF/(E518) 54,213 4,369 (16,299) 7,500 48,964
Taxation A - - - -
Profit/(loss) after taxation REBELEERY
from continuing operations  BEi &R/ (EE) 54,213 4,369 (16,299) 7,500 48,964
Discontinued operations ~ DH&ILEEEK
(Loss)/profit after taxation KE Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ“ EEBL
from discontinued Bk (B8)/EF
operations - (37,825) (20,766) (19,143) 68,818
Profit/(loss) for the year  ZFEERF,/(EiE) 54,213 (33,456) (37,065) (11,643) 117,782
Attributable to: AU T SEER !
Owners of the Company ARARE 54,464 (29,810) (30,977) (6,670) 96,890
Non-controlling interests R (251) (3,646) (6,088) (4,973) 20,892
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ AEERFI,/ (F58) 54,213 (33,456) (37,065) (11,643) 117,782
Earnings/(loss) per share AR TRRELEER
attributable to owners 2R/ (B8
of the Company:
From continuing and RERHELE
discontinued operations E%@Jﬁ%%**%fk
— Basic and diluted -EXREE 1.1 (0.61) (0.63) (0.14) 1.97

HK cents Bl HK centsi&fl  HK centsi&fll  HK centsi&{ll HK cents &Il
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Five-Year Financial Summary (Continued)

TEMBEHME (&)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
BR+=ZA=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
E-\E Z—T+HF ZT-RF ZT-HF ZTMOF
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BETTT BT
Total assets BERE 1,382,749 1,046,047 1188434 1,153,279 1,205,737
Total liabilities =R (314,628) (48,191)  (182,077)  (107,607)  (116,170)
Net assets EEFE 1,068,121 997,856 1,006,357 1,045,672 1,089,567
Total equity attributable to 22 RIIREEfE(L
owners of the Company EHeE 1,068,121 1,010,630 1,033,534 1,066,188 1,078,202
Non-controlling interests RS - (12,774) 27,177) (20,516) 11,365
Total equity BRueE 1,068,121 997,856 1,006,357 1,045,672 1,089,567
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Particulars of the properties held by the Group at the end

A.

Particulars of Properties

e S

RBEFR AEEBAENYEFRT

of the reporting year are as follows: T
Investment properties A. REYEHE
Attributable
interest of
Location Use/Status Type Tenure the Group
FEE
1th 26 R#& /MR B|R HAFH PEAh R
1 Office Nos. 1003 and Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
1004A on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BB EERE 185 A BE I ERZZ 4
BEHROTE101E
1003 E 2 1004A F
2 Office No. 1001A Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BB EERE 185 A BE I ERZZ 4
BEHROTE101E
1001AE
3 Office No. 1004B Rental Commercial Medium term 100%
on the 10th Floor of building lease
Tower 1 of Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong
BB EERE 185 A BE I ERZZ 4
BEROTE101E
1004B =
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Particulars of Properties (Continued)

WIS ()
B. Stock of properties B. M¥RFE
Attributable
Gross interest of
Location Use/Status Type Floor Area the Group
F&E
1t B R/ /R BH HEEEE PEfE R
1 13th Floor of Sing-Ho Finance Building, On Sale Commercial Approximately 100%
Nos. 166-168 Gloucester Road, building 1,770 square feet
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEEFSLITE FE BE £1,770F 7R
166 % 168 5%
EMABAE13E
2 Office Nos. 1901, 1902 and On Sale Commercial Approximately 100%
1903 on the 19th Floor of building 1,620 square feet
Eastern Commercial Centre,
Nos. 395-399 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBEFHERE 39523995k 8 BE 491,620 FHR
RREERL1918
1901 E ~ 1902 F & 1903 E
3 Office Nos. 1905, 1906 and On Sale Commercial Approximately 100%
1909 on the 19th Floor of building 2,921 square feet
Eastern Commercial Centre,
Nos. 395-399 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BBEFHERE395 23995k 8 BE 492,921 FHR
RREERL198
1905 % 1906 = 2 1909 =
4 34th Floor and Store Room On Sale Commercial Approximately 100%
of Sunshine Plaza, building 5,134 square feet
No. 353 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BB EIFER B 3535 e BE 415,134 F AR

SMAEMEREDE
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